CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Fen|anPublic Document Pack |oo%

eopie
5rw%n

AGENDA

PLANNING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 1 MAY 2024 e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk

1.00 PM

RICHARD YOUNG SUITE, BOATHOUSE
BUSINESS CENTRE, WISBECH, PE13 3BH

Committee Officer: Jo Goodrum
Tel: 01354 622285

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Previous Minutes (Pages 3 - 40)

To confirm and sign the minutes from the previous meeting of 20 March 2024 and 3

April 2024.

3 To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by

virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified

4 To receive Members declarations of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct
or any interest under the Local Code of Conduct or any interest under the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to be discussed at the meeting.

5 F/YR23/0209/RM
Land South West Of 317, Wisbech Road, Westry

Reserved Matters application relating to detailed matters of access, appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale pursuant to outline permission F/YR20/0905/0 to erect

3 x dwellings (3 x 2-storey 3-bed) (Pages 41 - 60)
To determine the application.

6 F/YR24/0034/0

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

EXCELLENCE
[ 5
g P

i
%

Fenland District Coundl  Fenland Hall e County Road e March  Cambridgeshire o PE15 8NQ

Telephone: 01354 654321  Texiphone: 01354 622213
Email: info@fenland.gov.uk o Website: www.fenland.gov.uk

2

X, INVESTORS
,_ IN PEOPLE

L«v,,



Land North of Windy Willows, Church Lane, Tydd St Giles
Erect up to 2 x dwellings and the formation of an access (outline application with
matters committed in respect of access) (Pages 61 - 78)

To determine the application.

7 F/YR24/0108/F
59 Elwyn Road, March
Erect a detached double garage to existing dwelling (Pages 79 - 88)

To determine the application.
8 F/YR24/0173/PIP
Land North East Of The Grange, London Road, Chatteris,br/>Permission in principle
to erect up to 4 x dwellings (Pages 89 - 98)
To determine the application.
9 F/YR24/0179/PIP
Land South Of Dixie Lodge, High Road, Tholomas Drove
Permission in principle to erect up to 3 x dwellings and the formation of 3 x accesses
(Pages 99 - 108)
To determine the application.

10 Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent

Members: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman), Councillor | Benney,
Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor R Gerstner, Councillor P Hicks and Councillor S Imafidon,



Agenda Item 2

PLANNING COMMITTEE -enland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

WEDNESDAY, 20 MARCH 2024 - 1.00 PM L .
Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman), Councillor
| Benney, Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor R Gerstner, Councillor P Hicks and Councillor
S Imafidon,

Officers in attendance: Troy Healy (Interim Head of Planning), Gavin Taylor (Principal
Development Officer), Stephen Turnbull (Legal Officer) and Elaine Cooper (Member Services)

P113/23 F/YR23/0431/0
LAND NORTH EAST OF TROTTERS LODGE, THE OLD DAIRY YARDS,
WESTFIELD ROAD, MANEA
ERECT UP TO 3NO DWELLINGS (OUTLINE APPLICATION WITH MATTERS
COMMITTED IN RESPECT OF ACCESS) INCLUDING DEMOLITION OF 3 X DAY
ROOMS AND OUTBUILDINGS

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members.

Member received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from Alan
Melton on behalf of Manea Parish Council. Mr Melton stated that the Parish Council has no
objection to this development and they feel it is a replacement of dwellings that are already there,
although they may be caravans. He finds it interesting to note that the proposed development
would see the loss of a gypsy traveller site, which may be the strict interpretation of the rules, but
having known this family for a long time and know of them and their work this site as a travellers
site is dependent and personal to the occupants, Mr and Mrs Savage and family.

Mr Melton stated that under no circumstances, if there had been a planning application come in for
a gypsy traveller site in that location, would it have been granted in the first place. He referred to
the consultees and made the point that he can see no objections, especially from Highways as he
knows residents have shown concern about the access and egress.

Mr Melton referred to the County Ecology report which recommends refusal due to lack of
biodiversity but, in his view, it is surrounded by biodiversity and reiterated that there are already
structures on the site so he feels it cannot be detrimental by building these homes. He feels there
is a lot of writing about ecology but having read it thoroughly, in his opinion, this should all be
dismissed.

Mr Melton highlighted the comments from the Council’s Traveller and Diversity Manager who
stated the existing development was approved for a gypsy traveller caravan but expressed the
view that circumstances and people change, with people wanting to move on and Chatteris and
Manea and the surrounding areas years ago welcomed lots of traveller sites and travellers and
their descendants are now living in houses and are prominent business people who have
contributed a lot to the local economy and the local environment. He, therefore, feels these
comments are not relevant and should be dismissed.

Mr Melton referred to local need, with it stating in the report that there is no discernible need but, in
his view, from training he has received in the past the baseline of planning is land use and the

Page 3



need of houses will be determined by the market place. He expressed the view that the emerging
Local Plan makes no provision for any housing whatsoever in Manea, with in one section it saying
it is a growth village and in another section it says there is no growth so it cannot be both.

Mr Melton questioned whether it encroaches into the countryside and referred to piecemeal
development, with, in his opinion, anybody who uses that road as regularly as he does will know
that Westfield Road is made up of piecemeal development so this proposal is not out of character.
He stated that it is the conclusion of the Parish Council that this application stands as a good
application, a replacement application, it is going to have no detrimental effect on the village or
highways and, therefore, the application should be approved.

Members asked questions of Mr Melton as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French referred to it being stated that this would never have obtained
planning permission but in 2014 it received planning permission? Mr Melton agreed that it
did but if the report is read carefully it says it was personal to the family that lived there as
they were already living there and had done for some time. He added that if the County
Council had identified a need for further traveller sites within the boundaries of Manea that
site would not have been considered.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that the policy for gypsy travellers is not up to date and she
would suggest as the Clerk of Manea Parish Council that this information is submitted to
the Council for inclusion in the emerging Local Plan. Mr Melton responded that in the next
municipal year Manea Parish Council are going to embark on a Neighbourhood Plan and
this will be included. He stated that he recognises as does the Parish Council that there is a
need for gypsy sites but there are sites that are far better than this one.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall expressed the opinion that the key points with this application are
Policies LP3, LP12 and LP16 and he feels that Manea is a growth village, with the site lying within
the built-up form of Manea. He stated that he has been visiting this site for around 20 years and
there has always been various buildings on site.

Mr Hall, referring to a map on the presentation screen, stated that under Policy LP12 it states
development should abut existing built-up form and, in his opinion, this does by abutting Cox Way
to the southeast and there are further permanent residential dwellings to the southwest of the site
that are established. He made the point that Policy LP16 states that proposals should make a
positive contribution to the character of the area and this site cannot even be seen from Westfield
Road and is well screened from the public right of way running along the front of the site so, in his
opinion, the proposal will not be detrimental to the area and would have no impact on neighbouring
dwellings, with there being no objections from any adjacent neighbours.

Mr Hall made the point that there are no technical objections to the application and the site is in
Flood Zone 1, has an existing access which will be utilised and there has been no objection from
Highways and there have been already for a number of years persons living on site. He stated that
the indicative site plan submitted with the application shows three dwellings but as can be seen
from the size of the site it could accommodate in terms of area a lot more dwellings, but it has
been limited due to the existing access and persons that are on site now and persons assumed
that would be on site if the proposal gets approval.

Mr Hall expressed the view that members will be aware of other applications along Westfield Road,
on the northern side, that are just like this one having been approved by committee and they go
back a similar distance from Westfield Road compared to where this one would be. He expressed
the opinion that this is an ideal site for development with persons already living on the site, it has
an existing access, it will not block the public right of way, there is existing drainage, it is in Flood
Zone 1, there is no change in the street scene with it being well screened and it is supported by all
the consultees, particularly the Parish Council as just heard from Mr Melton.

Page 4



Members asked questions of Mr Hall as follows:

Councillor Mrs French asked if this proposal is for the traveller’s family, ie sons/daughters?
Mr Hall responded that the persons living on site are all the same family as it is and from
what he has been told it will be the same persons who will still be living on that site.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

Councillor Mrs French questioned the proposal being in the open countryside and what she
can see and has read this is a brownfield site and this is for replacement of structures that
are already in existence and asked if this is correct? Gavin Taylor responded that the
planning permission in use currently is for residential use, the structures for residential use
are tighter to the existing built form than the extent of the site plan proposed via the red line
so the concern is the depth of that site relative to the existing built form and how that
relates, with it being considered that it relates more closely to the countryside. He stated
that there are structures on the site but they do not extend as far as the red line goes and
notwithstanding the residential use of the site is restricted by virtue of the special
circumstances that were considered at that time, the policies that direct development to
villages and countryside are no different to what they were before due to the need to protect
the open countryside and keep development tight to the existing built form.

Councillor Gerstner referred to the comments of the Traveller and Diversity Manager who
states that the existing development was approved as a gypsy traveller caravan
accommodation to meet the cultural needs of their lifestyle and it would appear that the
family that are living there have lived here for some considerable time so they are seeking
to replace the accommodation that they are living in now with brick structured buildings and
the agent has said that the brick structured buildings will be lived in by the applicants and
their family. He sees that the Traveller and Diversity Manager has questioned that the loss
of the traveller site would mean the need to look elsewhere to replace it but there has been
no movement on that site for a number of years, so the people are not transient. Councillor
Gerstner asked for clarification on the loss of the traveller’s site and what that means to the
Council. Gavin Taylor responded that there is some discussion in the report at 10.7 onwards
regarding that, which considers this development on accommodation for gypsy travellers,
but it is acknowledged that this is specifically restricted to specific individuals which are
intending to reside on this site. He stated that it does not form a reason for refusal in terms
of loss of gypsy traveller site and is not an open permission for any gypsy traveller to
accommodate, it is specific to this family. Gavin Taylor made the point that whilst he
acknowledges the agent’s comments in terms of the intention of the applicant it is not good
business to restrict market dwellings to individuals to live in and it would be unreasonable to
restrict it so these would be open market dwellings and the previous permission that
restricts occupancy would fall away as a result.

Councillor Gerstner asked for clarification that it is not a reason for refusal on the loss of a
gypsy traveller site? Gavin Taylor responded that officers do not consider it is because the
applicant themselves who are restricted by that condition of occupancy are the applicants
who wish to have an alternative type of accommodation.

Councillor Imafidon referred to the officer’s response to Councillor Mrs French that the
depth of the site as opposed to the existing built form and structures is more than what is
proposed to be built and the way it is laid out there is more land space available and asked
if this was correct? Gavin Taylor made the point that it is an indicative layout only and
officers would have to take into consideration associated paraphernalia that could go with
that residential use and curtilage afforded to one or two or three of those dwellings is quite
substantial and goes out further into the countryside than the current built form. He added
that whilst the layout is not committed it could be this layout, it could be deeper, or it could
be with residential paraphernalia so it is a consideration regarding the depth of the site and
how this encroaches into the countryside.

Councillor Imafidon made the point that when he visited the site there were a lot of
structures on site and from what he sees now from the proposal this would be a better use

Page 5



of the site, in his opinion, from what it currently is. He asked if officers agree with this?
Gavin Taylor responded that it is not considered by officers to comply with policy and is
more about landscape and visual impact.

e Councillor Imafidon stated that the use is already in existence in an open countryside
location and is surrounded by buildings, so he does not understand this and asked for
clarification. Gavin Taylor responded that the extent of the red line goes into the countryside
well beyond any built structures that are on that site.

Members made comments, asked questions, and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Benney stated he has visited the site, and he fails to see why it is at committee
as, in his view, it brushes with policy and councillors are here to put a human touch and to
bring benefit to the community in which councillors represent. He stated that he has known
the site for years, it is a brownfield site and in relation to building in the open countryside
members are told that the gaps have to be filled in before moving out but Manea is
sprawling in all directions and is a very large village in terms of area and what cannot be
seen on the map is Glebe Close which equally protrudes out into the open countryside.
Councillor Benney expressed the opinion that there is a family here that have decided they
want to give up living in caravans and live in a house and this proposal is not going to
interfere with anything, there will not be additional traffic and there are no objections. He
does not agree with Policy LP12 as it is in the middle of Manea, and he fails to see how this
is in the open countryside and nothing would be built if this approach was taken to all
development. Councillor Benney referred to LP12 stating that schemes must be considered
for new dwellings and this is a site that could have more development on it but the applicant
only wants it for his family and his family are already there and whilst he recognises the
recommendation of officers but feels that the committee and councillors are here to put a
human face to the proposal and he feels this would be supporting a family and does not
think it is detrimental. He expressed the view that it is a development that should be
approved, and he will be supporting the proposal.

e Councillor Mrs French referred to the loss of a traveller’s site but her understanding is that
these travellers have been there for many years, they are born into the traveller's world and
because they live in a solid building does not stop them being travellers. She feels it is a
brownfield site, disagrees that it is in the open countryside and is a replacement of
dwellings, so she will be supporting it.

e Councillor Gerstner expressed the view that there are 6 letters of support for this proposal,
there is no intensification of the area, Highways have not made any objections, it sits within
its own curtilage, it is a visual improvement on what is there at the moment, the family has
been on the site a long while and he will be supporting the application.

e Gavin Taylor stated that the debate mentioned the family and if that is a significant material
consideration if they were to ultimately support the application it would need to be
considered whether or not there is so much weight on this that a restricted occupancy
condition should be imposed but the NPPF does dissuade from doing this as if housing is
being delivered it should be unencumbered. He added that the site itself currently is an
extension of default agricultural land and does not form the residential use so, therefore, it
would not technically be previously developed land under brownfield. Gavin Taylor referred
to the mention of 6 letters of support and whilst the content of letters of support or objection
might be material, there is no policy indication that this should be given any more weight.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply reasonable conditions in association with the Chairman.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel
under LP3 that this is not an elsewhere location as it lies within the boundary of Manea, it is
delivering high quality accommodation, it is improving the quality of lives of the residents and under
LP16(d) this proposal is adding to the high-quality environment.

Page 6



(Councillor Benney declared that he knows the applicant as he went to school with him and over
20 years ago, he was a sub-contractor that undertook work for him but he does not socialise with
him and also the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and himself personally but
he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Marks declared that he knows the applicant and is undertaking personal work for them
and took no part in the discussion or voting thereon)

P114/23 F/YR23/0858/F
41 QUEENS ROAD, WISBECH, PE13 2PE
CHANGE OF USE OF 4-BED DWELLING (C3) TO FORM HOUSE OF MULTIPLE
OCCUPATION (HMO) (SUlI GENERIS) FOR UP TO 8 PERSONS INVOLVING
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE AND FORMATION OF AN ACCESS.

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members and drew attention to the update that had been
circulated.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Councillor Tierney, ward councillor. Councillor Tierney stated that he is the County, District and
Town Councillor for this area but Councillors Hoy and Wallwork have fed into what he is going to
say and Councillor Edwards who is a Town Councillor is also present to support residents in
opposing this application. He stated that Queens Road is a normal residential street full of family
character homes in a well-established community neighbourhood and under the Local Plan’s
health and wellbeing guidance LP2 it aims to provide high levels of residential amenity which, in
his view, this proposal only pays scant lip service to, with it having almost no communal areas and
does not give a sense of community.

Councillor Tierney stated that LP2 also states the ambition to create an environment in which
communities can flourish and, in his view, people cannot easily flourish in these sorts of proposed
accommodations. He expressed the opinion that this proposal is also contrary to paragraph 8 of
the NPPF which states that development should support strong, vibrant, and healthy communities
and living in a small box room with no community space he feels is the opposite of that ambition
and is not conducive to a healthy life.

Councillor Tierney expressed the opinion that the key reason why this application should be
refused is that it breaches LP16 in multiple ways, LP16(b) states that development should protect
and enhance biodiversity on and around the site, with this proposal not doing this as the garden is
removed to create multiple parking spaces but not enough parking spaces, LP16(d) states that
developments should make a positive contribution to the local distinctiveness and character of the
area and this application cannot possibly, in his view, do this, LP16(e) states that development
should not adversely impact upon the amenity of neighbouring users, with one example given
being loss of privacy, and, in his view, this site will lead to overlooking of No.39 and so
contravenes this. He added that LP16 sets out the desire to deliver and protect high quality
environments, with this building normally being a high-quality family home but under these
proposals becomes multiple small dwellings creating isolation and having an negative effect on the
physical and mental health of people forced to live their entire lives in one room.

Councillor Tierney expressed the view that the parking provision is poor for this many proposed
residents and committee did refuse another application last year at Langley Lodge, 300 yards
along the road, for the same reason, with that application going to appeal and the appeal
supported this committee’s reservations and decision, and he feels this is the same situation. He
stated that LP15(c) stipulates development schemes should provide well-designed car parking
appropriate to the amount of development proposed and in line with car parking standards, but this
development proposal would result in a shortfall of car parking which would result in on-street

Page 7



parking to the detriment of road safety and contrary to the aims and objectives of this policy.

Councillor Tierney asked for consistency asking members to replicate that logical decision and turn
this application down. He referred to the Town Council comments when they discussed this issue
which is that a lot of problems that Wisbech has come from poorly planned and poorly placed
HMOs and, in his opinion, this proposal is in a poor place and is a poor plan requesting that it be
refused.

Members asked questions of Councillor Tierney as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French asked whereabouts would the overlooking occur that was
mentioned? Councillor Tierney responded that one of the neighbours at No.39 will be
overlooked from one of the high repositioned windows.

e Councillor Benney asked what is the on-street parking situation in Queens Road? Councillor
Tierney responded that lots of car’s park along the road, with residents often complaining
about people speeding and driving recklessly down this road, but it is an odd road as it very
wide so there is no easy way to slow people down or control parking. He added that the on-
street parking is first come first served and there is already a parking difficulty and issues
with the traffic, and he feels this proposal would exacerbate the issues.

e Councillor Hicks requested clarification that the 6 car spaces are for the residents and not
for visitors and that there are double yellow lines all the way around the front of the building
and on the side, so the immediate parking is not outside the property? Councillor Tierney
responded that he cannot remember where the double yellow lines run to but he believes
this is correct and there are 6 parking spaces for 8 residents presuming one car each and
no visitors which is not enough and will create an overspill. Councillor Connor stated that
there are double yellow lines down Queens Road and also down Kings Street.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
William Morris, an objector. Mr Morris stated that he is a resident of Queens Road and has been
asked to speak by other residents who are very concerned about this application and do not want it
to be approved, with there being a lot of depth of feeling. He added that he has lived in Queens
Road with his wife for very many years and brought up his family here, with it being a road of
family houses and to his knowledge there have not been HMOs in that road before.

Mr Morris expressed the view that multiple occupancy has never really featured and if this
application is approved this is going to change the situation fundamentally and will change and
debase the amenity of the road and its character. He feels it is important to realise that this
application is for 8 people and 8 bedrooms but 6 of the 8 bedrooms could accommodate a double
bed so what is going to stop up to 14 people residing in this property albeit against regulations and
rules but, in his view, these things happen, and he suspects it will happen. He questioned how the
Council would enforce the restriction on numbers, with this point being raised in correspondence to
the Council as there had been another similar case in another district where the Planning Inspector
had said that “they are not persuaded that a condition attempting to limit the number of occupants
would be practicably possible to enforce in terms of its interpretation and detecting a contravention
consequently it would fail the tests of precision and enforceability set out in the NPPF” and this
concern was raised with this Council within a letter of objection sent on 12 January 2024 but has
not been acknowledged within the summary of objections at Section 5.8 of the officer’s report but it
is a real issue if there is to be multiple occupancy on how can it be policed.

Mr Morris queried the amenity of residents in the HMO if the proposal is approved as it seems that
the accommodation will not be fit for purpose, there are limited communal facilities and the
residents would be expected to relax, cook and eat all in the same room, which, in his view, is not
good. He questioned again how many residents there would really be, would there be 8 or will
there be more.

Mr Morris referred to the impact on the amenity of Queens Road and he thinks there are real

Page 8



issues as there would be a lot more noise from comings and goings to this property, with the
people who will suffer particularly will be those that live next door and close by and there will be an
increase in litter, with there already being a litter problem and anybody that goes down the service
road behind Queens Road properties see how so often that there is fly tipping here and he suspect
this situation will be made worse with this proposal. He stated that the site is close to a tricky
crossroads and the situation will be made more difficult here with a multiple occupancy house just
next door and environmentally it is not good as they are proposing to remove the garden for
residents parking.

Members asked questions of Mr Morris as follows:

e Councillor Marks referred to an HMO that has been approved in Manea and there was a lot
of people against it and time will tell whether it actually works out or not but from this there
is a noise issue from night workers 24 hours a day going in and out. He asked with what is
proposed on this application does Mr Morris feel it is going to be more transient workers or
for longer term residents? Mr Morris responded that he suspects the property will be used
by transient workers, but he does not know but he is convinced there will be more
interference.

e Councillor Marks asked for confirmation as Mr Morris has lived in the area for a long period
of time whether there has been any anti-social behaviour up to this point? Mr Morris
responded that there has not been anti-social behaviour that he is aware of.

e Councillor Imafidon referred to the alleyway behind the proposed development and asked
what the problems are as when he visited the site there were wheelie bins placed on both
sides of the road and one of his concerns is the parking at the back and does this remove
the place where you can put wheelie bins and in HMOs they do not take responsibility for
rubbish collections. He asked what the situation was with the alleyway currently, is there
any fly tipping issues and are bins being collected regularly? Mr Morris responded that
most to the houses in Queens Road put their bins in the alleyway behind and they are
collected but the problem is the dumping of rubbish, which is not collected at all and his
wife is very often having to contact the Council to say there has been fly tipping or refuse
left and can it be collected and the Council is extremely good at collecting it. He stated that
one of the fears they have is that if this application is approved then there will be more of
this problem and the road behind Queens Road, Chestnut Road, is fairly narrow and not
well maintained.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated he was pleased to see the officer's report and the
recommendation of approval. He added that one of the key points of the application being the
existing dwelling is not to be extended and the property was originally constructed as a 2% storey
dwelling with rooms in the roof and there are already windows in the side gable and at the front,
which are not being touched and no windows are being introduced at the first or second floor.

Mr Hall stated that the proposal is not to enlarge the property in any way and only 2 additional en-
suite frosted glass windows are to be introduced in the side wall facing No.39 and they are both at
ground floor level, with the design of the proposal being specifically set out to ensure the actual
dwelling from the street scene would remain as existing. He expressed the opinion that with a
house of multiple occupancy of this size there would be additional sound proofing added to the
property as part of Building Regulations and the Environmental Health Officer is not objecting to
the proposal.

Mr Hall made the point that officers are happy with the bin storage provision and the proposal
leaves over half of the plot as garden area, which is in accordance with Policy LP2. Mr Hall
expressed the view that there are 6 onsite parking spaces, which the Highways Officer and
Planning Officer have not raised any objection to and under 9.14 of the officer’s report it states that
this is reasonable.

Page 9



Mr Hall stated that when he took on this job, he did look around the area and 2 streets away from
this site at Alexandra Road is an 8-bed HMO that was approved at No.26 with no on-site parking
in 2019 and at No.27 a 9-bed HMO was approved with no parking also in 2019, with both of these
applications being 100 metres from this site. He made the point that all technical consultees
support this application including Highways, Environmental Health and the Private Sector Housing
Officer.

Mr Hall stated that during the application the layout has been amended in conjunction with the
Private Sector Housing Officer and also the applicant in terms of communal facilities and sizes of
rooms, with the Planning Officer being very proactive during the application and worked with them
excellently to allow the application to come forward with a recommendation for approval and, in the
officer’s opinion, this proposal is policy compliant.

Members asked questions of Mr Hall as follows:

e Councillor Hicks referred to the other HMOs in the area as mentioned by Mr Hall and asked
if these were surrounded by double yellow lines? Mr Hall responded that when he looked at
these applications, they were approved under delegated powers in 2019 and he believes
there are yellow lines along this road. It was indicated that there are not yellow lines.

e Councillor Imafidon made the point that Alexandra Road is right next to the big public car
park so it will not require any parking spaces for HMOs there so, in his opinion, this is
entirely different from this property, which has no parking spaces surrounded by double
yellow lines and the front garden is going to be lost as well as the garage demolished in the
rear garden to create 6 parking spaces for 8 residents who may have more vehicles who
may have visitors who will then park on the street. He asked Mr Hall to agree that this is not
the same situation? Mr Hall responded that the public car park is close to both sites and
accessed from Queens Road and Alexandra Road and the properties in Alexandra Road
provided no on-site parking, but this proposal provides 6 and whilst it is an 8-bed HMO, in
his opinion, and he thinks the Highways Officer’s opinion also, this is considered a town
centre location. Councillor Imafidon referred to a map and where the car park was and, in
his view, it is not the same thing. Mr Hall responded that whilst it is not ideal residents from
this property could access the car park off Queens Road and Alexandra Road also has a
public car park next to it and, in his opinion, all sites are close to public car parks.

e Councillor Mrs French asked if people were living in the dwelling currently? Mr Hall
responded that when the applicant purchased the property it was empty and to his
knowledge it is still empty.

e Councillor Mrs French asked about the overlooking mentioned by Councillor Tierney? Mr
Hall responded that on the side of the dwelling overlooking No.39 at the moment there are
windows in the roof now which are staying, nothing is being introduced at first floor level but
at ground floor level which does face No.39 there will be an additional 2 en-suite windows
600 wide with frosted glass.

e Councillor Benney made the point that Mr Hall is saying that this proposal is suitable but, in
his opinion, would he want this next door to him? Councillor Connor stated this is a leading
question and Mr Hall did not have to answer it.

e Councillor Marks stated that committee have heard from a resident and Councillor Tierney,
and he has a real concern over 8 bedrooms, with the proposal being reduced from 12, and
how quickly will this be increased to 12 to 14 to bed sharing, etc. He asked what is being put
in place for some sort of management and that there are not people going in and out 24
hours? Mr Hall responded that with regard to the persons that are going to occupy the
property are they going to be in 9-5 jobs or are they going to be on a night shift he does not
know and is that something that can be controlled by planning condition, in his opinion,
probably not and he can see a proposed planning condition limiting the numbers to 8 and if
there are more people it can be enforced. He stated that he has worked with the Private
Sector Housing Officer and they were going to provide facilities in the rooms due to the size
of the rooms but they said no. Mr Hall stated that he cannot give a guarantee that there
would be more than 8 people living there but there is a planning condition limiting the

Page 10



numbers and that would be what the licence would be if approved.

Councillor Marks asked if there would be some form of management in place for this
building? Mr Hall responded that the applicant owns several other properties in Wisbech, he
is a management letting agent himself and his understanding looking at some of the positive
comments online from the Council’s Private Sector Housing Officer he is the management
company, and he would do this himself.

Councillor Marks expressed concern that the 8 is going to escalate as it goes forward and is
there anything else being put in place, such as security cameras? Mr Hall responded that
the applicant would be happy to accept security cameras if the application is approved and
would be happy to accept a condition that there needs to be a management plan agreed
with officers.

Councillor Connor stated that when he visited the site there was a for sale outside the
property and he thinks it is still advertised with a local estate agent.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

Councillor Hicks asked why with 8 residents 6 car parking spaces are allowed? Gavin
Taylor responded that the Local Plan does not set out parking standards for HMOs and
Section 10.2 of the officer’s report draws on what officers have gleaned from numerous
appeal decisions where a Planning Inspector generally considers an HMO yields lower car
ownership, which would make officers consider whether or not the loss of potentially 2
parking spaces, making assumptions that every occupant would have a car, is a reasonable
reason to refuse the application. He referred to Paragraph 115 of the NPPF where it sets
out that applications should only be refused on transport grounds if there are severe
cumulative impacts or on highways grounds or highway safety grounds and there are no
technical objections on that basis, and it would be difficult to defend an appeal on those
grounds. Gavin Taylor made the point that the site also lies close to a town centre location
and the Local Plan does set out the parking standards where in market towns where there
are more local jobs and better transport networks that a lower parking provision can be
considered notwithstanding that there is not a standard for HMOs. He feels that the 6
parking spaces is more than would normally be secured on HMOs and there is no evidence
that this would result in a severe harm in highway safety terms.

Councillor Marks asked by reducing the numbers from 12 to 8 does this change any
legislation regarding fire or anything else or is it just because 12 was felt unsuitable for that
building? Gavin Taylor responded that the room sizes are set out through standards and are
licensed through the Licensing Team. He advised that fire standards would be captured
through the licensing regime and is not a planning consideration and the reasons for going
from 12 to 8 may be due to the development as proposed for 12 did not demonstrate it
could comfortably accommodate 12 people.

Councillor Imafidon stated that he lives in Wisbech and Queens Road is one of the nicer
roads in the town, with a lot of the occupants being owner occupiers and elderly, it is also in
a Conservation Area and they are quite substantial properties and asked if allowing an HMO
will set a precedent for people to buy up properties and convert them to HMOs which would
then ruin the character of that area, which is a lovely, broad street. Troy Healy responded
that it is lawful for every single property on this road to be brought and converted into a 6
person HMO without planning control, so it is not being considered whether it is acceptable
for any property to be converted into an HMO and is about the capacity of 2 beyond what is
already lawful. Gavin Taylor added that the starting point is that this property could
accommodate 6 unrelated people lawfully so the extra over is 2 persons that need to be
considered. He feels it would be very difficult to evidence and demonstrate that the
character would be reduced as a result of this property becoming an 8 person HMO,
particularly when there is a fallback position of 6 persons so would an additional 2 people
result in a degradation of that property that is significant and demonstrable, which, in his
view, it would not. Gavin Taylor made the point that there are a number of HMOs across the
District, there is a need for HMOs as an accommodation type and there are no strategic
policies as to where they should be located so, therefore, it is each case on its own merits.

Page 11



Councillor Imafidon expressed the view that there will be character harm as the front garden
will become hard standing, the garage will be demolished to provide 3 car parking spaces,
which he does not know how these spaces can fit in this space, and provision for bins has
not been mentioned. He stated that there are a lot of HMOs in Wisbech already, he is not
against HMOs but feels this is the wrong location and the health and wellbeing of the people
that live around the site need to be considered.

Councillor Connor referred to this proposal being an 8 person HMO but they may have
partners who may wish to live with them so there could be 16 people in the premises which
would contribute to noise issues and asked what would be put in place to stop this? Troy
Healy responded that he has dealt with overoccupancy issues in relation to HMOs
historically in other authorities and a lot of these have been lawful HMOs where there has
been an issue going beyond the 6 people allowed lawfully without requiring planning
permission and whilst he takes on board the comments of the Planning Inspector regarding
controlling the number of occupants in relation to a property can be difficult, the occupancy
limits are set both by Planning and the licence and they are ably enforced by Licensing as
well as by Planning. He stated that in terms of the total number of occupants, officers would
be looking to work with Licensing and if there is a report of over occupancy a Breach of
Condition Notice could be issued but there is no provision in relation to proactive visits to
HMOs on the assumption, they are over occupied.

Councillor Connor expressed the view that it would be difficult to enforce as when you visit a
property the total number of residents are not going to be present all at the same time. He
made the point that this HMO is not a detached dwelling in a large area, it is a semi-
detached dwelling in a predominantly lovely area where you could probably hear noise next
door and he is not comfortable with it. Troy Healy responded that occupation of a single
dwelling by a single unit of people acting or living as a family has no upper limit on the
number of people that could reside there nor on the number of vehicles they could have. He
stated that this is a situation where under the extreme circumstances if it is going to be
illicitly occupied by more than the requisite number of people it could be lawfully occupied
by far more. Councillor Connor expressed the view that these residents will be transient,
have no relations there and be probably different nationalities, which could lead to
disturbance in a lovely area. Troy Healy responded that this would not be a material
planning consideration and the committee should not be basing its decision on this.
Councillor Gerstner expressed the view that the occupants could be limited to 6 but 12
people live there and previous applications for HMOs that were approved are also open to
abuse on occupancy levels so he is not saying it is a weak argument, but it is the level
playing field that members are on. He feels the issue is the residential amenity, the loss of
the garden at the front, the car parking and the possible number of vehicles that could be
trying to access that site and the potential of enforcement is difficult for Planning or
Licensing to keep track of.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Imafidon stated that he does not support this application for the many reasons he
has stated, and, in his view, it is overdevelopment and under LP2 it does not facilitate the
health and wellbeing of Fenland residents. He recognises what the officers have said that
there could be a family of 6 living there but then they are a family, with most properties on
that street seem to have a maximum of 2 cars, and a family of 6 is most probably not going
to have 6 or more cars. Councillor Imafidon made the point that on this site there are going
to be people of working age maybe seasonal workers or shift workers and due to the
District’s transport facilities, which is non-existent in Wisbech, people are going to have cars
and they are going to park them somewhere, whether it be at the property or on the street.
He does not feel this application should be supported, he referred to a doggy park just down
Queens Road beside Kings Street where there has been problems in the past where HMOs
in the area have caused issues and the Police have had to be called, which drains their
resources, and thankfully that property got closed and the problem got resolved and the
reason he is referring to it is the park is called the doggy park and is notorious for people

Page 12



sitting around and doing nothing and for fly tipping and he does not feel this is the right
location for this HMO. Councillor Imafidon expressed the view that decent houses are
required in Wisbech and there is a shortfall of 3-4 bed family homes so this will be a loss if it
is converted amongst other problems it is going to create, such as social problems.
Councillor Hicks stated that whilst councillors have their own areas, they have a bigger duty
to represent the people of Fenland and he does not think the people in Queens Road want
this proposal and he can see where they are coming from. He does not think there are
enough car parking spaces, that it is in keeping with the area, the fact that it has double
yellow lines on the road mean that any overspill to the property will result in residents having
to park up the road. Councillor Hicks expressed the opinion that members also have to be
aware of high-quality development and the loss of privacy, with 8 residents in the property
going up and down stairs with it being a semi-detached property it is going to be heard next
door and if it was a detached property he would probably be more willing to support it. He
stated for these reasons he is not going to be supporting this proposal.

Councillor Mrs French referred to Policy LP2 which requires development proposals to
promote high level of residential amenity and also Policy LP16 and, in her view, this
proposal does not do this as it is a semi-detached property. She feels if the application is
approved the human rights are being taken away from the local residents who are entitled to
enjoy a peaceful home and environment, with this application going against their human
rights.

Councillor Marks stated that he came to the meeting with an open mind, however, having in
the back of his mind the HMO in Manea, which has created serious issues and from hearing
everything today he will not be supporting the proposal. He expressed the view that there is
no control over numbers, the 3 car parking spaces on Queens Road will be reversing
straight out onto a crossroads which is another concern that has not been mentioned today
and whilst he acknowledges the comments from Highways this was probably a desktop
survey and also the issue with the wellbeing for the people who already live in the area.
Councillor Gerstner expressed the opinion that there is also a highways issue here from the
Highway Authority about the covering over of the front garden, with it stating that they do not
wish surface water to be drained onto the highway so a drain or a channel has to be made,
which may be very difficult to achieve.

Councillor Benney stated that he does not disagree with the comments made by anyone
else and, in his view, the parking is unsuitable in this location, LP16(d) refers to a positive
contribution and distinctiveness to the area which this proposal fails on miserably, it
adversely impacts neighbours with overlooking, amenity space is an issue with unknown
numbers of people there, there will be noise as it is a semi-detached property with people
coming and going at different times of the day and he feels it is not a suitable area. He
expressed the opinion that the whole proposal to put people in this small area, bearing in
mind that officers did mention the local transport and it is known that local transport is
appalling in Fenland, so everybody has to have a car, results in negatives that are too great
to support the proposal.

Gavin Taylor referred to the number of people that could occupy the property and made the
point that there could be a family of 6 people living here but there could also be 6 unrelated
people living here. He stated that he gets the feel for where this application is going, with
concerns about the lack of on-site parking and the resultant highway safety issues that may
result, the fact that it is not in keeping with the character of the area and that it could cause
amenity harm through overlooking and noise.

Councillor Marks added residents’ wellbeing with the people living in this property in a large
house with very small rooms. Councillor Connor agreed with these comments.

Councillor Mrs French made the point that it is not that many months ago that committee
refused an application for a residential home not far from this property for some of the same
reasons and it lost at appeal.

Troy Healy stated that in terms of impact on quality of accommodation for the potential
occupants it is compliant in relation to minimum room size standards so he would not
recommend that this is a reason for refusal.

Page 13



e Councillor Marks expressed the opinion that the welfare of the existing residents has to be
taken into account.

e The Legal Officer reminded members that from listening to the debate and potential reasons
for refusal, if this goes to appeal Council will have to demonstrate with evidence that its
reasons for refusal are supported and that they are against the development plan and given
the response from consultees, in his view, the Council will have difficulty in defending a
claim for costs in the event of an appeal.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Hicks and agreed that the
application be REFUSED against the officer’'s recommendation.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of approval of planning permission as they feel
there is a lack of on-site parking which results in highway safety harm, it fails to make a positive
contribution to the character of the area, the development would result in an adverse impact on
neighbouring properties through noise and it fails to protect the amenity of both future and existing
residents, therefore, there would be highway, character and amenity harm.

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind)

(Councillor Imafidon declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is a member of Wisbech Town Council but takes no part in planning)

(Councillors Connor, Mrs French, Hicks, Imafidon and Marks declared, under Paragraph 2 of the
Code of Conduct on Planning Matters, that they had been lobbied on this application)

(Councillor Benney left the meeting after this application and was not present for the remaining
agenda items)

P115/23 F/YR23/0921/F
LAND WEST OF THE SPORTSMAN, MAIN ROAD, ELM
CHANGE OF USE OF LAND FOR USE AS PUBLIC HOUSE CAR PARK
INVOLVING THE FORMATION OF HARDSTANDING, NEW LIGHTING, THE
SITING OF A STORAGE CONTAINER AND THE ERECTION OF A 2.0M
ACOUSTIC FENCE (PART RETROSPECTIVE

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members and drew attention to the update that had been
circulated.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
David Johnson, the applicant. Mr Johnson stated that the original fence design was based on
fences previously built and designed by English Brothers for Highways England without any
specific data to work from to ensure it was suitable for his site and it became clear that the pre-
made panels would be too big and heavy to easily be handled and erected on site. He made the
point that they were asked not to include an acoustic fence in his first submission for conservation
reasons but it was requested by the committee.

Mr Johnson stated that realising that he might need some data to go along with an acoustic fence
he contacted a firm specialising in designing and installing acoustic fences and they had a
computer programme that required him giving them data for parameters, but it was a rough and
ready tool at best and ended up with a 2.4 metre fence submission. He made the point that post
Covid the price of timber has increased and if they are investing a vast sum of money in a fence it
needed to be fit for purpose not unnecessarily costly or over engineered and he felt he had no
route other than to commission a bonafide acoustic engineer to model the site and carry out a full

Page 14



noise investigation.

Mr Johnson stated that the results confirmed what he expected but to a much greater degree, with
the levels monitored from all receptors recorded in the lowest possible table category of none or
not significant and were very comfortably inside the upper limit of this category. He asked the
engineer if the difference was virtually undetectable to the human ear and he confirmed exactly
that and he requested that the engineer include this sentence in the report as he felt it would be
more relatable to those who were not used to the technical language but he confirmed that the
regulatory body with whom they were affiliated did not permit such a sentence because there is
always a chance that someone can produce a person with the hearing of a bat.

Mr Johnson expressed the view that whilst there does not appear to be a document to make it
absolute fact it is a long-standing well-known understanding within the planning system that the
minimum 1.8 fence to a garden is an agreeable height in order to protect neighbour’s private
amenity in terms of overlooking. He added that Peter Humphrey Associates confirmed he had
never asked for anything over 1.8 metres between gardens and has never been asked to make a
fence 2 metres for that reason, with it being documented in permitted development guides relating
to heights of windows that if a window is over 1.7 metres above the internal floor level it is not
considered an overlooking issue and also most people are under 1.8 metres tall, which is relevant
as add to this the distance between one’s eyes and the top of their head is about 6 inches,
especially for a tall person, only people over 7 foot tall would have a chance of seeing over a 2
metre fence.

Mr Johnson stated that he is not in a financial position to waste money, some months he makes a
profit and some months he does not, and a 2.4 metre fence would require 44 x 3.3 metre gate
posts to support the fence, with a 2-metre fence requiring more standard heavy duty posts but at
half the cost. He added that there would also be less wastage in materials as standard lengths
work much better for 2 metre fences than 2.4 metre fences, with a 2.4 metre fence requiring
working platforms and a 2-metre fence can be constructed with feet on the ground.

Mr Johnson referred to trading since Covid, with people’s social habits being very much different
and they now close an hour earlier each day and often sooner than their advertised hours and his
busy periods are no longer late in the evening, with people coming out earlier and leaving earlier.

Members asked questions of Mr Johnson as follows:

e Councillor Imafidon stated that he knows the site and he owns multiple pubs as well so he
knows the challenges the industry is facing. He asked how will granting this application now
impact the business? Mr Johnson responded that there is a need to extend the car parking
and reducing the height of the fence could potentially reduce the cost of construction by
nearly half, therefore, the benefits of the extra 40cm are small but the cost to the business
are high as he does not know when they would be able to spend possibly £40,000 and even
£20,000 for a 2 metre fence is going to take some time to find the money. He made the
point that no other car parks or pubs in Fenland are forced to suffer an acoustic fence.

e Councillor Imafidon asked further about the benefits to the business as well? Mr Johnson
responded that the business is drawing from a wider demographic not just local people
walking to the pub, people using the pub are coming more for food and from further
distances so are using cars and sometimes there will be 4 cars out the front and it is
impacting the local community for parking and it is making people drive past thinking the
pub is busy when it is not. Councillor Imafidon agreed with this as when he went to view the
proposal, he did struggle to park even though the pub was not open at this time.

e Councillor Marks asked if there had been any noise complaints at the pub within the last 3
years? Mr Johnson responded that there has not been an upheld complaint but there are
neighbours attached that were not suited to buying a house attached to a 200-year-old pub
and they did raise complaints, with Environmental Health monitoring the sound and said
there was not a complaint to be made. Councillor Marks asked if this was one neighbour

Page 15



and not anyone else? Mr Johnson replied that it was a difficult neighbour who influenced
other neighbours but not recently and they have not fallen foul of anything.

Councillor Marks asked if the acoustic fence is for the car park so it is really for transient car
noise as opposed to music which you would expect to find in a pub? Mr Johnson confirmed
that the acoustic fence is purely for the predominantly now electric hybrid arriving on the
near silent tarmacked planings that have been put down as a base, so it is ready to go and
support his business.

Councillor Mrs French asked if the proposal is approved when is it likely to be installed? She
added that she knows the site as it sits in her County Council Division and many years ago,
approximately 15 years ago, there were serious noise complaints but when Licensing
undertook a site inspection it was actually the priest hole within the private property which
was butting onto the wall and she believes this priest hole had to be filled in so she is not
concerned about that type of noise it is just the car park. Mr Johnson responded that he
does not think it was a priest hole but a void which became the porch for the adjoining
property and was central to a single building but they did not pay their fire insurance and the
right hand side was burnt to the ground, which was later half built back as a forge so the
priest hole was a void and people have wonderful stories about what it was. He stated that
once they know what they are dealing with he will get some quotes, with the last quote he
got pre-Covid was for £27,000 plus VAT and timber prices did triple, and what the next
steps will be as it is a big investment. Councillor Connor stated that what Councillor Mrs
French is saying when is it envisioned starting once he has undertaken investigation. Mr
Johnson responded that he would like to commence this year, within 6 months. Councillor
Mrs French stated this is good as members have considered this proposal previously but
made the point that if approved there should be 2 years to undertake the work anyway.
Councillor Gerstner asked if when the pub is closed is the car park locked and when it is
open it is open and closed half an hour before opening and closure of the pub? Mr Johnson
confirmed this to be correct and he would like his staff to park at the furthest part of the car
park from the pub, which is the area that is less convenient for customers and the chef and
kitchen staff will arrive earlier so the gates will be opened when the staff arrive and be
closed when the staff leave and it is not in his interest to leave his land open to problems.
Councillor Hicks asked if this land had been used in the Summer months for beer festivals
and outside events as it could, in his view, be repurposed. Mr Johnson responded that the
reality is that they would not require it to be a car park to do this as they could apply for a
TENSs licence, however, he has no interest in doing this and they only want to park cars on it
and it cannot be serviced from the pub as a beer garden as you have to walk 100 metres
down the road, then across the front and into the pub to get a drink or go to the toilet so it
would not be practicable.

Councillor Connor reminded members that they are not debating the established use of the car
park and only if a 2-metre acoustic fence is appropriate and made the point that the Environmental
Health Officer has no issues.

Proposed by Councillor Imafidon, seconded by Councillor Marks and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’'s recommendation, with the update to Condition

1.

P116/23 F/YR23/1016/0

LAND EAST OF 54 QUEENSWAY, CHATTERIS
ERECT 1 X DWELLING (OUTLINE APPLICATION WITH ALL MATTERS

RESERVED)

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Maria Hobbs, the applicant, and lan Gowler, the agent. Ms Hobbs expressed the view that this
proposal offers a chance for a property to be built in an established residential area providing

Page 16



Chatteris with another home it vitally needs, which would be a modest home and offer the chance
for a self-build or someone to look to start out on the housing ladder either as an owner or renter.
She feels that not every home needs to be a 4-bedroom house and the property proposed is the
sort that is lacking, enabling a good strong start for people coming onto the housing market or
those looking to downsize.

Ms Hobbs expressed the view that Chatteris is ever expanding and whilst there are plenty of new
build estates not everyone wants to live on a new estate, with the expansion of Chatteris
commercially and residentially she believes that smaller and modest builds like the one she
proposes are just as important as brand-new estates. She stated that she runs the Green Welly
Café and Garden Centre, a local business run by a local businesswoman, and she has lived here
all her life, with economic times being hard through Covid, the cost of living, cost of fuels and
materials and she had to close the motel and change it into residential flats due to changes in the
economy and running an independent business is now harder than ever and she has had to adapt
to the challenges.

Ms Hobbs stated that to move forward with the next stage of developing her garden centre she
requires money, banks and private funding are synonymous with long-term debt and it is not
sustainable for her to build her own business and by obtaining planning she can provide a property
into the pool and also take her business to the next level. She feels it is important to note that the
neighbours have not raised an objection to the proposal, there has already been development in
Queensway estate showing that the principle of development has already been established within
the area.

Ms Hobbs made the point that this is an outline application and as such the Council will have
control when it comes to the Reserved Matters application to ensure the property is built
sympathetically to the current street view.

Mr Gowler referred to the reasons for refusal, the first being the character of Queensway and, in
his view, as can be seen from the site plan the front of the proposed bungalow is slightly set
forward from No.54 but does follow the characteristic of that part of Queensway and is also set in
line with the property to the rear as it goes around the corner. He stated that in terms of the
amenity space for No.54, he notices a lot that properties carve their gardens off without permission
so this proposal could already have that garden separated off and be below the standard, but he
also appreciates that people with a small bungalow such as this proposal do not want big gardens
and he feels this space is suitable.

Members asked questions of Ms Hobbs and Mr Gowler as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French stated that she has visited the site and it is a small site but asked if
this application is approved in outline, what would the proposal be, such as one-bedroom or
two-bedroom? Mr Gowler responded that ideally it would be as the indicative drawing to
create a small one-bedroom bungalow, which he feels suits the plot size and that location
as the properties are bungalows along Queensway.

e Councillor Imafidon asked what the site is currently being used for because when he visited
the site it looked like there was a garage or disused structure on site. Ms Hobbs responded
that she owns the whole site and believes this structure belongs to the person in the existing
bungalow at present and this will be removed. Mr Gowler added that it is parking for the
bungalow which it would be proposed as part of the site plan to move the parking in front of
No.54 for that existing use.

e Councillor Gerstner asked would there be a car parking space for this proposal? Mr Gowler
responded that the proposal is outline but it is proposed that there are 2 car parking spaces
for the existing bungalow and 2 parking space for the new bungalow which fits with the
parking standards.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

Page 17



Councillor Gerstner asked if anything substantial had changed since the last application?
Gavin Taylor responded that in terms of the site and site conditions there have been no
changes and the application previously refused in May last year was an outline application
with all matters reserved, with this proposal being different apart from a slightly different
indicative block plan.

Member made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Gerstner made the point that Chatteris Town Council recommend refusal, they
are the local council and know what is going on in the area and he feels the committee
should be consistent as only last year it was refused, and the officer has confirmed that
there has been no change. He would go along with the officer's recommendation.
Councillor Marks stated that he visited the site, and he understands that it is a very tight
area, but it stands derelict at present and whilst it is an indicative plan that shows a one-
bedroom bungalow this is something that Chatteris and the District need now suiting
someone who wants to downsize, and it may release a family home. He stated that it has
off-street parking, and he is struggling to find anything wrong with the proposal, with the
proposal being in front of committee this time, it is in outline, and he feels he can support it.
Councillor Mrs French stated she visited the site; it is a mess and could certainly do with
something and whilst it is a tight site she is getting complaints from many elderly residents
who want one-bedroom bungalows and they do not exist. She referred to an application
approved at Rings End for a smaller plot than this.

Councillor Imafidon stated that when he visited the site his initial reaction was that it was a
small plot and how would a one-bedroom bungalow fit on the site but after a proper walk
around it is a deceptively large plot, and he feels it will be suitable for a bungalow. He added
that the fact that it has 2 parking spaces will not impact on the parking issues in the area
and the site is an eyesore at present, which is why he was asking the applicant about what
the site is used for. Councillor Imafidon stated that he is inclined to support the application
as it will tidy the area.

The Legal Officer reminded members that the Planning Code of Conduct in the Constitution
applies in this scenario and what it says is that if committee is minded to approve an
application for a development previously refused the proposer of the motion or the
Chairman should state what the significant change in the planning circumstances justifies
that approval before the vote is taken. He continued that the fact that it has come before
committee is not a legitimate planning change in circumstances.

Councillor Marks stated that there is a red line around a piece of land, and this is whether
members believe it is suitable to be built on rather than what the indicative plan there is
today and are member not saying today that this is a suitable piece of land that can be built
on. The Legal Officer stated that committee may well be saying this, and it is legitimate but
that is not a change in planning circumstances. Councillor Marks made the point that the
application is before committee now and he feels that the material change is that there are
now 7 people on the committee instead of officers looking at the proposal, which is why
members are on the committee to be accountable for what their thoughts are, and the
question is the land is suitable for development. The Legal Officer responded that the
Constitution says what is does and was approved by the Council, with the public having a
right to expect consistent planning decisions whether taken by the officer or by members
and it is a duty of members of this committee to give planning reasons why thing have
changed.

Councillor Imafidon questioned why it is not a relevant reason that it is now before
committee when it was not determined by committee previously? The Legal Officer
responded that the public are entitled to see consistent planning decisions being taken and
it is not right to expect the public to investigate whether that decision was taken by
committee or by officers and a change of circumstances would be a change of policy or
Government guidance or in the development itself. Councillor Imafidon stated that he
appreciates this, but members of the committee are elected to represent the constituents so
feels this is enough reason for it to be reconsidered. The Legal Officer made the point that

Page 18



members of Planning Committee represent the Council as a whole and decisions are taken
in the name of the Council, with the Constitution being in the name of the Council, and it is
not for individual committees to say they take a different view than officers or a previous
committee without giving good reasons for doing this.

Councillor Mrs French made the point that the reason there is a Planning Committee is
because there are controversial planning applications and when members want to go
against the officer's recommendation, they are not questioning their professionalism but it is
a difference of opinion, which members are entitled to have. Troy Healy stated that the
recommendation for refusal was under delegated powers taken previously in May 2023 and
it would have been reviewed by the Chairman at the time as officers do not move forward
with delegated refusals without the Chairman’s approval. Councillor Connor stated that he
did look at the site about 3-4 months ago due to it being proposed to be refused under
delegated powers and he was told by officers that it had been withdrawn. Troy Healy
clarified that the previous delegated decision was in May 2023 so it may have been an
intervening additional application that was withdrawn.

lan Gowler was permitted to speak again by the Chairman and stated that he believes the
Chairman is talking about this current application and what happened was the application
was referred to the Chairman as it was recommended for refusal and at the same time there
was an additional letter of support received, which took it to the 6 letters of support, which
meant that it was submitted to committee and the Chairman did not need to make this
decision. Councillor Connor thanked Mr Gowler for reminding him and confirmed this to be
the case.

Councillor Marks stated this is a triangle of land with a red line around it and has previously
been refused and members are being told there are no material changes, but he cannot see
how a triangle of land can be changed so this should have been refused beforehand if
members are not allowed to go against officer's recommendation. The Legal Officer
responded that he does not know the reasons it has come to committee this time other than
what is in the report itself, but he is not saying that members cannot approve this application
but if it is approved then the committee is in conflict with its own Constitution and there may
be consequences if there are complaints afterwards. Gavin Taylor stated that the planning
application is before committee as the Scheme of Delegation in the Constitution sets out
that if an application receives 6 or more letters contrary to that officer recommendation it
automatically triggers it being considered by committee, with there being no caveat to say
unless it was previously refused and the previous decision is a significant material
consideration as the Legal Officer has pointed out.

Councillor Gerstner stated he is sympathetic to having a 1-bedroom bungalow on a plot of
land, there is a great need throughout the whole of Fenland for this type of property, but he
feels that officers have got the recommendation correct and made the point that Chatteris
Town Council have recommended refusal, and the planning application has not materially
changed since it was refused last time.

Councillor Hicks expressed the view that there seems to be either a loophole in the Local
Plan or a box ticking exercise because committee seem to have their hands tied in voting
another way.

Councillor Connor pointed out that Councillor Carney has no objections to the application,
and he assumes he might be the local councillor.

Councillor Marks asked to hear the reasons for refusal again. Gavin Taylor advised that
there are 2 reasons for refusal and read them out from the report.

Councillor Mrs French referred to the comments from the Council’s Environmental Health
Team who note and accept the submitted information and have no objections and highways
is for reserved matters so there are 2 important bodies who have no issues. She feels the
corner is in a bad state and this development would enhance it and not be detrimental.
Councillor Marks added that if this is an elderly or disabled bungalow some people do not
need a great deal of land and if next door has a problem with the loss of land why are they
not cultivating or doing something with this site instead of which it is a rough piece of land.
He feels the land is better being used and tidied up as opposed to what it is at the present

Page 19



time.

e Troy Healy stated that he believes the applicant is the neighbour at no.54. He advised that
in terms of garden sizes if No.54 was proposed with the proposed garden size on this
application it would not have passed the policy test.

e Councillor Imafidon referred to LP16 and LP2, with LP16 enhancing the character of the
area and the current state of that land, in his view, is derelict and there is a problem in
Fenland, Wisbech in particular, of getting landowners to maintain their land and the Council
has no powers. Councillor Connor stated that this is not a material consideration. Troy
Healy advised that there are powers under Section 215 to require the maintenance of land
that has got a negative effect on amenity. Councillor Imafidon stated that he has never seen
this enforced and questioned who enforces it and rather than see this land derelict he would
like to see it developed.

e Councillor Mrs French reiterated that just because this Planning Committee has a different
view and interpretation from officers, it does not take any professionalism away from officers
or is a criticism, but members believe that site could be developed modestly.

e Gavin Taylor stated that he would be concerned if substantial weight was given to the
condition of the site as it could lead to a number of sites becoming derelict and justifying
planning permission. He added that the question about who could accommodate this
dwelling in terms of its target market is unknown this is an outline application only
indicatively drawn and there is no demonstration that it would meet current M4(3) or M4(2)
standards on Building Regulations for accessible and adaptability.

Proposed by Councillor Gerstner to refuse the application but no seconder was forthcoming.

Proposed by Councillor Marks, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED, subject to authority being delegated to officers to apply
reasonable conditions in conjunction with the Chairman, Proposer and Seconder.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel
under LP16 that the land could be used for a high-quality modest dwelling, it removes an untidy
and unsightly site and not everyone wants large gardens in terms of amenity space.

(Councillor Connor declared that he knows the applicant from many years ago when he rented a
scrap yard at Chatteris from her late father, but he has not spoken directly to her in the past 20
years and he is not predetermined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Marks declared that his business hired a machine to the nursery that is connected to
the applicant’s business, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an
open mind)

(Councillor Marks declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on Planning
Matters, that he is the District Councillor for Chatteris and Manea and does attend Chatteris Town
Council meetings but takes no part in planning)

P117/23 F/YR23/1036/F
LAND SOUTH EAST OF THE CHASE, GULL ROAD, GUYHIRN
ERECT 3 X DWELLINGS (SINGLE-STOREY, 4-BED) WITH GARAGES

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members and drew attention to the update that had been
circulated.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure from
Derek Widdowson, an objector to the proposal. Mr Widdowson stated that he is speaking on behalf
of all the local neighbours affected by the proposal, adding that he lives at Copper Beeches which
would be one of the main houses impacted by the dwellings. He stated that it is the fourth time that

Page 20



a planning application has been submitted and all applications to date have been refused by the
Planning Committee citing the reason that the proposal is back land development, with the first
application going to appeal to the Secretary of State which was also rejected.

Mr Widdowson explained that the current application has been changed to three four-bedroomed
detached single storey dwellings and the proposed build is still on back land and has been sited
closer to his property, with the site being landlocked, is behind existing buildings and would have
no street frontage. He added that the access is very limited and would not be in the best interest of
Gull Road, with Gull Road being busy with heavy haulage and farm traffic, and this will not be
assisted by new residents and service vehicles which would have to turn into a narrow access road
by making a left turn from Gull Road causing some vehicles to use the offside lane of Gull Road
against oncoming traffic.

Mr Widdowson added that the 40mph speed limit is not adhered to and the access road itself is
only single access in width and is unlit, with it also narrowing to the width of a gate between the
corner of his property and his neighbour and there is not option for a passing place which will
mean vehicles need to back up. He stated that his two main bedrooms adjoin the access road
which, in his view, will be affected by noise and light pollution from persons entering or leaving and
he currently has a view of an extensive field which is shielded by a row of conifers on its western
edge but that is not shown on the plan.

Mr Widdowson added that the dwellings would be intrusive and would block out his natural light in
his property, with the land in question being higher than his ground floor and with current
regulations it would force any builders to raise the ground floor to negate the issue of flooding
which in turn will mean that his property will be overlooked and dwarfed by all three developments.
He explained that his hedge is 7ft high, however, his privacy will still be compromised within his
house and garden with the possibility of at least 10 additional vehicles from dusk to dawn with their
headlights shining into his living room and main rear bedroom.

Mr Widdowson expressed the view that a further problem to consider maybe the water table as the
land in question is higher and, therefore, may have an impact on his drainage and biodigester. He
stated that he has no problems with the expansion of housing and has not objected to other
applications which front onto Gull Road in keeping with a linear appearance and it is his
understanding that previous applications to build on back land elsewhere on Gull Road have been
rejected, with no new amenities having appeared in Guyhirn since the current building projects
have been agreed and he expressed the opinion that he wonders at what point more housing in
Guyhirn will become unsustainable.

Mr Widdowson stated that his neighbours also share the same concerns that there may be more
planning applications submitted for The Chase and, in his opinion, if the application is approved
then there will be trees felled causing more light pollution and the proposed back land development
would only affect his neighbours and those that back onto the development. He stated that
collection of refuse is also something that will need to be considered and he questioned whether
the refuse collection will take place via an unadopted road and like The Chase where the bins
appear to be on constant display on Gull Road.

Mr Widdowson added that at the same time as this application it would appear that another
application has been submitted to the Camping and Caravan Club to use the land as a camping
site and the Council’'s Enforcement Officer has advised that the organisation has complete
autonomy over such applications although their rules have to be observed.

Members asked Mr Widdowson the following questions:
e Councillor Imafidon stated that according to the officer’s report in 2006 there was an
application for bungalows which was approved for the site, and he asked Mr Widdowson
when he moved to his home? Mr Widdowson stated that he moved into his home in 2010

Page 21



and he made the point that the bungalows that Councillor Imafidon is referring to maybe his
property and that of his neighbours.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Shanna Jackson, the agent. Mrs Jackson stated that the proposal is for three bungalows in Flood
Zone 1 and within the built-up area of Guyhirn, with the scheme being recommended for refusal on
the grounds of the principle of development and that the proposal will be out of keeping with the
character of the area. She added that with regards to the principle, LP3 identifies Guyhirn as a
small village where infill development is supported, and she made reference to the aerial photo
which shows that the site is within a built-up area with buildings on either side and, in her opinion,
the proposal meets the definition of infill and can, therefore, be supported by LP3.

Mrs Jackson made the point that this position is supported by Appeal Inspectors across the
country where it has been confirmed that development can be considered as infill if it is limited by
the other development around it. She stated that since the principle can be considered as
acceptable, the concerns with regards to the form and character are less pertinent and there are
clear examples of buildings to the rear of the frontage development along Gull Road and,
therefore, the proposal would not appear out of keeping with the surroundings.

Mrs Jackson made the point that the scheme is for bungalows which is not only a rare and
beneficial opportunity which results in the development being barely visible from a public viewpoint.
She added that on the basis that the proposal would not be seen from a public vantage it cannot
be asserted that the proposal would be visually harmful or incongruous and, in her view, no harm
is caused to the character and appearance of the area.

Mrs Jackson stated that consideration has been given to the scheme in light of the historic refusals
on the site and it has been redesigned in a way which is now felt to address those concerns which
were previously raised and given the fact that the proposal is for a single storey development, no
harm will be caused as a result of overlooking or overshadowing towards neighbouring dwellings.
She stated that there are significant benefits as a result of the proposal which will provide new
housing in Guyhirn and help to support local existing amenities, including the pub and primary
school. and the scheme will also provide a benefit by providing bungalows which is becoming a
rare occurrence in Fenland given the flood risk implications for the district.

Mrs Jackson expressed the opinion that the scheme overcomes the previous reasons for refusal
and it complies with the policies of the development plan and she asked committee to support the
proposal.

Members asked Mrs Jackson the following questions:

e Councillor Imafidon asked how many similar developments there are in the area? Mrs
Jackson stated that on the aerial photo it shows a number of dotted back land pockets of
development.

e Councillor Gerstner asked how far from the development is the main road? Mrs Jackson
stated that if the question posed is in relation to highways implications, she can advise that
the access is going to be upgraded at the entry point and, therefore, it will be 5 metres wide
by 10 metres which will allow vehicles to pass and there is also a turning head within the
site which will allow vehicles to enter and exit. Councillor Gerstner asked whether a dustcart
would be able to access the site? Mrs Jackson stated that she cannot be 100% certain that
a dustcart could access the site, however, the residents could wheel their bins to the front,
or a private bin collection service could be arranged. Councillor Gerstner asked whether the
road would be fully adoptable? Mrs Jackson stated that it would be a private driveway, but
the first section would be made up to the standards of the County Council as that is the
point where it meets the highway. Councillor Gerstner stated that if the bin collection was
not achievable by the Council, then a private contractor would undertake the service. Mrs

Page 22



Jackson explained that it is her understanding that there is an appeal decision which states
that it is unreasonable to enforce the RECAP guidance which is the 30 metre distance for
residents to wheel their bins and as a result of that she is aware that the Council has been
approving schemes where the distance is beyond the 30 metres and, therefore, taking that
into consideration it would be acceptable in policy terms for future residents to wheel their
bins to the public highway to be collected. She added that if that was a problem and
members were of the opinion that storage of bins on the public highway would be an issue
then she would be willing to accept a condition to secure a private bin collection contract to
stop the bins being left on the highway and each plot has ample storage space for the three
bins.

e Councillor Marks asked whether there is already a property there? Mrs Jackson stated that
it is the host dwelling, The Chase, where the applicants live and the site in question is the
extended garden area of the applicants.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French stated that she knows the site well as it forms part of her County
Council Division and having reviewed the previous reasons for refusal it is clearly back land
development. She added that it is evident that a lot of development in the area is all
frontage development which all look very nice, however, in her view, it would appear that
the owner of the site missed an opportunity in 2006 where they had reserved matters
planning permission which was approved but they did not act on it and the officer’s
recommendation with the current proposal is correct.

e Councillor Connor stated that since 2014 when the Local Plan was introduced, on that site
there have been a number of refusals and appeals dismissed and apart from one dwelling
he can see no difference as the current proposal is still back land development and he
wholeheartedly agrees with the officer's recommendation.

e Councillor Marks expressed the view that he agrees that the proposal is back land
development and when considering the other development which has taken place in
Guyhirn along the road which have all been refused he cannot support the application
before the committee today.

e Councillor Gerstner stated that he endorses the points that other members have made, and
he added that he has also taken into consideration the views of Wisbech St Mary Parish
Council and he will fully support the officer's recommendation.

Proposed by Councillor Gerstner, seconded by Councillor Hicks and agreed that the
application be REFUSED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

P118/23 F/YR23/1052/F
LAND SOUTH OF 200 COATES ROAD, COATES
ERECT 2 X DWELLINGS (2-STOREY 5-BED) AND RETENTION OF A
CONTAINER, INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING OUTBUILDINGS

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members and drew attention to the update that had been
circulated.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Shanna Jackson, the agent. Mrs Jackson stated that the proposal is for 2 two-storey dwellings and
at 10.3 of the officer's report it states that the principle of development is acceptable, and the
concerns lie with the scale of the proposal and the impact on the neighbouring dwellings. She
added that the applicant are long standing residents of the local area and Swann Edwards were
appointed to design forever homes for them and their son and family.

Mrs Jackson made the point that the designs are bespoke to the needs of the applicants and their

Page 23



son and the dwellings will meet the everchanging needs of the users which is something that is
supported by the National Design Guide. She stated that from previous applications she
understands that there were concerns with the design and general form of the dwellings and,
therefore, steps have been taken to revise them as much as possible whilst still meeting the design
and accommodation criteria for the family and whilst the dwellings may appear to be longer than
other properties in the area, in her opinion, that is not harmful, and they extend no further into the
countryside than the existing development to the west or that approved to the east, and they will
not be visible from a public viewpoint.

Mrs Jackson stated that the roofscape of the dwellings has been broken up and there is variation
in the width of the buildings which results in giving the dwellings character and they do not appear
bulky. She advised the committee that the scheme provides over and above the necessary garden
land and provides sufficient parking and it will also secure the long-term care and maintenance of
the existing lake to the rear as it will form part of the extended garden area for the dwellings.

Mrs Jackson explained that the scheme provides over and above the amenities required within the
Local Plan, there are sufficient gaps between the buildings as well as maintaining an internal
roadway to the site and, in her opinion, the scheme does not represent over development and as
the scheme proposes two dwellings it promotes a better and more efficient use of land which is
promoted in Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. She stated that she
understands that there are concerns with regards to the application representing an overbearing
impact and resulting in loss of light to the neighbouring properties to the west, however, there is an
existing hedge on the boundary which is approximately 7.6 metres high which is significantly
higher than the eaves height of plot one which is 5.4 metres.

Mrs Jackson added that since the eaves height of the proposal will be lower than the existing
hedge and the side elevation of plot 1 would be no closer to the common boundary of the existing
hedge there will be no additional impact on neighbours in her view. She made the point that she
would also like to make the point that there have been no objections from any of the neighbouring
properties or any technical consultees and she would consider that the scheme is an appropriate
form of development which provides high quality homes in a sustainable location and makes
efficient use of land.

Mrs Jackson stated that the application is compliant with policies LP3, LP12 and LP16 of the local
plan, the National Design Guide and Section 11 of the NPPF and she asked the committee to
support the application.

Members asked Mrs Jackson the following questions:

e Councillor Gerstner stated that there was a 2 storey four bedroomed dwelling approved in
2017 and he asked why that was built? Mrs Jackson stated that was for a single dwelling
and the applicants have decided that they wish to build two dwellings on the site.

e Councillor Gerstner asked whether the pond is owned by the applicant? Mrs Jackson
confirmed that it is. Councillor Gerstner stated that in the officer’s report at 5.1 it states that
there will be the removal of the public access to the pond, and he questioned how that
access is going to be possible. Mrs Jackson stated that she does not know why it states that
it is a public pond due to the fact that it is within the applicant’s ownership and to her
knowledge it is not a public pond. She explained that if you review the site plan then there is
an access roadway which leads all the way down to the pond and she added that everything
is within the ownership of the applicant and, therefore, if it was a concern, a gate could be
included. Mrs Jackson stated that the applicants wanted to keep the access there so that
they could access the area for maintenance purposes.

e Councillor Gerstner asked whether the public have access at the present time to the pond?
Mrs Jackson stated that to her knowledge they do not as it is a private pond. Councillor
Gerstner stated that the question needed to be asked as it is a concern as there is a
difference between a public highway, a right of way and a public access onto private land as

Page 24



they are all different. He asked whether there is anybody fishing there at the current time?
Mrs Jackson stated that there is nobody fishing there as it is private pond.

Councillor Marks referred to the presentation screen and asked for clarity with regards to
the aerial photo. Mrs Jackson explained that the brown houses shown on the drawing she
supplied to officers would be taken from ordnance survey data which is different to what has
been carried out on site. Councillor Marks asked for the clarity that the intention is to
remove the trees, fence, and hedgerow on the top boundary? Mrs Jackson stated that will
be the intention and only where it is affected by plot 1.

Councillor Imafidon stated that there appears to be a new dwelling which is not shown on
the map. Mrs Jackson stated that ordnance survey has not been updated yet. The
committee reviewed the presentation slides and identified that photographs 6 and 7
demonstrate the hedge which is going to be removed is beside that and, therefore, there is
going to be an element of overlooking.

Gavin Taylor drew members attention to the aerial photograph and referred the committee
to the first dwelling that you come to after the frontage development with has three Dorma
windows in the roof and that dwelling identifies with the photograph shown earlier and is the
new dwelling not detailed on the site plan which was provided by the applicant. He stated
that it was new dwelling which was considered under the previous planning application and
the belt of trees that can be seen are proposed for removal and he added that according to
the plan they are 25ft in height.

Councillor Marks stated that the trees that are to be removed are against the fence and he
asked whether that means that the top of the proposed new build is without the band of
trees? Gavin Taylor confirmed that it is the case.

Councillor Gerstner asked for clarity with regards to the applicant assuming residency in
one of the dwellings? Mrs Jackson stated that plot 2 is going to be lived in by the applicants
and plot one is going to be occupied by the applicants’ son and family.

Councillor Gerstner asked whether there is the intention to replace any of the trees that are
removed? Mrs Jackson stated that there are no plans within the submission but there is the
scope to include that within a landscaping scheme.

Members asked officers the following questions:

Councillor Gerstner stated that he would like officers to clarify the issue concerning the
access to the pond. Gavin Taylor stated that there is no public access to the pond as itis a
private access point as it is a private fishing lake. He added that it appears that it is a
misunderstanding by the Highway Authority.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Gerstner stated that he has reviewed the previous refusals and when considering
the application which came before the committee last year, he can see that nothing has
changed, and the committee need to be consistent.

Councillor Marks stated that he has concerns with regards to how close it is to the
boundary, and it seems very narrow and pushed in and he would feel happier if the bottom
property was further along. He added that the trees are being removed which currently
provide shielding to the properties behind it and at the top and he questioned whether this is
a quality build or is there just the ambition of trying to push something in.

Councillor Gerstner asked whether there have been any significant changes between the
current proposal and the last application which was refused? Gavin Taylor stated that
officers have concluded that the reasons for refusal have not been overcome with this latest
planning application in terms of its relationship to existing properties and it inter relationship
with one another and its general form and scale and massing. He added that there have
been some amendments, but they are not significant enough to overcome officers’
concerns.

Councillor Hicks stated that he is not convinced that enough has changed and on balance
he feels that he cannot support the proposal.

Councillor Connor stated that something could be put on that site, but he is not content with

Page 25



the removal of 25 trees as it would have an adverse impact on the other houses in the area.
He added that on planning balance he will support the officer's recommendation.

e Councillor Gerstner stated that he has reviewed the officer’'s executive summary, and it is
contrary to the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan which has just been introduced. He added
that he agrees with the view of the Chairman and agreed that something smaller scale
would possibly be looked at more sympathetically.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that something could go there but the size of the proposed
dwellings is not suited to the site. She expressed the view that having read about the trout in
the pond she feels that the pond is a bit of a red herring and, therefore, it should be made
clearer about whether it is a public pond and if it is then it should not be included within the
application. Councillor Mrs French made the point that officers have made the correct
recommendation and added that the applicant could consider something slightly smaller
even if that is just one dwelling.

e Councillor Imafidon stated that he also agrees that something should be on that site and
agrees with the point that Councillor Marks made that when the conifers are removed the
dwelling would be built right up against the fence and overlook the other property. He made
the point that he does agree that something should be there, however, not the current
proposal.

e Gavin Taylor confirmed that the public right of way to the pond is not identified as such.

Proposed by Councillor Gerstner, seconded by Councillor Imafidon and agreed that the
application be REFUSED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

(Councillor Gerstner declared that he knows the applicant but has had no dealings him for over 5
years and he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillors Mrs French and Hicks declared, under Paragraph 2 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that they had been lobbied on this application)

P119/23 F/YR23/1072/RM

45 WESTFIELD ROAD, MANEA

RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION RELATING TO DETAILED MATTERS OF
ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE PURSUANT TO
OUTLINE PERMISSION F/YR21/1141/0 TO ERECT 2NO DWELLINGS (1 X 2-
STOREY, 3-BED AND 1 X 2-STOREY, 4-BED SELF-BUILD), AND THE
FORMATION OF AN ACCESS AND WIDENING OF AN EXISTING ACCESS,
INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from lan
Gowler, the agent, and Nick Price, the applicant. Mr Price stated that he would like to build two
quality self-build homes which would be one for his parents and one for his family, which includes
four children. He explained that his old, dilapidated house is beyond economic repair, and he
stated that he currently has buckets catching rainwater in both the kitchen and his son’s bedroom.

Mr Price made the point that he hopes he does not have to spend another winter in the house due
to the cold and damp conditions causing his children to become ill and he aims to work with the
developers from the mill development site which is further up the road and to replace a storm drain
which runs alongside his plots which will solve the issue of flooding on Fallow Corner Drove. He
added that the site will create a footpath for pedestrians to use around the corner and provide a
wider visibility splay for motorists.

Mr Price stated that with regards to the concerns raised, in his opinion, he does not feel that there
will be a negative impact on neighbouring dwellings, and at the present time there are large 30ft

Page 26



high conifers on the neighbouring property which provide a separation from his two plots. He
stated that the sun rises in the rear, in the gardens of the neighbours’ properties and sets in the
front.

Mr Gowler referred to the presentation screen and made reference to the overbearing nature of the
proposed dwellings, making the point that in photograph two it shows large leylandii trees which
are close to the windows of the bungalow and the proposed dwelling is 5 metres away from the
exiting bungalow and the trees are on the neighbouring property and will, therefore, be retained.
He explained that he has tried to keep that property as close as possible to the indicative layout
that was provided to the committee so that there is no real change from the outline application to
what is before the committee.

Mr Gowler made the point that one of the benefits to the development includes the introduction of
the footpath which goes around the corner and also the intention of the applicant to try and
improve the issue of surface water situation along Fallow Corner Drove. He expressed the opinion
there have been changes made to the development in order to try and mitigate all of the reasons
for previous refusals to the proposal and he would hope the committee can approve the
application.

Members asked Mr Price and Mr Gowler the following questions:

e Councillor Imafidon asked Mr Price for clarification with regards to what the area is like and
does it include a mixture of both residential and commercial premises. Mr Price explained
that he is currently living on the site, and it is mainly residential. Mr Gowler stated that
previously across the road from the site there had been industrial buildings and approval for
a dwelling on the site was given approximately 10 years ago and there is also a site under
development for two extra dwellings opposite the site.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Hicks stated that he was surprised to see the size of the site when he visited it
especially when considering how big it will be once the existing dwelling is removed. He
made the point that he sees the proposal as a natural progression of the village and, in his
opinion, there are no issues with the application, and he will support it.

e Councillor Imafidon stated that he is encouraged to hear that the applicant is going to
develop the site for his family to live in and for their betterment, health and wellbeing. He
added that there is already a dwelling on the site, the site is on the edge of the village and
the land appears to lie higher than that of the farmland adjacent to the plot which places it in
a better location in case of episodes of flooding. Councillor Imafidon stated that he will
support the proposal.

e Councillor Gerstner stated that he agrees with the opinion of Councillor Imafidon, and he
added that the main objection is overlooking of the neighbouring property. He expressed the
view that when the full plans are compiled then he would expect that there would be the
opportunity to mitigate against that by considering the layout, size, and direction of how the
two dwellings will sit.

e Councillor Mrs French made the point that the application already has outline permission,
and this is the Reserved Matters application before the committee. She added that there is
only one reason for refusal which is Policy LP16, and she added that she disagrees with
that as she feels that the proposal will tidy up the corner and be an enhancement to the
area.

e Gavin Taylor clarified the point made by Councillor Gerstner and stated that the application
is a detailed plan and contains the committed detail and layout of the dwellings. He
explained that this follows the outline application and, therefore, what is before the
committee is what is actually proposed.

e Gavin Taylor referred to the point made with regards to the trees by Councillor Hicks and
stated that the trees are located on the neighbours land and, therefore, there is a burden
which lies with those residents to ensure that the trees are maintained at that height and

Page 27



density and should the trees die then there would be the requirement to replant trees
immediately in order to try and screen their site off from the overbearing nature of the
dwelling. He made the point that he would be concerned to suggest that the trees apply
suitable mitigation as the development should mitigate its own impacts.

e Gavin Taylor added that with regards to the actual physical impact of overlooking, there are
no overlooking issues which have been raised due to the fact that the elevation gable that
faces onto the existing property is actually a blank gable wall and the issue is one of
overbearing and poor outlook to their amenity which is the reason for the proposed refusal.
He added that the application has been refused previously on those exact grounds and the
proposal has not changed in that respect. Gavin Taylor referred to the point made by
Councillor Mrs French concerning the fact that the proposal will tidy the corner off, and the
issue concerning the amenity impact and whether or not those residential amenity impacts
have been overcome through the latest scheme rather than how it will look on the street
scene as visual appearance was not raised as a concern previously in terms of character
harm. He stated that what is being considered is the amenity and the relationship between
the existing bungalow and the northern most plot on the site.

e Gavin Taylor stated that members will recall the legal advice that they were provided
previously concerning the reasons for refusal the last time. He added that the offer was to
take the previous application to committee, however, it was suggested that there was no
reason for the application to come before the committee due to the fact that the Chairman
had agreed to those refusal reasons previously and it is a significant material consideration
for members to reflect on.

Proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Imafidon and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against the officer’'s recommendation.

Members do not support the officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they do
not feel there would be an overbearing impact to the neighbouring property in accordance with
Policies LP2 and LP16 and feel that the application will be an improvement to the area and street
scene.

(Councillor Marks declared that he has had dealings with both the applicant and agent and took no
part for the duration of the discussion and voting thereon)

(Councillor Connor declared that he knows the agent from when he was a member of Doddington
Parish Council but does not socialise with him, and is not predetermined and will consider the
application with an open mind)

5.06 pm Chairman

Page 28



PLANNING COMMITTEE -enland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

WEDNESDAY, 3 APRIL 2024 - 1.00 PM L .
Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman), Councillor
| Benney, Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor R Gerstner, Councillor P Hicks and Councillor
S Imafidon,

Officers in attendance: Stephen Turnbull (Legal Officer), Troy Healy (Interim Head of Planning), Jo
Goodrum (Member Services & Governance Officer) and Gavin Taylor (Principal Development
Officer)

P120/23 PREVIOUS MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the 6 March 2024 were signed and agreed as an accurate record.

P121/23 F/YR23/0555/0
LAND NORTH OF LONGWAYS, 1 BACK ROAD, MURROW
ERECT 1 DWELLING (OUTLINE WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED)

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure from Peter
Humphrey, the agent. Mr Humphrey stated that Murrow is classed as a small village under LP3 of
the Local Plan with development of a limited nature and he made the point that the application is a
resubmission of a previous refusal, with, in his view, the current application addressing all the
previous reasons for refusal. He stated that the application will now have a new access point from
The Bank and the property faces The Bank and the County Council have confirmed on 4 March
that they have no objection to the proposal.

Mr Humphrey expressed the view that the application will finish off the development in the area to
match the extent of development opposite and it uses the drain as a natural stop line for
development as detailed within policies LP12 and LP16. He explained that he has had direct
discussions with the North Level Internal Drainage Board and the drain is cut through land which is
owned by the family and the drainage board wanted to create the new drain and the family gave
permission for this to take place and the landowners are happy to work with the drainage board.

Mr Humphrey stated that the drain is currently maintained with access from Back Road, and he
referred to the location plan where the drain access point can be identified. He added that the site
is currently used for domestic garden area including polytunnels and, therefore, the site is not
within open countryside or agricultural land and, in his opinion, the application will create a better
view as you enter the village of Murrow from Parson Drove rather than the view of polythene
tunnels of the rear elevation of Longways.

Mr Humphrey made the point that the Environment Agency have no objection to the proposal
provided that the flood risk assessment measures are adhered to. He stated that at the time that
the application was submitted to the Council on 22 June 2023, the site passed the sequential test
and unfortunately as eight months have passed in order to determine the application, officers have
now decided that it does not pass the sequential test as there is another plot available and he finds

Page 29



this disappointing.

Mr Humphrey explained that as agents they are not in control of when applications are going to be
approved and he expressed the view that agents are then penalised and in this case the
application was compliant at the time of submission. He referred to a Fenland District Council
Application F/YR22/1187/FDC in Parson Drove which was for an almost identical application for a
single plot which was also in Flood Zone 3 on the edge of the village and was approved within 7
weeks.

Mr Humphrey added that it had two plots approved in the village but were deemed irrelevant and
he made the point that they also had to use a renewable energy source to make the application
acceptable which is what has been included in the application before the committee today. He
concluded that the application is a logical plot at the end of the developed form of the village and
uses the existing drain as a natural boundary which will also enhance the view when entering the
village from Parson Drove, with the sequential test being deemed acceptable, and he asked the
committee to accept the application.

Members asked Mr Humphrey the following questions:

e Councillor Imafidon asked for clarity over the access point with regards to the location of the
speed limit signs. Mr Humphrey responded that it is within the 40mph zone. Councillor
Imafidon stated that the distance is quite minimal, and he questioned how close the access
point is to the 60mph zone. Mr Humphrey stated that the new access falls within the 40mph
zone and the speed limit has recently been lowered there but he is unaware of the distance.

e Councillor Benney asked Mr Humphrey to provide further clarification with regards to the
sequential test as he had stated that the proposal had originally passed the sequential test
and to now find that the application is being refused with one aspect being that of the
sequential test, in his opinion, is unfair on the applicant, agent and creates additional work
for officers. Mr Humphrey stated that at 10.14 of the officers report it states that ‘the
submitted Flood Risk Assessment sets out within the sequential test the approved planning
applications in Murrow as of the date of the FRA being completed and states whether the
development has either been completed or is under construction and this has been
compared to Fenland District Council records. The detail submitted is unfortunately now out
of date and applications have been granted since the submission.* Mr Humphrey added
that, in his view, officers have now identified that as a reason for refusal.

Members asked officers the following questions:

e Councillor Mrs French asked officers to confirm when the application was submitted and
validated? Gavin Taylor confirmed that the application was valid as of the 22 June 2023.

e Councillor Benney stated that when a sequential test is undertaken and passes how long
does it remain valid .Gavin Taylor stated that the point at which the application is
determined is when an assessment will take place to ascertain whether there are other sites
available to achieve the development at a lower area of flood risk and if information comes
forward during the course of determining the application then that does need to be given
weight.

e Councillor Gerstner stated that he accepts the site is in Flood Zone 3 and it had passed the
sequential test but that now appears not to be the case and he asked officers to provide
clarification. Gavin Taylor stated that he has nothing on record to evidence that officers had
concluded that the site had passed the test at the time, however, within the officers report it
does state that there is information which has come to light post submission which indicates
that it does not pass the sequential test because there are other sites reasonably available
in lower areas of flood risk that have been approved.

e Councillor Hicks asked a hypothetical question in that if planning permission was passed
with a sequential test in place, but before development is commenced the plans are
changed slightly so the application is resubmitted but another site has been identified, would
that application be refused because there is another site in the sequential test chain. Gavin

Page 30



Taylor clarified that if there is a live extant planning permission on a site and a subsequent
application is submitted on the same site for a slightly different development then significant
weight would be given to the fact that there is still an extant permission which is live and the
development could still be capable of implementation on the original application. He added
that in terms of the sequential test although it is yet to be delivered, the permission is still
extant and, therefore, would be a significant material consideration to weigh in favour of
approving a further development on the site.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Councillor Benney referred to the development in Wype Road in Eastrea which, in his
opinion, set the entrance to the village off very nicely. He expressed the view that things can
change which is not a negative thing and polytunnels are not pleasing to the eye when you
enter a village, adding that when considering the character of the area, personal taste
should be considered and, in his view, a dwelling on the site would enhance the entrance to
the village. Councillor Benney added that he is concerned with regards to the sequential
test, however, given the fact that it passed the test when it was first submitted and now
forms part of the reasons for refusal, there has been money spent by the applicant along
with the time spent on the application by the agent and officers continuing with an
application which has already passed the test to then go on and refuse it is, in his opinion,
would be unfair. He stated that with regards to the principle of development there is one
there and is a natural boundary with the dyke that is there and he added that if the
application had been for a greater number of dwellings then his view and opinion may have
been different. Councillor Benney expressed the view that he sees very little wrong with the
proposal and has concerns with regards to the sequential test, however, as it already
passed in June it should not be a block to development.

Councillor Imafidon stated that with regards to the access when he undertook a site visit
there was a dirt track which is not a very good access road and there is a steep incline and,
in his opinion, having the second access is a good idea. He added that the people who rent
the land out to house the polytunnels have included a gate in order that the dyke can be
accessed due to previous issues with trespassers on the land. Councillor Imafidon
expressed the view that development on the site would be a good idea so that the issue of
trespassers and anti-social behaviour does not occur again.

Councillor Marks stated that when considering the local distinctiveness and character of the
area, Murrow is a Fenland village, and most Fenland villages have one road in and one
road out with building off them and there are plenty of other villages within the area which
are much the same. He added that another reason for refusal is cited as the application fails
to reinforce the local identity and would adversely impact upon the street scene and he
questioned what the local identity is of any village, and, in his view, it is what houses are
there and it is whether they are new or old. Councillor Marks added that he does not see
any issue with the proposal, and he referred to the Policy LP16 where it states in the
officer’s report that the application would have an adverse impact upon the street scene and
he expressed the view that all street scenes change and for one dwelling he does not see
any issues with it at all.

Councillor Connor stated that the Highway Authority have stated that they have no objection
to the proposed development, however, it is unclear if the access track can be constructed
without earthwork encroachment. He made the point that if they cannot facilitate that then
there will be no development and he referred to 5.6 of the officers report where the Highway
Authority have stated that prior to commencement of the use of the development hereby
approved, visibility splays shall be provided on both sides of the new vehicular access and
shall be maintained free from any obstruction over a height of 600mm within an area of 2.4
metres x 2125 metres and, therefore, if members decide to approve the proposal against
the officers recommendation then that is something that could be conditioned. Councillor
Connor stated that the villages and towns are all changing and, in his view, that is a good
thing as progress needs to be made and cannot live in the past.

Gavin Taylor stated that he has measured where the 40mph sign is in relation to the site

Page 31



access which is around 90 metres and the Highway Authority do not have any objection on
that basis.

Gavin Taylor added that the application is an outline application with all matters reserved so
that matters of access would be a matter which is yet to be agreed and with regards to
considerations on the appearance of the village as you enter it, at the current time there are
no details with regards to the design and, therefore, that detail is not currently known
including the scale bearing in mind that it is in a high flood risk area so it maybe something
that members wish to consider. He stated that with regards to the sequential test and the
assertion over the test having been met, there is nothing on the file which shows that
officers ever agreed that the sequential test had been met and that appears to be an
assertion made by the applicant. Gavin Taylor added that at the present time the opinion of
officers is that the sequential test has not been met due to the fact that there are other sites
which are reasonably available at a lower area of flood risk. He made the point that with
regards to the point made concerning identity, the officer was referring more to the pattern
of development which is visible as you look along Back Road, which is more linear ribbon
type development with frontage dwellings and this is also the case along Murrow Bank on
the other side of the road as there is no back land development which is prevalent in that
location.

Councillor Mrs French stated that it is her belief that in an outline application access has to
be agreed at that time and not at a later date. Gavin Taylor stated that access does not
have to be committed and the Council can insist if they ask to do so within a month, but
there needs to be an indication of where the access is likely to be derived from. He referred
to the red outline drawing and explained that the red line would restrict the location points
where the access could be put through and officers have assessed the application based on
the proposal to put the access where it is proposed on the site layout plan which is deemed
to be acceptable and, therefore, the assumption is that if it was going to be approved and
then access details were then committed, the applicant would be taking a large risk to
depart form that as an approach as it could create uncertainty in terms of safety. Gavin
Taylor stated that all that is required is an indication of where it could be derived from.
Councillor Mrs French made the point that information differs from what she has been
advised over many years and she made the point that if the committee decides to approve
the application then the access has to be included.

Gavin Taylor stated that at the reserved matters stage it would include the details of access
which the Council would then have the opportunity to consider and consult on. Councillor
Connor stated that if access was changed significantly which it could be then would the
application have to come back to the committee as the Highway Authority opinion may then
be different. Gavin Taylor stated that not as far as the scheme of delegation is concerned,
unless it is called in, or there are objections or the Chairman requests for it to come to
committee. He added that if the Highway Authority had concerns then officers would
negotiate an improvement to the access arrangements until a satisfactory point can be
reached in order to approve, however, if it gets to the stage where officers cannot be
satisfied and there is no other option than to refuse the application on the technical aspect
then it would come back before the Chairman to consider whether or not it would need to
come back before the committee for determination.

Councillor Benney stated that he was also under the impression that access had to be
committed and he referred to another application where the application had three reasons
for refusal and the committee refused it on the grounds of access as committee were told
that access had to be committed at that point. He questioned when that change had come
into being because it would appear that members appear to be of the same understanding.
Gavin Taylor stated that when considering an application if the access appears to be
somewhat complicated then officers can ask for the detail and if that detail is not
forthcoming then officers can refuse the application on the basis that the applicant has failed
to demonstrate that an adequate access can be achieved to accommodate the development
and on this occasion the indicative layout demonstrates that a suitable access can be
achieved although it does need to be committed.

Page 32



e Councillor Imafidon stated that there are two polytunnels and behind one of them is where
the application site is and questioned whether access rights will be given to those users of
the polytunnels by the applicant. Gavin Taylor stated that it would a private matter and
nothing to do with the planning permission.

e Gavin Taylor stated that the application is recommended for refusal, and should members
decide to approve the proposal then they will need to provided planning reasons. He added
that with regards to the issue concerning flood risk, if the sequential test is deemed to have
been met, then the next stage will be to demonstrate that the exception test can be passed
as well, which is a two-stage process and stage one is to demonstrate that flood risk will not
be increased either on the site or elsewhere but also that there are wider community
benefits to the scheme that outweigh the flood risk.

e Troy Healy stated that you cannot apply a condition when dealing with the exception test.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Gerstner and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against the officer’'s recommendation with authority delegated to
officers to apply reasonable conditions.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel
that the proposal will not harm the character of the area and will be a benefit, as the sequential test
was passed in June and the land was deemed suitable then it should be suitable now and that the
sequential test can only be seen as a block to development.

P122/23 F/YR23/0753/F
LAND NORTH OF 6 SCHOOL LANE, MANEA
CONVERSION OF BARN TO FORM 1 X DWELLING (2-STOREY, 2-BED)

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure from
Shanna Jackson, the agent. Mrs Jackson stated that the application is for a barn conversion in
Manea and the principle of development is acceptable in accordance with policy LP3. She
explained that she has worked closely with officers to achieve the scheme before the committee
which has a recommendation for approval.

Mrs Jackson explained that the character of the existing barn has been respected and all external
alterations have been kept to a minimum and, therefore, the visual impact of the works will be
negligible. She explained that the ground floor windows will be obscured by the existing and
proposed boundary treatments and the proposed first floor windows which directly face
neighbouring properties will also be obscure glazed.

Mrs Jackson stated that the officer's report states that there will be no overlooking or loss of
privacy as a result of the development. She expressed the view that the proposal will provide a
generous garden and has ample parking and turning space and there have been no objections
received from any statutory consultees including the Parish Council and the application is also
acceptable in policy terms and she asked the committee to support the proposal.

Members asked Mrs Jackson the following questions:

e Councillor Marks stated that the word reinstate has been used and, in his opinion, double
glazed doors are not something which are reinstated, and he asked for clarification. Mrs
Jackson stated that it has not been a house previously but there were existing openings
there which are being reintroduced as part of the proposal. She referred to the front
elevation drawing and explained that there is small amount of boarding that is being
introduced to facilitate the door and the window next to it.

e Councillor Gerstner asked for the detail with regards to bin collection arrangements. Mrs
Jackson stated that she is unaware of the distance, however, the residents will be able to

Page 33



wheel the bins down the private driveway in order for them to be collected from the back
edge of the highway. She referred to a previous appeal decision where it was discussed
that if the bins need to be wheeled more than 30 metres then that is not something that
would be supported by the Planning Inspector and she added that she is comfortable that
adequate amenity is in place to comply with case law and the appeal decisions received.
Councillor Gerstner stated that his concern is that he has seen other developments where
bins can be left out early and collected days later after bin collection causing issues for
pedestrians, wheelchair and pram users. Mrs Jackson made the point that nobody can
control the behaviour of those residents and she added that all she can do is to ensure that
there is space on the site for the bins to be stored which there is.

Councillor Connor questioned whether the applicant would consider entering into a private
bin collection service to alleviate the concerns of the committee? Mrs Jackson stated that if
that was an essential requirement in order to gain approval it could be something to be
given consideration, however, she added that she would question whether it would be
reasonable to expect that given the fact that the application is acceptable in policy terms.
Councillor Hicks expressed the opinion that he does not feel that the distance that the
residents need to take their bins to the collection point is an excessive distance. Mrs
Jackson expressed the view that she does not think that the distance is excessive either
and there are so many cases in Fenland where residents are wheeling their bins further
than that to be collected.

Councillor Marks stated that he knows School Lane well and it does have a narrow footpath.
He asked Mrs Jackson whether there was the possibility of incorporating a bin storage point
by the entrance gate to the dwelling rather than a private bin collection which he does not
feel is a good idea. Mrs Jackson stated that she has control over the land to the west and,
therefore, a little pocket of land could be included for bin storage.

Councillor Benney asked whether the building has ever had any connection with agriculture
as the application description is a barn conversion but when looking at the houses in the
vicinity some of them in School Lane appear to look quite old and the building looks more
like a brick shed, in his opinion, rather than a barn. Mrs Jackson stated that she is not aware
of the history of the building which she stated was historic and is reasonably attractive as it
includes some old features on it.

Members asked officers the following questions:

Councillor Connor asked for clarification over the definition of a barn? Gavin Taylor stated
that there is no definition in planning terms as to what constitutes a barn.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Councillor Hicks expressed the opinion the officers have made the correct recommendation
of approval, with it being a building which definitely needs to be put back into use and at the
current time it looks like a house with bricked up windows rather than a barn. He made the
point that there is very good access to the site and, in his view, the bins can easily be
walked out for collection, and he will fully support the proposal.

Councillor Marks stated that he does not see any issue with the bins being left for collection,
adding that School Lane can be busy at school time with traffic and pedestrians. He
expressed the view that he is pleased to see the building being brought back into use
although he does find the definition of a barn to be somewhat unusual. Councillor Marks
added that his only concern is the centre of the village of Manea does appear to be suffering
from major flooding issues which he hopes can be overcome, however, he will fully support
the application.

Councillor Benney stated that he will support the application which has an officer
recommendation for approval, however, in his opinion, the access to the site is terrible but
the committee have determined other applications which have been refused where the
access point is worse than the current application. He made the point that the access is
poor, and the proposal will be detrimental to the house or bungalow which is next door and
he does not consider the application to be a barn as, in his view, it is a brick building,

Page 34



however, as it is policy compliant, he will approve it. Councillor Benney referred to the
previous application where the officers stated that it would be detrimental to the character of
the area, but, in his opinion, the current application appears to be cramming a dwelling into
where residents are going to be coming in and out of an access and he questioned whether
that is going to cause more harm than the previous application in Murrow. He expressed the
view that the proposal appears to have less qualities than the previous application which
had a recommendation for refusal and reiterated the point that he will support the proposal
because it meets with planning policy.

Councillor Hicks stated that he would rather reuse the building than redevelop on the site.
Councillor Imafidon expressed the view that it is a beautiful historic building already on site
and, therefore, the footprint will not be affected, along with flooding and traffic concerns. He
made the point that the access is a bit narrow, and he does have concern with regards to
bin collection day and whether pedestrians and wheelchair users will be impacted if they
have to negotiate bins left on the pavement. Councillor Imafidon stated that he believes that
those persons may have to use the road, however, it is his belief that it may already be
happening, but he welcomes the proposal, and he will support it as it will ensure a beautiful
old building is brough back into use. He expressed the opinion that is a solid building and
does not look to be an abandoned barn and whilst it is his understanding that it is currently
being used to store items, he welcomes the fact that it should be brought back into proper
residential use.

Councillor Marks stated that he welcomes the fact that the proposal is only for a small
dwelling and, therefore, the number of vehicle movements will not be significant. He added
that he agrees that the access is not ideal, however, had the proposal been for a far larger
dwelling then he would have had far more concerns. Councillor Marks made the point that
he will support the proposal as long as the issue with regards to the bin storage point can be
resolved.

Councillor Gerstner stated that it would appear that there are interested parties stating that
there are bats living within the current barn and asked whether there could be a condition
added that the applicant mitigates the issue by installing bat boxes in the near vicinity and
they have also raised concerns that there will be trees removed and, therefore, he would
also like to see a condition for those trees removed to be replaced.

Gavin Taylor stated that with regards to the point raised with regards to the concerns over
the bin collection, the County Council are the Waste and Mineral Authority and they have an
adopted RECAP guidance which is a document that outlines how dwellings should be
arranged in relation to bin collections and the guidance suggests that residents should not
have to move their bins more than 30 metres to a collection point and that refuse operatives
should not have to travel more than 25 metres to wheel the bin to the point of disposal. He
added that he has undertaken an estimated measurement on the site plan, and it would
appear that the distance is approximately 38 to 40 metres from the building to the pavement
and officers would not recommend a refusal of the application due to the fact that the
RECAP guidance has only been exceeded by 8 metres. Gavin Taylor made the point that
he has considered the points raised with regards to collection and as the agent alluded to
officers cannot dictate as to the behaviour of residents in their own environments including
the possibility that they may block pavements with their bins, however, he advised the
committee that to obstruct the pavement is a breach of the Highway Act. He made the point
that if members wish to include a bin collection strategy with the scheme as has been done
before where applications have been considered to be problematic, should members feel
that it meets the test of planning condition so that it is reasonable, necessary and
proportionately related then a condition could be secured to that effect, however, in his
opinion, given the scale of the development he feels that it is not necessary. Gavin Taylor
referred to the point made by Councillor Gerstner with regards to bats and birds and
explained that condition 3 requires a bat survey to be undertaken if development has not
commenced by July 2024 and condition 5 requires a scheme of bird and bat boxes which is
recommended in the protected species survey report which is to be submitted. He explained
that it would appear that there appears to be a good indication of what can be achieved with

Page 35



the scheme in terms of biodiversity enhancement and mitigation measures. Gavin Taylor
added that with regards to appearance, the application proposes the conversion of an
existing building which already sits within the street scene within the urban environment
whereas the previous application was for a brand-new dwelling and, therefore, the two
applications are distinctly different in terms of how they are assessed. He explained that
national policy tries to endorse the effective reuse of existing buildings and the reuse of the
embodied carbon which is in it and to not extend into the countryside and that is the
assessment which has been undertaken in terms of an effective reuse of an existing
building.

Councillor Connor stated that Mrs Jackson did state that some mitigation could be
implemented in terms of a bin storage area and that should be followed up.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Hicks and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

P123/23 F/YR23/0891/F

LAND SOUTH WEST OF 10 BRIMSTONE CLOSE ACCESSED FROM FEN VIEW,
CHRISTCHURCH

CHANGE OF USE OF FIELD TO PADDOCK LAND INCLUDING THE ERECTION
OF STABLE BLOCK AND FORMATION OF A NEW ACCESS AND
HARDSTANDING, INVOLVING CULVERTING A DRAIN

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members and drew their attention to the update report which
had been circulated.

Members asked officers the following questions:

Councillor Marks stated that when reviewing the report it makes reference to ‘occupation’
and he asked whether officers could clarify whether there is the intention for the stable block
to become living accommodation at any point in time as it appears to be a concern for some
of the local residents? He questioned whether it is going to remain as agricultural and not
have any form of occupation and then in time revert back to the Council on a technicality.
Gavin Taylor stated that the application is for a stable and paddock land and there is no
application for residential use. He explained that the application has to be assessed on the
basis of what it is being applied for and no assumptions can be made and there is nothing to
demonstrate that there is the intention of adding a dwelling on the site and, therefore, if any
application came in for such or if it occurred unlawfully then officers would assess that on its
merits at that time but currently the application is for the stable and paddock as described.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Councillor Imafidon stated that when he undertook a site visit, he was approached by
members of the public who voiced their concerns with regards to traffic movements and
other issues. He expressed the view that he does not think that the application will have an
adverse impact with regards to traffic movements due to the fact that it is a stable block and
there will not be large HGV vehicles visiting the site. Councillor Imafidon made the point that
the largest horse box he is aware of which carries a single horse is a 7.5 tonne vehicle. He
expressed the opinion that he does not see any issues with the proposal and the application
will make use of land which is not currently being used. Councillor Imafidon added that the
site and ditch are all overgrown and there is currently no maintenance of the land and, in his
view, it is a good application.

Councillor Mrs French expressed the view that she is extremely pleased that the Middle
Level Commissioners have responded to the application, and she welcomes their input
going forwards with applications.

Councillor Hicks stated that he knows that the residents have concerns that in time the
stable block could be converted to a dwelling but, in his opinion, he does not see how the
stable block could be converted as it has one room for hay and one for a horse and he

Page 36



cannot see how anyone would want to live somewhere like that anyway. He made the point
that if the applicant had wanted to develop houses on the land in the first place then he
would have expected the applicant to submit an application for houses in the first place.
Councillor Hicks stated that he will be supporting the proposal as it makes good use of land,
and he does not foresee any increase in traffic.

e Councillor Benney expressed the view that the installation of a culvert is going to cost a
significant amount of money just for the purposes of a stable block and paddock. He made
the point that he is sceptical that there will not be a future application submitted in the future,
however, the application before the committee is for a stable block and there will not be
excessive amounts of traffic movements for a horse and after reviewing the concerns of the
neighbours, he cannot see any issue with the proposal, and he will support it.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Imafidon and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

(Councillor Marks declared that he is a member of the Internal Drainage Board)

P124/23 F/YR23/1015/F
57 HIGH CAUSEWAY, WHITTLESEY
ERECT A TIMBER SHED TO FRONT OF EXISTING DWELLING INCLUDING
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SHED (PART RETROSPECTIVE)

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure from
Matthew Taylor, the agent and Richard Jones, the applicant. Mr Taylor stated that the officer’s
presentation shows photographs which do not reflect the shed and show the material for the shed
which has been covered for protection purposes. He explained that the framework was started a
few months ago until it was realised that planning permission was required, and the tarpaulin
covers the framework for all the walls, roof and slab base to protect it.

Mr Taylor explained that originally it did have a pitched roof on it, however, officers had advised
that it would be too imposing on the street scene, so it has been revised to a flat roof. He explained
that he has highlighted that parking in the vicinity is very bad and access for emergency vehicles is
extremely poor, adding that the local Bowls Club is located there along with the local Public House
which is busy, and the applicant is aiming to store one of his classic cars within the shed which will
enable him to take one car off of the road and keep it on his driveway which will then free up space
on the highway.

Mr Taylor explained that the flat roof is designed to sit slightly above the parapet wall and the view
of the street scene at the side of the road all will be the visible top capping of a fibre glass roof
which is likely to be a lead grey colour, a small amount of facia or gutter and the rest will be hidden
behind the wall. He made the point that over the last 30 years there has been shed and
greenhouses on the site and, in his view, planning permission should have been in place for those
erections, however, that has not been the case and over the course of time sheds do need
replacing and this is why the proposal is before the committee today.

Mr Jones stated that he moved into his property in 2002 and there have been structures in front of
the property for 25 to 30 years which included 2 greenhouses and garden sheds of various sizes.
He explained that he decided to erect a shed to house his classic car and motorcycle and he has
been erecting sheds and replacing them with more substantial structures over the last 16 years
and over that time there have been no complaints or objections from any neighbours from the
passing public.

Mr Jones made the point that he cannot understand why the application to build a better garage

Page 37



style structure will have a detrimental effect on the Conservation Area or the buildings opposite. He
explained that he decided last year to replace the timber shed with a more substantial better
looking garage style structure and by moving it further down to the southern end of the garden in
order not to impede the frontage of the house.

Mr Jones added that he appreciates that visually it does not look very nice, however,r it is just to
protect the floor and the timber which is already in place.

Members asked Mr Taylor and Mr Jones the following questions:

Councillor Imafidon asked what the footprint was of the existing shed that was there,
compared to the size of the proposed structure? Mr Taylor stated that it is only slightly
bigger and in the Design and Access Statement, the Heritage Impact Assessment shows
pictures from the Listed Building opposite which is looking down onto the shed and it is only
slightly wider. Councillor Imafidon asked for the measurements? Mr Jones explained that
the shed that was there impeded into the front of the house and the shed that he erected in
2015 had a pitch roof on it and it was slightly longer than the proposed shed and the width
was a bit narrower and, therefore, in length it is slightly a smaller footprint.

Councillor Gerstner referred to the proposed site plan and asked whether it would be
possible to move the shed back by 2 feet? He added that they have unequivocally stated
that the plan shows the correct measurements and dimensions and that it will be used for
storage. Councillor Gerstner added that for many years there has been a large van parked
there used for business and he cannot see the difference between having a van parked
there and having a shed on site, but his preference would be to see the shed there. He
expressed the view that he would like to see the shed moved back a little bit in order that it
is in keeping with the local area once the roof is added he does not see any issue with the
proposal.

Councillor Hicks asked how high the wall is in comparison to the height of the proposed
shed? Mr Jones stated that the wall is 2 metres high, and the proposed shed will be 2.2
metres high and, therefore, only slightly higher.

Councillor Benney asked whether Mr Jones has a conservatory or an extension at the rear
of the house? Mr Jones confirmed that it is a conservatory which was built in 2004.
Councillor Benney made the point that it would appear that Mr Jones has a side garden as
his property as there is no depth in the plot and asked Mr Jones whether it is a fair
assumption for him to say that he uses his garden for entertaining and for his personal use?
Councillor Benney expressed the view that if the shed was moved back then it would
encroach into the family’s personal space and affect the family and their lifestyle. Mr Jones
stated that the assumption of Councillor Benney is correct and as he has an expanding
family they would like to utilise the garden area and, therefore, the shed could not be moved
into that space.

Councillor Imafidon stated that the suggestion has been made with regards to moving the
shed so that it is then in line with the existing property, but he questioned whether that will
impact on the opening and closing of the shed? Mr Taylor stated that it would have an
impact as the doors are facing the driveway and the ground level also raises up quite a bit
into the garden and, therefore, the height of the building would then look taller. Councillor
Imafidon asked whether it would be possible to consider and up and over style garage door
and Mr Taylor explained that would then mean that the shed would end up taller as a
different lintel would need to be used whereas the proposal includes normal stable doors
which open out.

Members asked officers the following questions:

Councillor Marks stated that if the applicant had a 3-metre-high touring caravan which is a
mobile structure and can be moved at any time, which would be taller and coloured white
would there be any planning issue. Gavin Taylor stated that there would be no issue as a
caravan is mobile and the committee are considering lifetime developments and there is no
guarantee that the current occupier would occupy that property forever. He added that

Page 38



caravans come and go whereas structures are permanent which is the difference in this
case.

Councillor Mrs French asked whether there are no permitted developments on the site as it
does not have a lot of amenity space and the wooden shed that was there before has been
demolished and, in her opinion, it is just a replacement albeit slightly larger than what was
already there. She added that she does not understand why the application is before the
committee if they already have permitted development rights. Gavin Taylor stated that there
are no permitted development rights to erect structures forward of the principal elevation of
the dwelling which is the case with this application and, therefore, permitted development
rights do not exist for this structure and planning permission did not exist for the previous
structure either.

Councillor Marks stated that the applicant could choose to sell his home and move on
leaving the shed behind and he asked whether a condition could be added to state that
should that be the case that the shed would need to be dismantled. Gavin Taylor stated that
you would need to be convinced that there are reasonable grounds to put a personal
permission on and significant weight would have to be given to the personal circumstances
of the individual as to why you would be granting a shed in that location rather than
anywhere else. He added that at the last planning committee the issue of personalised
permissions was discussed and the National Planning Policy Framework does not look at
them favourably and the proposal before the committee is considering a permanent
structure for the use associated with the dwelling but how the shed is used is beyond the
control of the Council. Gavin Taylor made the point that even if a personalised permission
was added for the individual because of how they are operating today in reality they could
stop using that tomorrow for classic cars and just it for household storage and the Council
would have no control over that. He made the point that the committee are considering a
structure in association with the residential use of the dwelling. Councillor Marks asked
whether it would be possible to add a condition to the application to state that if the resident
chose to sell his property then he would have to take the structure down? Gavin Taylor
explained that if the committee felt that it would be a reasonable condition to impose to
place a burden on the resident to demolish a structure prior to vacating their property then a
condition could be imposed but officers would not recommend that course of action.
Councillor Marks expressed the view that he can only see a benefit where the resident can
remove his vintage car from the highway and take another off of the highway onto his
driveway.

Councillor Connor stated that the resident has had a shed on the site previously and has
lived there since 2002. He expressed the view that if you own a vintage car, it is imperative
that it is kept on your property in order for you to be able to maintain it and drive it when you
want to, adding that if the committee are going to approve the application, in his opinion, it
needs to be granted in its entirety and whilst he appreciates that circumstances can change
that nothing should be conditioned and sometimes there needs to be an element of trust
considered especially when a resident has lived there for 22 years.

Councillor Hicks stated that a wooden shed does not last indefinitely and, therefore, when it
needs replacing will the applicant need to submit a new application? Troy Healy stated that
as long as it is replaced liked for like then it is lawful to replace the structure.

Councillor Gerstner stated that he will support the application, but it must be built exactly to
the plan, and he would like to see the roof to be sympathetic to the surrounding area which
would satisfy him. Troy Healy asked Councillor Gerstner to clarify whether he feels that a
pitched roof would be more suitable? Councillor Gerstner stated that a pitched roof would
be way out of character as the height would be above the line of the building, however, he
would like to see something that could be colour matched to the brick wall. He added that
there are many types of fibre glassed roofs available nowadays and, therefore, something
that coordinates would be acceptable, but he does appreciate costs need to be considered
for the applicant.

Councillor Connor stated that the applicant and agent could work with officers if the
application is granted to come to a satisfactory conclusion.

Page 39



Councillor Imafidon referred to the executive summary in the officer’s report where it makes
reference to the Conservation Area and also the fact that the site is located near to a Grade
2 Listed Building and he asked how far away does the site need to be in order for it not to
be a relevant consideration? Gavin Taylor explained that there are no stipulations when
considering distances from Listed Buildings. He added that it is normally with regards to the
setting relative to the existing built form in the area and he made the point that there is more
information contained within the officer’s report at 5.4 from the Conservation Officer which
explains his considerations and what those impacts are and how he has considered them.
Gavin Taylor added that there are no explicit set distances.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Councillor Benney expressed the view that the applicant wants the shed where he has
planned it, and it is immaterial with regards to what he wants to use it for as it is about land
usage. He added that to put it at the back would impede on his family’s social life and you
do not want to have a shed at your back door you want it as far away from your door as is
possible and that is where the applicant is choosing to erect it. Councillor Benney stated
that the shed will be behind a brick wall and is protected and the applicant needs
somewhere to keep his classic car. He expressed the view that he appreciates why officers
have had to bring the application to the committee due to planning policy, however, in his
opinion it should just be approved.

Gavin Taylor stated that it is his understanding from Councillor Benney that he feels that it is
acceptable by virtue of the screening of the wall there is no harm to the Conservation Area
or the character of the area. He added that with regards to the comments made by
Councillor Gerstner concerning the roof materials, it maybe quite limiting with regards what
can be done to make it sympathetic in terms of the area. Gavin Taylor explained that if a
condition was to be added concerning the material details then he would assume that
Councillor Gerstner and the Chairman would like to be involved with that process to ensure
that they are happy with the proposed materials. Councillor Connor stated that he would be
happy for officers to have delegated authority in consultation with Councillor Gerstner to
apply appropriate conditions.

Councillor Mrs French questioned whether the roofing material has already been purchased
as it would be an unreasonable condition to add if the purchase has already taken place.
Councillor Connor asked Mr Jones whether the material for the roof have already been
purchased and he confirmed that they had.

Councillor Benney expressed the view that he does not like this type of condition being
applied to an application as it can mean additional expenses to the applicant. He added that
sheds have a standard roofing material and when he went on the site visit the applicants
house is in good order and he cannot envisage the applicant adding an inappropriate
coloured roof to the shed.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Gerstner and agreed that the
application should be GRANTED against the officer’s recommendation.

Members do not support the officer's recommendation of refusal as they do not consider it to be
detrimental to the area and the feel that the applicant is making very good use of a shed in order to
store his classic car and motorbike.

(Councillor Gerstner declared that he knows the applicant and has had business dealings with him
in the last 12 months but is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open

mind.)

2.45 pm Chairman

Page 40



Agenda Iltem 5

F/YR23/0209/RM
Applicant: Mr Nigel Marsh Agent : Mr Stuart Beckett
Inspire Architectural
Land South West Of 317, Wisbech Road, Westry,
Reserved Matters application relating to detailed matters of access, appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale pursuant to outline permission F/YR20/0905/0 to erect 3 x
dwellings (3 x 2-storey 3-bed)

Officer recommendation: GRANT

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The application seeks approval of reserved matters relating to access, appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale pursuant to outline permission, F/YR20/0905/0.

1.2 The application proposes a policy compliant scheme which raises no issues
in terms of adverse highway impacts, visual or residential amenity.

1.3 Accordingly, the reserved matters submission can be recommended for approval subject
to conditions.

2 SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The site lies on the edge of March and comprises part of the current garden land serving
317 Wisbech Road (‘the host building’). The host building is set back from the main
highway behind a linear formation of dwellings along Wisbech Road and is accessed via a
driveway which leads off the access, Gypsy Lane, serving the KFC restaurant and
Cobblestones Public House. Access can also be gained via a private drive which runs
between 315 (‘Shepherds Folly’) and 319 (‘Truleighjoe’) Wisbech Road.

2.2 The host dwelling is a two-storey detached property with the aforementioned frontage
dwellings comprising bungalows with detached garages set to the rear and accessed via
the private driveway.

2.3 To the north of the site, development has been completed that comprises 8no detached
two storey dwellings. Except for the restaurant and public house beyond the site to the
south-east, the area is characterised by a mixture of residential development and of
varying scales and designs.

2.4 The site lies in Flood Zone 1, therefore at low risk of flooding.

3 PROPOSAL
3.1 The application seeks the approval of reserved matters relating to the detailed matters of

appearance, landscaping, layout and scale pursuant to outline permission F/YR22/0970/0
for the erection of three detached dwellings.

Page 41



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The three plots are to be of an individual design and will be erected to the northern side of
the site. Whilst the three plots will be sited alongside each other in a linear form, plot 2 is
to be sited further forward within its plot than plots 1 and 3 either side. Amended plans
were received during the course of the application and re-notification was carried out due
to the nature of the amendments and the alteration to the description of development. The
amendments comprised the following:

- Removal of detached garages to plots 1 & 2 and removal of integral garage to plot 3. All
plots will provide 2no off-street parking spaces;

- Reduction in the overall pitch of the roof of all plots from 45 degrees to 35 degrees which
has seen a reduction in height;

- Reduction in the number of bedrooms from 5no to 3no

Plot 1 is to be accessed via the private road, from the A141, and consists of a double
fronted, two storey dwelling incorporating a pitched roof with front to rear ridge and gable
end elevations with an overall ridge height of 7.5m. There proposes a two-storey front
gabled projection and a single storey rear extension projecting approximately 3m.
Materials proposed include Wienerberger Tuscan Red multi facing brickwork with a
terracotta roof tile and white uPVC fenestration.

Plot 2 is to be accessed via Gipsy Lane and will consist of a double fronted dwelling
incorporating a pitched roof with front to rear ridge and gable end elevations with an
overall height of 8.1m. A small canopy is proposed to the front elevation and a single
storey rear extension projecting approximately 4m. Materials include Harvest Buff Multi
facing brickwork with a Slate Grey roof tile and white uPVC fenestration.

Plot 3 is also to be accessed via Gipsy Lane and will consist of a double fronted dwelling
incorporating a pitched roof with front to rear ridge and gable end elevations with an
overall ridge height of 8.1m. Materials proposed are akin to those for plot 1 with
Wienerberger Tuscan Red multi facing brickwork with a terracotta roof tile and white uPVC
fenestration. The dwelling would be provided with two parking spaces in a tandem
relationship on the south-eastern side of the dwelling.

Bin storage will be contained within the rear garden areas and adjacent to the north-
western boundary with a bin collection area to be provided along Woodville Drive.

Each dwelling would be provided with a private rear amenity area sufficient to comply with
a third of the plot size enclosed by a 1.8m high close boarded fence.
SITE PLANNING HISTORY

F/YR20/0905/0 Erect up to 3 dwellings Granted 25.11.2020

(Outline application
with all matters reserved)

F/YR07/0948/0  Erection of 2 workplace homes Refuse 20.08.2007

F/YR0O7/0690/0  Erection of 2 single storey Refuse 31.10.2007
workplace homes for Class B1 Use

F/YRO1/0704/F Erection of extensions to existing Granted 14.09.2001
Dwelling Westry Wisbech Road

F/YR01/0280/0 Erection of 2 dwellings Granted 04.09.2001
Land South Of Woodville

F/YR02/0419/RM Erection of 2 x 3-bed detached Approved 18.06.2002

Page 42



5.1

5.2

5.3

bungalows with detached single
garages

Land South Of Woodyville

F/YR02/0953/RM Erection of 1 x 4-bed detached Approved 20.09.2002
bungalow and double garage

Plot 1 Land South Of Woodville

CONSULTATIONS
March Parish Council — Approval

Environmental Health - The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted
information and have ‘No Objections’ to the proposals as they are unlikely to have a
detrimental effect on local air quality, the noise climate, or be affected by ground
contamination.

Middle Level Commissioners - We are writing in relation to the above planning
application. As you are aware, neither the Middle Level Commissioners nor our associated
Boards are, in planning terms, statutory consultees and, therefore, do not actually have to
provide a response to the planning authority and receive no external funding to do so.

With the exception of the simplest matters, we are instructed to advise that we no longer
provide bespoke responses to planning applications unless we are requested to do so by
the Board and/or the applicant, as part of our pre-/post-application consultation process.
However, on this occasion, the Board has requested that we contact your authority in
respect of the above development.

We respond as follows: As you are aware from responses to other recent planning
applications, we have had discussions with representatives of both respective Boards
regarding the above development and also the other developments within the immediate
area.

The position of both Boards in relation to drainage from these developments is outlined
below:

* Surface water discharge to the private watercourse adjacent to site is acceptable “in
principle” although this would be based on an attenuated discharge to greenfield rates. In
addition, the Board would require that the receiving watercourse is of a suitable condition
to accept the discharge and there is a positive connection to the wider drainage network
downstream of the site.

* Inspire Architectural drawing number 270-06 Rev B on your planning portal shows
soakaways to the rear of the proposed dwellings. The Board would need evidence that the
soakaways have been designed to BRE365 standards.

* As you will be aware, the discharge of treated effluent to a ‘surface water’ soakaway, as
proposed on this drawing, would not meet the government’s binding rules for a small
sewage discharge to the ground.

* Please be advised that a discharge consent for treated foul effluent from the above
development to local watercourses would not be granted consent at this time. Due to the
number of properties from all the developments in this area the volume of treated effluent
discharge would be significant. This would place a significant increased “load” on the
receiving system in addition to the other issues associated with the disposal of treated
effluent from non- adopted systems, such as the increased risk of pollution and odours as
a result of “spills”, possibly due to the lack of maintenance of the units, potential
detrimental effect on the water environment, etc.

* The disposal of treated effluent from all development sites, including the one above,
would therefore need to be to the local public sewer, the closest being in Hostmoor
Avenue. We have advised all of the developers that they should liaise with each other to
propose a suitable system to provide connection for all of the proposed developments.

Page 43



54

5.5

5.6

It is believed that discussions are currently taking place between AWS and the developers
in Woodville Drive, so it is suggested that AWS are contacted in the first instance. Please
note that a discharge consent for treated effluent would still be required, although in this
respect to the Middle Level Commissioners, as the local AWS foul system ultimately
discharges to the Middle Level System via the March Treatment Plant.

An updated drainage plan was received, and the MLC were reconsulted on 28" February.
No additional comments have been forthcoming.

County Highways - The Local Highway Authority raises no objections to the proposed
development. While | have reservations regarding the capacity for parking and turning
within the site, and more specifically for plot 1, the proposed dwellings are located
sufficiently distant from Wisbech Road, that this issue is unlikely to have a detrimental
impact on safe use of the public highway.

The Local Planning Authority may however wish to request further clarification in this
regard to prevent reversing out onto shared private driveways, which appear likely to
include pedestrian use. Bin collection appears to be from a shared private driveway to the
north of the dwelling plots. The Local Planning Authority must be satisfied that these can
be adequately serviced.

County Ecology — No comment

Local Residents/Interested Parties:

Responses based on the original submission:

Six letters of objection from properties within March and summarised as follows:

- Noise — concern over working hours

- Overlooking & loss of privacy

- Nuisance Shading / loss of daylight

- Over-development or overcrowding of the site

- Negative / adverse visual impact of the development

- Out-of-scale or out of character in terms of appearance
- Presence of ‘Japanese knotweed’

- Affects house price/devaluation of property

One letter stating neither object or support:

- Shared access disruptions need to be agreed.
- Suggestion of Japenese Knotweed being on site needs to be investigated

Responses based on amended plan renotification:
Five letters of objection from properties within March and summarised as follows:

- No real difference on the plans

- Overlooking

- Bungalows would be better suited

- Neighbourhood engagement would have been welcomed
- Disruption during construction

- Presence of Japanese Knotweed

STATUTORY DUTY
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a planning

application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material
planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for the purposes of this

Page 44



8.1

application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan (2014) and the March
Neighbourhood Plan 2017.

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

National Design Guide 2019
Context

Identity

Built Form

Movement

Nature

Fenland Local Plan 2014 (FLP)

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in Fenland
LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in Fenland
LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017

H2 — Windfall Development
H3 — Local Housing Need

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25" August
2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and any changes
arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan. Given the very early
stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in accordance with Paragraph 48 of
the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry extremely limited weight in decision
making. Of relevance to this application are policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LP5: Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP20: Accessibility and Transport

LP22: Parking Provision

BACKGROUND

Planning application, F/'YR20/0905/0, was granted in outline form with all matters
reserved for the erection of up to 3 dwellings. This application is therefore seeking
reserved matters approval for the erection of three dwellings.

Page 45



9 KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development
Layout, Scale and Appearance
Landscaping

Access

Drainage

Other matters

10 ASSESSMENT
Principle

10.1  The principle of development for the erection of up to 3 dwellings has been established
by the grant of outline planning permission, reference F/YR20/0905/0.

10.2 It should be noted that this point of general principle is subject to broader planning policy
and other material considerations which are discussed in more detail in the following
sections of this report.

Layout, Scale and appearance

10.3 The layout of the development broadly follows that of the indicative plan submitted with
the outline application. There are two access points to the site, as approved within the
outline permission, with the access from Gypsy Lane to be covered in permeable block
paving. The remaining vehicular areas of the site would be surfaced in gravel.

10.4 The three dwellings would be broadly positioned in a linear form of development with
Plot 2 set slightly forward within the overall site. Soft landscaping in the form of a native
laurel hedge would be provided on the south-eastern corner of the site with private
garden areas provided to the rear of each dwelling.

10.5 LP16 seeks to secure high quality environments having regard to impacts on matters
such as residential amenity such as noise, light pollution, loss of privacy and loss of light.

10.6 Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Local Plan states that proposals for residential
development will be supported where they meet the provisions of the Fenland Local Plan
and, inter alia, a) The proposal will not result in unacceptable impact on levels of light,
privacy and private amenity space for the occupants of the proposed dwellings. The
impact of proposals on existing neighbouring properties will be assessed against Policy
LP16 of the Local Plan and f) the proposal is of a high standard of design.

10.7 The proposed layout of the plots demonstrates they will be arranged in a linear form with
plot 2 sitting slightly further forward within the overall site than the other plots either side.
Amended plans were received that demonstrate a reduction in roof pitch to each of the
plots which has led to an overall reduction in ridge height. The first-floor rear elevations
of the three dwellings would be set no less than 20m from the front elevations of the
existing properties on Woodville Drive with a 1.8m close boarded fence erected along
the boundary. Given the degree of separation, it is not considered that the proposed
development would pose concerns in respect of overlooking, visual dominance or
overshadowing to those properties to the direct north along Woodville Drive.

10.8 Given the distance of separation, no less than 30m, and their offset relationship with the
properties fronting Wisbech Road, the proposed development would not impact
adversely upon the occupiers.

10.9 No.317 Wisbech Road itself lies to the north-west of the site with plot 3 of the proposed

development lying in closest proximity to the existing dwelling. This dwelling sits tight to
and is slightly angled away from the north-western boundary with Woodville Drive and

Page 46



10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

benefits from a single storey rear extension; single storey side extension and bedroom
window and en-suite obscure glazed window within the first floor rear elevation. Plot 3 of
the proposed development is to be sited to the south-west of the dwelling with no
windows proposed within its north-eastern gabled elevation. With a 10m gap retained to
the south-western corner of the existing dwelling and its angled siting will ensure no
perceived detrimental harm to the occupiers.

Occupant Amenity Space

The development would provide future occupants with an acceptable level of internal and
external amenity space.

Criteria (h) of Policy LP16 states that a development should provide sufficient private
amenity space, suitable to the type and amount of development proposed; for dwellings
other than flats, as a guide and depending on the local character of the area, this means
a minimum of a third of the plot curtilage should be set aside as private amenity space.

The development would not have a perceived detrimental impact on the residential
amenity of the neighbouring residential properties and would provide an acceptable level
of amenity for future occupants. However, reserved matters approval would be subject to
condition removing permitted development rights for any extensions, roof extensions or
alterations and insertion of windows within side elevations to ensure acceptable future
privacy and amenity impacts.

In summary, the amended layout enables appropriate levels of amenity space, parking
and manoeuvring and accords with the layout envisaged in the outline application. As
such, it is considered the development would accord with the general spatial character of
the area, albeit forming a back land style of development with limited adverse impacts to
neighbouring residential amenity, and, subject to necessary conditions, the proposal will
be compliant with Policies LP2 and LP16 in this regard.

The dwellings would be set back behind existing development with only Plot 1 being
visible from Wisbech Road and the other plots only partially visible between gaps in
existing housing. The dwellings have been designed to be modest in their dimensions
with heights reflecting those of the recently constructed properties to the north along
Woodville Drive. As such they would not appear dominant within the area and would
blend in with the mixed pattern of residential development within the vicinity.

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development,
creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable
to communities. Further to this, policy LP16, criteria (d) states refers to developments
should make a positive contribution to the local distinctiveness and character of the area,
enhance its local setting, respond to and improve the character of the local built
environment, provide resilience to climate change, reinforce local identity and does not
adversely impact, either in design or scale terms, on the street scene, settlement pattern
or the landscape character of the surrounding area.

Further to both National and Local Planning policy, the National Design Guide (2021)
illustrates how well-designed places that are beadutiful, healthy, greener, enduring and
successful can be achieved in practice and forms part of the Government’s collection of
planning practice guidance. Policies 11 and |2 refer to local character and identity along
with well-designed, high quality designed buildings. It is to be noted that there is no
overall uniformity within the locality with regards to scale, design and materials of
dwellings with a notable presence of bungalows along Wisbech Road. To the north of the
site is a more recent residential development which comprises 8no dwellings of similar
characteristics and material pallet.

Page 47



10.17

10.18

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

The plans and application form state plots 1 and 3 are to be constructed of red multi
facing brickwork with a terracotta roof tile whilst plot 2 is proposing a buff brick and slate
roof. In terms of the design of the dwellings, whilst these differ to those immediately
surrounding the site and are of bespoke character, amendments took place during the
course of the application to ensure that they were more appropriately scaled. Given there
is such a significant variance in materials and design within the locality, the proposed
development is considered to be of a high quality ensuring there would be no adverse
impact on the character of the surroundings and given the significant setback from the
street scene ensures visual prominence is limited.

It is considered that the layout, scale and appearance of the three dwellings is
commensurate to that envisaged in the indicative designs of the outline permission and
is acceptable having regards to the site surroundings and character of the area in
accordance with policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 and policy H2 of the March
Neighbourhood Local Plan.

Landscaping

Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which
to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities. This is
reflected in Local Plan Policy LP16 which seeks to promote high quality environment
through, among other means, well designed hard and soft landscaping incorporating
sustainable drainage systems as appropriate.

Hard landscaping

There are two access points to the site, one from Truleighjoe and the other from Gipsy
Lane. The latter is to serve plots 2 and 3 and will be surfaced in Marshalls Driveline
Priora in Bracken along with Cotswold golden shingle to private driveways whilst the
access to plot 1 is from Truleighjoe, a hardcore, compacted driveway with a similar
gravel driveway proposed. Natural stone paving is proposed to the rear patios and
pathways to each plot.

A 1.8m high close boarded fencing would also separate the plots to the rear and along
Woodville Drive. The latter will incorporate gates to be utilised for bin access. The
proposed landscaping and boundary treatments would improve integration within the
surrounding pattern of development, with consideration of its setting.

Soft landscaping

Upon carrying out a site visit, it was evident that several trees had already been felled. It
is to be noted that these were not afforded any protection, therefore no consent was
required.

There are several other trees within the site which are to be retained. In order to ensure
retention, and given their amenity value, a condition will be imposed ensuring the root
protection areas of the trees will be protected during construction.

Each plot will benefit from grassed areas adjacent to the dwellings to the rear and a
small element to the front with a native laurel hedge proposed to the south-east corner of
the site.

In summary, the landscaping is considered to be satisfactory, subject to a condition
requiring details in respect of the root protection areas of the trees to be retained and
soft landscaping being planted out within the first planting season following occupation
as standard. The proposal would accord with Local Plan Policy LP16 and NPPF (2023).

Access

Page 48



10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

Local Plan Policy LP15 seeks development schemes to provide well designed, safe and
convenient access. Regarding parking, Local Plan Policy LP15 seeks development
schemes to provide well designed car and cycle parking appropriate to the amount of
development proposed, ensuring that all new development meets the Council’s defined
parking standards as set out in Appendix A. Appendix A (Parking Standards) of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires three bedroom dwellings to provide two parking
spaces.

Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan, criteria d) states that the proposal should
include a safe vehicular access and will not result in severe impacts on the road network
taking account of any mitigation proposed.

Access to the site is via two existing access points that serve residential properties, one
taken from a private drive, accessed from Wisbech Road and one to the rear of the site,
Gipsy Lane. There is no evidence to suggest that the cumulative impact of the
development on the highways network would lead to any severe harm or adverse impact
that would warrant refusal on these grounds.

Amended plans were received reducing the number of bedrooms from 5no to 3no for
which each dwelling would require two parking spaces. The amendments also see the
removal of a detached garage to plot two with two adequately dimensioned spaces
available and the removal of the integral garage to plot 3 given the size was not sufficient
to accommodate a vehicle. Two spaces are provided to the front of the dwelling. A
turning head is also provided with access preserved to 317 Wisbech Road and so meets
the standard.

Whilst neighbour comments are noted in respect of the private driveway, it is not
anticipated, based on the scale of the development that this would lead to unacceptable
impacts with plot 1 solely utilising this access. Any issues surrounding disruption using
this access would ultimately be a private matter between owners and those with rights of
access.

In summary, there have been no objections raised from County Highways with the
amended development not anticipated to give rise to unacceptable highways/parking
impacts and could achieve safe and effective access in accordance with policy LP15 of
the Local Plan and H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan.

Drainage

Policy LP14 aims to ensure that development is compatible with its location taking into
account the impacts of climate change and flood risk. The site lies in Flood Zone 1 and
therefore at the lowest risk of flooding.

Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Local Plan states that proposals for residential
development will be supported where they meet the provisions of the Fenland Local Plan
and where the site is at a low risk of flooding (i.e. not within land designated Flood Zone
2 or 3 by the Environment Agency) and will not create flooding problems on or off-site,
including problems associated with surface water run-off.

The application form submitted at outline indicates that surface water is proposed to be
managed via soakaway. A condition was imposed at outline that states that the details
for submission under condition 1 shall include a scheme for the disposal of surface and
foul water that shall be approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of development.

Whilst the drainage plan originally submitted with this application indicated that surface
water was to discharge into a water crate storage system, there was no drainage
strategy that detailed discharge rates and water quality. The comments from the Middle
Level Commissioners (MLC) were noted and appeared that they would agree in principle

Page 49



10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

11

11.1

to receiving surface water from the scheme, subject to appropriate discharge rates and
water quality.

In discussions with the applicant, an updated drainage plan was received at the end of
February along with details relating to greenfield run off rate estimations. The information
and updated plan submitted demonstrates that a biodisc sewage treatment plant is to be
installed within each plot with foul water being discharged into the public sewer. Further
to this, and in order to retain a greenfield run off rate of 0.01l/s, there proposes the
installation of a crate storage system which is designed to retain surface water for
absorption into the surrounding site with no excess surface water runoff into the middle
level watercourse to the east of the site.

The MLC were reconsulted at the end of February upon submission of the additional
information and updated plan, but to date, no comments have been forthcoming. It is to
be noted, however, that the details and plan submitted would address the concerns
raised initially. Notwithstanding this, the application is not a major development therefore
is not of a significant scheme that warrants detailed attention. However, the applicant
has presented a scheme that is considered to be suitable having regard to other
properties in the vicinity. It is also to be noted that the scheme would require separate
Building Regulations and possibly IDB consent. Should such approvals/consents from
either body (where required) not be forthcoming, the applicant may need to address this
via a further application to amend the drainage strategy as proposed here.

In summary, the scheme presented is considered to be suitable and addresses the
condition attached to the outline permission in respect of disposal of foul and surface
water.

Other matters

Neighbours have raised concerns surrounding the presence of Japanese Knotweed on
the site. A site visit was carried out by an Environmental Health Officer on 315t October
2023 and has confirmed there is no sign of Japanese Knotweed on the site.

There have also been concerns raised in respect of depreciation of house value. This is
not a material planning consideration.

CONCLUSIONS

The principle of development has already been established by way of the outline
permission and the application complies with the relevant conditions therein. The
proposed scheme does not raise any significant issues and, as such, a favourable
recommendation may be forthcoming.

12 RECOMMENDATION: GRANT

1 All external materials used in the construction of the dwellings shall be in accordance
with details on the approved plans.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with the
requirements of policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and policy H2 of the
March Neighbourhood Plan

2 Prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, the proposed landscaping

shall be completed and shall be maintained and replaced where necessary for a period
of 5 years from the date of first occupation.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the planting scheme in the interests of
carrying out satisfactory development and for the wider interests of biodiversity in

Page 50



accordance with Policies LP16 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 and policy H2
of the March Neighbourhood Plan

The approved accesses and all hardstanding within the site shall be constructed with
adequate drainage measures to prevent surface water run-off onto the adjacent public
highway and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To prevent surface water discharging to the highway in accordance with policy
LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014)

All hard and soft landscape works including any management and maintenance plan
details, shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. All planting
seeding or turfing and soil preparation comprised in the above details of landscaping
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of
the buildings, the completion of the development, or in agreed phases whichever is the
sooner, and any plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the
local planning authority gives written consent to any variation. All landscape works shall
be carried out in accordance with the guidance contained in British Standards, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape details in the
interest of the amenity value of the development in accordance with Policy LP16 of the
Fenland Local Plan, 2014.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A, B, C, D, and E of Schedule 2 Part 1 of the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as
amended), or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order, the dwellings hereby
permitted shall not be altered or extended (including any alterations to its roof), no new
windows shall be inserted, and no buildings or structures shall be erected within the
curtilage of the dwellings unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of residential and visual amenity in accordance with policy
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and documents

Reference Title

10087-004 Proposed Elevations (revision B)

10087-007 Site plan (revision B)

10087-002 Proposed Elevations (revision B)

10087-006 Proposed Elevations (revision B)

270-06 Proposed Drainage Plan (revision B), as amended and received on 26"
February 2024

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

Page 51



StMary's
Church

El Sub Sta

Cobblestones

El Sub Sta

Created on: 29/03/2023

F/YR23/0209/RM
Scale = 1:2,500

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 52



€g abed

010 20304050 100 200

SCALE 1:1250

0 5 10 15 20
SCALE 1:200

)
»"

%8
oo
esiss
esise’
O
S

8!
T\
s

e\
e
oS
%

A
oo “

' COSTSWOLD GOLDEN SHINGLE
TO PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS

o
-~ MARSHALLS DRIVELINE PRIORA IN BRACKEN
2- i TO COMMUNAL TURNING AREA
>
Z
(p 1.8m HIGH TIMBER CLOSE BOARDED
@ FENCING BETWEEN PLOTS
% el TSN
2 Date: ON BEHALF OF PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
Mark Revision _| | 09.112029 MR NIGEL M PLOT 3
O
7@ Scale AS INDICATED
Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd REV.
Proposed Site Plan 1.5 Westry, March DRG. No. 10087 -007 B




G abed

N

Kitchen

Dining

Utility

o

L] <0

En Suite

¥

Lounge

(&)
\[Wc

Bedroom 1

all

.LJ 7

Study

- DOWN

L Landing

A

=0

Bathroom

Bedroom 3

(@)

'

N

L
L= |
Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan
0 2 4 6 8 10m
et I I I |
SCALE 1:100

-

Bedroom 2

|
P

Second Floor Plan

Date:
09.11.2023

Mark Revision

ON BEHALF OF

MR NIGEL M

Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd
Westry, March

PROPOSED PLANS
PLOT 1

Scale 1:100@A3

REV.

DRG. No. 10087 -001| g




GG abed

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation

MATERIALS:

Wienerberger Tuscan Red Multi facing brickwork
. Redland 49 Terracotta roof tile.
. White UPVC Doors, Windows and Fascias.
. Black UPVC gutters, downpipes and soil pipes.

Side Elevation

Side Elevation

Date: ON BEHALF OF PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
Mark Revision _| | 9911:2023 MR NIGEL M PLOT 1
Scale 1:1 00@A3
Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd REV.
Westry, March DRG. No. 10087 -002 | 5




9g abed

-

Vel

_—

Lounge

Hall

> Kitchen

| sl Ui

Bedroom 2

YAANVAAN

L

A

Bedroom 1

DOWN —N

Bedroom 3

A

Bathroom @

X
><<:
=

Date:
09.11.2023

Mark Revision

First Floor Plan

Study I
/ i we %
[P | [P —
- |
Ground Floor Plan

0 2 4 6 8
| | | | | | | | |
[ | | | | | | | |

SCALE 1:100

Roof Floor Plan

ON BEHALF OF

MR NIGEL M

Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd
Westry, March

PROPOSED PLANS
PLOT 2

Scale 1 100@A3

REV.

DRG. No. 10087 -003|[ 5




)G abed

L |
m

MATERIALS:

Wienerberger Harvest Buff Multi facing brickwork
Redland 49 Slate Grey roof tile.

White UPVC Doors, Windows and Fascias.
Black UPVC gutters, downpipes and soil pipes.

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation

2 4 6 8

10m

SCALE 1:100

Side Elevation

[ ]

Side Elevation

Date:
Mark Revision 09.11.2023

ON BEHALF OF

MR NIGEL M

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
PLOT 2

Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd
Westry, March

Scale 1 100@A3

REV.

DRG. No. 10087 -004| g




8g abed

Living

Kitchen Dining Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2

.. N\ 1IN

WC DOWN [
_'En Suite Date:
Lounge r@_' (@) Bedroom 3 Mark Revision 09.11.2023
Study u >< I
- ) @ Bathroom - -
! ] [ ! ] ! ! ! ; ! ]
[m] O
ON BEHALF OF
MR NIGEL M
Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan Roof Floor Plan
Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd
Westry, March
PROPOSED PLANS
0 2 4 6 8 10m PLOT 3
[ | | | | | | | |
SCALE 1:100 Scale 1:100@A3
REV.
DRG. No. 10087 -005| g




6G abed

Front Elevation

MATERIALS:

Wienerberger Tuscan Red Multi facing brickwork with
Siberian Larch Cladding in areas shown, fitted vertically.
Redland 49 Terracotta roof tile.

White UPVC Doors, Windows and Fascias.

Black UPVC gutters, downpipes and soil pipes.

Side Elevation

Side Elevation

SCALE 1:100

Date:
Mark Revision 09.11.2023

ON BEHALF OF

MR NIGEL M

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
PLOT 3

Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd
Westry, March

Scale 1:1 00@A3

REV.

DRG. No. 10087 -006|[ 5




09 abed

EACH PLOT SERVED BY 9 PERSON KLARGESTER
BIODISC SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT - DISCHARGE
FLOW RATE OF APPROX 1.8m* PER DAY

DISCHARGE TO SURFACE WATER CRATE STORAGE
SYSTEM

CRATES TO BE 'RAINSMART ELLIPSE' OR SIMILAR
CAPABLE OF 250mm3® WATER STORAGE EACH.

PLOT 1 ROOF AREA REQUIRES 1.2m®* WATER STORAGE
PLOT 2 ROOF AREA REQUIRES 1.4m* WATER STORAGE
PLOT 3 ROOF AREA REQUIRES 1.8m* WATER STORAGE

SYSTEM TO BE DESIGNED TO STORE ALL WATER
WITHIN SITE AND USE NO DISCHARGE TO MIDDLE
LEVEL WATERCOURSE.

SURFACE WATER DRAWING REVISIONS

A JAN 2023 GENERAL AMENDMENTS
B MARCH 2023 | SCALE ADDED TO PLAN

urel

FOUL WATER

INSPIRE
ARCHITECTURAL

WOODGATE HOUSE, HOLLYCROFT ROAD, EMNETH
01945 351442 07920 796449
inspirearchitectural@gmail.com

PROJECT
Proposed Develeopment

Land SW of 317 Wisbech Rd
Westry, March

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed Drainage Layout

SCALE as stated at Al

DATE OCTOBER 2022

DRAWN STB

DRAWING NO

270 - 06 B

Proposed Drainage Plan 1:250



Agenda Iltem 6

F/YR24/0034/0

Applicant: Mr D Moore Agent : Mrs Gemma Lawrence
Swann Edwards Architecture Limited

Land North of Windy Willows, Church Lane, Tydd St Giles, Cambridgeshire

Erect up to 2 x dwellings and the formation of an access (outline application with
matters committed in respect of access)

Officer recommendation: REFUSE

Reason for Committee: Number of representations against officer
recommendation

Government Planning Guarantee

Statutory Target Date For Determination: 11 March 2024
EOT in Place: Yes

EOT Expiry: 31 May 2024

Application Fee: £0

Risk Statement:

This application must be determined by 31/05/24 otherwise it will be out of time
and therefore negatively affect the performance figures.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application proposes the delivery of up to 2 dwellings on a site which is
outside the built form of the designated ‘small village’ of Tydd St Giles, including
the formation of a culverted vehicular access.

1.2 The scheme is contrary to Policies LP3, LP12, LP14, and LP16 in the Local
Plan given that it is not infill within a ‘small village, it is located beyond the built
form and therefore in an elsewhere location and the proposal does not
demonstrate compliance with flood risk policy.

1.3 It is contended that real and actual character harm would arise through the
consolidation of the built form and the extension of existing linear features
within an area which currently serves to mark the gentle transition between the
open countryside and the built form of the village this being clearly at odds with
Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and contrary to the aims of Policy
LP16 (d) which focuses on the need for development to enhance its setting and
respond to the character of the local built environment.

1.4 The application site is in Flood Zone 3 and is accompanied by a sequential and
exception test report that does not take account of the appropriate search area
of Fenland and therefore the sequential test is failed. As such, the proposal fails
to accord with the necessary requirements of Policy LP14 of the Local Plan, the

Page 61



SPD and the NPPF, and as such, should be refused on the basis of a lack of
demonstrable evidence that the scheme would be acceptable in respect of flood
risk.

1.6 There are fundamental policy issues arising relating to this proposal, as

highlighted within this report and accordingly, the scheme must be
recommended for refusal.

2.2

2.3

3.2

3.3

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site comprises part of a parcel of agricultural land situated to the
east side of Church Lane, Tydd St Giles. To the south of the site is the residential
property ‘Windy Willows’ whilst to the north and west lies open land. To the west
also lies a small agricultural building.

The site is contained by dense hedging to Church Lane (east) and the north with
post and rail fencing to the south and east. A ditch lies between the hedging and
the highway along the eastern boundary.

The site is within Flood Zone 3, the highest area of risk.

PROPOSAL

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of up to 2 x
dwellings and the formation of an access requiring culverting of the ditch to the
east of the site (outline application with matters committed in respect of access).

The illustrative plans show 2 large, detached dwellings with roof lights and dormers
to enable rooms in the roof space, porches, double garages and a private shared
driveway.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
F/YR24/0034/0 | Erect up to 2 x dwellings and the formation of an access (outline
application with matters committed in respect of access) | Land North Of Windy
Willows Church Lane Tydd St Giles Cambridgeshire (fenland.gov.uk)

SITE PLANNING HISTORY
Pertinent planning history listed below:

Application Description Decision | Date
F/YR22/0966/0 | Erect up to 2 x dwellings and the Refused | 15 Dec
formation of an access (outline 2022

application with matters committed in
respect of access)

F/YR13/0183/F Erection of 3 x 3-bed 2-storey Refused | 03 May
dwellings with garages 2013

F/IYR12/0657/F Erection of 4 x 3-bed 2-storey Refused | 19 Nov
dwellings with attached single 2012
garages

CONSULTATIONS

Page 62



https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

5.1

5.2

5.3

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority 07/02/24

Whilst | have no objection to the principal of the development, | must object to the
footway aspect of the proposal as it will not be possible to construct this on the
west side of Church Lane. This is due to the ditch being in-situ and the existing
highway signage. However, it would be possible to construct a footway on the east
side and connect this to the existing footway.

If the applicant was to amend the drawings to show this change and add in the
achievable dimensional widths, it would overcome my objection. If the applicant is
unwilling or unable to amend the application or provide additional information as
outlined above, please advise me so | may consider making further
recommendations, possibly of refusal.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority 13/02/24

Whilst the applicant has now shown a footway on the side of the road that it is
possible to construct a link to the proposed dwelling. They have not connected this
to the existing footway, which would be required to be shown in order to condition
this aspect of any approval granted by the LPA.

Also there is no dimensions shown as to the achievable width of the footway as
previously requested i.e. in relation to available highway and land under the
control of the applicant and/or if third party land is required to facilitate this
footway. Whilst the verge may on the face of it appear to be within the highway
this may not be the case. | would recommend that the applicant contact the CCC
Definitive Mapping team to ascertain the exact extent of the adopted highway in
this area, prior to any resubmission or determination of this application. The
applicant must consider the achievable width of footway construction not simply
the assumed width of the highway verge e.g. 0.6m at the rear of the footway for
edging should be included (with the footway being entirely within the extent of the
highway) and no width should be taken from the carriageway as this would have a
detrimental impact to the highway.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority 08/04/24
Recommendation

On the basis of the information submitted, from the perspective of the Local
Highway Authority, | consider the proposed development is acceptable.

Comments

The 1.5m wide footway shown on the drawing 1000 E is acceptable. While a 2m
footway is recommended for inclusive access, a 1.5m footway is sufficient to allow
a pedestrian and wheelchair / pushchair to pass. In context of the rural setting and
limited scale of development which would be served by the footway, this is on
balance acceptable.

However, the applicant will need to consider the mitigation of potential impacts on
the neighbouring boundary fence and the impact a footway will have on highway
drainage, noting the carriageway currently drains over-edge into the grassed
verge. For these reasons, | have recommended the below conditions.

| would also note that the access inter-vehicular visibility splay shown does not
align with the vehicular access location, which has shifted from the first
submission. However, | am confident that the necessary visibility is in any case
achievable within the highway.

Conditions

Page 63



Gates/Enclosure/Access Restriction: Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or
any order revoking, amending or re-enacting that order) no gates or other means
of enclosure shall be erected across the vehicular access hereby approved.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure compliance with Policies
LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

Highway Drainage: The approved access and all hardstanding within the site shall
be constructed with adequate drainage measures to prevent surface water run-off
onto the adjacent public highway and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To prevent surface water discharging to the highway in accordance with
policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014 Off-Site

Highway Works: No development shall take place until details of works to 1.5m
footway along Church Lane, as shown in principle on drawing 1000 E, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall not be occupied/brought into use until all of the works have
been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure compliance with Policies
LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014. This is a pre-
commencement condition because the off-site highway works are required to
make the development acceptable and in addition to planning approval will require
permission from the Highway Authority under the Highways Act.

Non-standard condition: Before the dwelling herby permitted is occupied, the
vehicular access from the nearside footway edge shall be constructed to include
the provision of a metalled/sealed surface for a minimum length of 5m from the
existing carriageway edge.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure compliance with Policies
LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

Informatives

Works in the Public Highway

This development may involve work to the public highway that will require the
approval of the County Council as Highway Authority. It is an OFFENCE to carry
out any works within the public highway, which includes a public right of way,
without the permission of the Highway Authority. Please note that it is the
applicant’s responsibility to ensure that, in addition to planning permission, any
necessary consents or approvals under the Highways Act 1980 and the New
Roads and Street Works Act 1991 are also obtained from the County Council.

Watercourse Management

If you are planning to undertake works within a watercourse within the UK, you
need permission to do so by law. It is essential that anyone who intends to carry
out works in, over, under or near a watercourse, contacts the relevant flood risk
management authority to obtain the necessary consent before staring work.
Please refer to this web page for further information:
https.//www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/business/planning-and-development/floodand-
water/watercourse-management/

Page 64



5.4 Environment Agency 15/02/24
Thank you for the consultation dated 25 January 2024. We have reviewed the
documents as submitted and objecting to this application on Foul Drainage
grounds. Further information can be found in the relevant section below, such as
how to overcome our objection.

We have also detailed information below regarding Flood Risk.

Non-mains Foul Drainage

We object to the proposed development as submitted because it involves the use
of a non-mains foul drainage system (package treatment plant), without adequate
justification as to why a mains connection is not proposed.

Government guidance contained within the national Planning Practice Guidance
(Water supply, wastewater and water quality - considerations for planning
applications, paragraph 020) sets out a hierarchy of drainage options that must be
considered and discounted in the following order:

1. Connection to the public sewer

2. Package sewage treatment plant (adopted in due course by the sewerage
company or owned and operated under a new appointment or variation)

3. Septic Tank

Foul drainage should be connected to the main sewer. Where this is not possible,
under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010 any discharge of sewage or
trade effluent made to either surface water or groundwater will need to be
registered as an exempt discharge activity or hold a permit issued by the
Environment Agency, in addition to planning permission. This applies to any
discharge to inland freshwaters, coastal waters or relevant territorial waters.

Overcoming our objection
The applicant can overcome our objection by addressing the issues mentioned
above.

The applicant should either provide confirmation of joining the mains sewerage
system that runs near almost alongside the development (along Church Lane), or
alternatively provide an adequate justification as to why this connection is not
possible.

We'd recommend filling out the FDA1 form on the Gov.UK website Foul drainage
assessment form (FDA1) - GOV.UK

Flood Risk

Our maps show the application site lies within Flood Zone 3, defined by the
‘Planning Practice Guidance: Flood Risk and Coastal Change’ as having a high
probability of flooding. As per Paragraph 173, footnote 59 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) a site-specific Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been
submitted alongside this proposal.

We have no objection to this planning application relating to Flood Risk, providing
that you have taken into account the Flood Risk considerations which are your
responsibility.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment (ref CHURCH LANE TYDD ST GILES, GCB/SWANN EDWARDS,
156/01/2024) and the following mitigation measures it details:

* Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 300mm above Ordnance Datum

Page 65



5.5

(AOD)

* The development to have at least two storeys.

* The proposed dwelling to have non-habitable ground floors as stated in the
submitted FRA.

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout
the lifetime of the development.

Further Information

Flood Warnings

We support the suggestion in the FRA that future occupants sign up to Floodline
Warnings Direct to receive advance warning of flooding. This can be done online
at https.//www.gov.uk/sign-up-for-flood-warnings or by phoning Floodline Warnings
Direct on 0345 988 1188.

Flood warnings can give people valuable time to prepare for flooding — time that
allow them to move themselves, their families, and precious items to safety. Flood
warnings can also save lives and enable the emergency services to prepare and
help communities.

* For practical advice on preparing for a flood, visit https://www.gov.uk/prepare-
forflooding.

* To get help during a flood, visit https.//www.gov.uk/help-during-flood.

* For advice on what do after a flood, visit https.//www.qgov.uk/after-flood.

Flood resilient construction

We recommend that consideration be given to use of flood proofing measures to
reduce the impact of flooding when it occurs. Flood proofing measures include
barriers on ground floor doors, windows and access points and bringing electrical
services into the building at a high level so that plugs are located above possible
flood levels.

Please refer to ‘Improving the Flood Performance of New Buildings - Flood
Resilient Construction’ (DCLG 2007) for information on flood resilience and
resistance techniques to be included. This is available online at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/flood-resilient-construction-of-
newbuildings

Environment Agency 04/03/24
Thank you for the consultation dated 20th February 2024. We have reviewed the
amended plans and can confirm we are removing our objection.

In our first response to this application, issued on 15 February 2024 and
referenced AE/2024/129204/01, we raised a Foul Drainage objection. This was
because the application proposed a private sewage treatment plant in an area with
a mains sewered area.

An amended application form has now been submitted, confirming that the
proposal will now in fact join to the mains system. We therefore now have no
objection.

Please note our previous response also contained information related to Flood
Risk, these comments still stand and remain relevant.

Page 66


https://www.gov.uk/after-flood

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

North Level Internal Drainage Board
Please note that North Level District Internal Drainage Board have no objections to
the above planning application.

Informal consent to alter the watercourse will be required.

Tydd St Giles Parish Council

The members of the Parish Council considered this application at their recent
meeting. They noted that the applicant has submitted three previous applications
for residential development at this location, all of which were refused. This
application is a resubmission of the proposal submitted under reference
F/YR22/0966/0, which the Parish Council did not support. With no material
change, the fundamental issues remain, namely that it is unsustainable
development in the open countryside, outside the core built form of the village,
contrary to policies LP12 and LP3. The proposed development would be out of
keeping with surrounding properties and therefore harmful to the character of the
locality.

Members resolved not to support the application.

Environment & Health Services (FDC)

The Environmental Health Team are unlikely to object to the proposed scheme in
the event a full application is made. The intention is to develop the site by
introducing two new dwellings to the locality. The impact this will have on the
existing noise or air climate and vice versa is therefore considered negligible.

Given the applications sites previous pastural use contamination is also unlikely to
be an issue at this location.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

Objectors
Six representations received objecting to the proposals, 3x from Newgate Road
Tydd St Giles, 2x Church Lane Tydd St Giles and 1x from Eaudyke Bank Tydd ST
Giles. Material planning considerations regarding:
e No change to material planning considerations since the previous refusals.
No change to local policy since the previous refusal
Outside developed footprint of village/in open countryside.
D&A statement inaccurate.
Not infill.
Design out of character.
Flood Risk.
Highway safety.
Sequential test failed as not within the village.
The field separating the site from the village was put forward for allocation for
development in the draft local plan and determined to be unsuitable.
No tree preservation orders in place to keep hedging//trees.
Set a precedent.
2-story dwellings out of character
Agricultural land.
Does not comply with policy.
Loss of biodiversity.
Unsustainable location.
Decision should be made in line with the local plan.

Page 67



Previously refused 3 times.
School is full.

Not affordable housing.
Disturbing local wildlife.

5.10 Supporters
Sixteen letters of support received, 1 from Tydd Gote and the rest from Tydd St
Giles (1 from Hockland Road, 4 from Kirkgate, 5 from Church Lane, 2 from High
Broadgate, 1 from Newgate Road, 1 from Bees Lane and 1 from Field Avenue).
Reasons for support:
e Given Class Q approval for the barn to the rear of the site why shouldn’t this
be approved.
e Given other permissions granted in the village why shouldn’t this be
granted.
Will help support village shop.
Will help village school thrive.
Visually attractive
Easy access
Will help this part of the village be more a part of the village.
The other side of the road has houses.

6 STATUTORY DUTY
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

7  POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Para. 2 - Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Para. 10 - So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the
heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development
Para. 12 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change
the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision-
making.

Para. 47 - Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Para. 135 - Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the
short term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of
streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to live, work and visit;

Page 68



e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future
users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the
quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021

C1 — Context — How well does the proposal relate to the site and its wider context
11, 2 & 3 — Identity — Well-designed, high-quality places that fit with local character
H1 & H2 Homes and Buildings — healthy, comfortable and safe places well related
to external amenity space

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 48 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1:  Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP18: Development in the Countryside

LP20: Accessibility and Transport

LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP32: Flood and Water Management

LP63: Residential site allocations in Tydd St Giles

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014
DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

Page 69



DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016

KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development
Flood Risk

Access and Parking
Character, Design and Layout
Residential Amenity

Other considerations

BACKGROUND

The application has been brought forward as a free go following the refusal of
application F/YR22/0966/0O. The Local Plan has not changed since this decision
and there are no significant alterations to the circumstances of the proposal. The
reasons for the refusal of application F/YR22/0966/0 were:

Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan identifies that Tydd St Giles is a 'small village'
where development will normally be limited in scale to residential infilling or a small
business opportunity. The location of the site is such that it fails to satisfy this
requirement and by default Policy LP12 (a), noting the absence of adjoining
development immediately to north of the application site. The proposal is therefore,
clearly contrary to Policy LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan.

Policy LP12 identifies that only infill developments will be considered favourably
within settlements that have been identified as 'small villages' such as Tydd St
Giles. Real and actual character harm would arise through the introduction of new
development in this location which would serve to extend existing linear features
within an area which currently serves to mark the gentle transition between the
open countryside and the built form of the village this being clearly contrary to
Policy LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan.

Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy
Framework require applications within Flood Zone 3 locations to satisfy the
sequential and exception test, with further guidance regarding the application of
the sequential test being given in Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD and the
Fenland District Council 'Approach to the Sequential Test for Housing'. No
Sequential Test has been submitted however noting that the site fails to accord
with the Settlement Hierarchy outlined in Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan and
relates to the open countryside the Sequential Test is required to be applied on a
district-wide basis and in this respect the proposal fails to comply with Policy LP14
of the Fenland Local Plan and the NPPF.

Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires that proposals demonstrate
accessibility and provide for safe and convenient access for all. The current
scheme proposals fail to demonstrate that appropriate visibility is achievable in
respect of the access point to serve the dwellings. It has not been confirmed that
the scheme complies with the aims of Policy LP15 and by default it is has not been
demonstrated that the proposal will provide appropriate and safe levels of
accessibility and that it would not compromise highway and pedestrian safety.

Development on site has also been previously refused twice before as set out in
the planning history above, for similar reasons.

Page 70



10 ASSESSMENT

Principle of Development

10.1 The foot notes of LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 define the developed
footprint of a settlement. Given the application site is separated from the main built
form of Tydd St Giles by approximately 330m of agricultural land it is not
considered to be within the settlement for the purposes of LP3 of the Local Plan.

10.2 Policy LP3 considers the site to be an 'elsewhere' location within open countryside
where development is restricted to that which is demonstrably essential to the
effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, outdoor recreation,
transport and utility services. No justification has been included within the
submission to illustrate that the dwelling is required to support such an enterprise
and there has been no change since the refusal of planning application
F/YR22/0966/0.

10.3 Thus the principle of the development of the site is not supported as the site is not
within the developed footprint of Tydd St Giles and is therefore in an elsewhere
location and not required for the established uses set out within Policy LP3 of the
Fenland Local Plan. The requirements relating to Policy LP3 and LP12 have not
been met.

10.4 Consequently the proposed development is in clear conflict with Policies LP3 and
LP12 of the Local Plan and the principle of development on the site is
unacceptable.

Flood Risk

10.5 The site is located in Flood Zone 3, the area at highest risk of flooding. Policy LP14
requires development proposals to adopt a sequential approach to flood risk from
all forms of flooding, and states that development in an area known to be at risk
will only be permitted following the successful completion of a Sequential Test, an
Exception Test, and the demonstration that the proposal meets an identified need
and appropriate flood risk management.

10.6 The application is accompanied by a Sequential and Exception Test report. The
report states that the sequential test area should be restricted to the village of Tydd
St Giles. However, following guidance as set out in the adopted Flood and Water
SPD, the site is considered to be located in an elsewhere location the sequential
test should take account the entire area of Fenland.

10.7 Noting the adopted and indeed consistent stance of the Local Planning Authority
when applying the sequential test on sites which do not comply with the settlement
hierarchy it is asserted that the scheme has no potential to satisfy the sequential
test, as this would require the application of the Sequential test on a district wide
scale. It is further identified in the updated NPPG (August 2022) that even where a
flood risk assessment shows that development can be made safe for its lifetime the
sequential test still needs to be satisfied, i.e. flood risk safety measures do not
overcome locational issues.

10.8 As such, the proposal fails to accord with the necessary requirements of Policy
LP14 of the Local Plan, the SPD and the NPPF, and as such, should be refused on
the basis of a lack of demonstrable evidence that the scheme would be acceptable
in respect of flood risk.

Page 71



Access and Parking

10.9 The Fenland Local Plan Policy LP15 states that new development will only be
permitted if it can be demonstrated that safe and convenient pedestrian and
vehicle access to and from the public highway as well as adequate space for
vehicle parking, turning and servicing would be achieved.

10.10The County Highway Authority have no remaining highway objection. They
consider the proposed access to be acceptable in highway terms subject to offsite
highway mitigation measures in the form of installation of a public footpath and
recommended conditions and informatives.

10.11Therefore the proposed development is considered acceptable in terms of Policy
LP 15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Character, Design and Layout

10.12Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 states that the proposal should
demonstrate that it makes a positive contribution to the local distinctiveness and
character of the area and does not adversely impact, either in design or scale
terms, on the street scene, settlement pattern or the landscape character of the
surrounding area (LP16(d)).

10.13lt is considered that the transition from countryside to village is clearly marked in
this location with the ‘built footprint’ of the village occurring to the north side of
Newgate Road and East of Church Lane.

10.14There are two properties along the western side of Church Lane with a separation
distance of circa 330m. These dwellings are therefore considered anomalies rather
than a continuation of the built form. It is therefore clear that the intervening space
represents open countryside and therefore the introduction of two dwellings in this
location would erode the existing character of the countryside, thereby negatively
contributing to the rural character of the area.

10.15This view aligns with the robust and measured objections put forward by local
consultees who clearly and articulately express their concerns regarding the
development; both its non-conformity with local plan policies and the real character
harm that would arise.

10.16Furthermore, Policy LP12 clearly states that development should not extend
existing linear features and again this development is contrary to this outlined aim.

10.17For the reasons outlined above the scheme should be resisted as contrary to
Policies LP12 and LP16, notwithstanding the fundamental ‘principle’ issues
highlighted.

Residential Amenity

10.18LP16(e) also seeks to ensure that development does not adversely impact on the
amenity of neighbours through significant increased noise, light pollution, loss of
privacy or loss of light. Policy LP16 (h) states that new development should provide
sufficient private amenity space at a minimum of a third of the plot.

10.19Notwithstanding the character harm identified above and the lack of policy fit
relating to the settlement hierarchy the site could be developed in such a manner
as to provide appropriate levels of residential amenity for the intended
householders in terms of private amenity space and servicing arrangements.

Page 72



10.20Furthermore, given the relationship of the site to the dwellings across the road and
the single dwelling to the south, no issues are highlighted in securing an
appropriate scheme which does not compromise existing residential amenity.

10.211t is considered that the scheme has the potential to comply with Policies LP2 and
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014, subject to detailed layout and design which
would be secured under the reserved matters for the site. However, the absence of
residential amenity harm would not in itself justify acceptance of the scheme noting
the fundamental ‘principle’ issues highlighted.

Other considerations

10.22The Submitted Design and Access Statement states that the site would constitute
infill. Policy LP3 clearly indicates that Tydd St Giles is a small village which is
capable of residential infilling. The planning portal glossary notes that Infill
development is ‘the development of a relatively small gap between existing
buildings’ It is clear the site in question may not be deemed as infill and that the
scheme instead represents an extension of the settlement into the open
countryside, contrary to the settlement hierarchy.

11  CONCLUSIONS

10.1 The proposal is contrary to Policies LP3, LP12, LP14 and LP16 in the Local Plan
given that it is not infill within the developed footprint of the small village of Tydd St
Giles and does not demonstrate compliance with flood risk policy.

10.2 It is contended that real and actual character harm would arise through the
consolidation of the built form and the extension of existing linear features within
an area which currently serves to mark the gentle transition between the open
countryside and the built form of the village this being clearly at odds with Policy
LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and contrary to the aims of Policy LP16 (d)
which focuses on the need for development to enhance its setting and respond to
the character of the local built environment.

10.3 In addition, the submitted sequential and exception test is not considered passed.
The adopted guidance ‘Approach to the Sequential Test for Housing’ identifies that
the area of search for the purposes of carrying out the Sequential Test on a site
identified as being in an elsewhere location is the whole of the rural area of
Fenland. As the site is considered to relate more readily to the ‘open countryside’,
i.e. outside the built form of the settlement and goes beyond that allowed for under
Policy LP3 the sequential test should be applied on a district wide basis. As a
result, the proposal is contrary to LP14 and the NPPF in that it has not been
demonstrated that there are no other more sequentially preferable sites which
could accommodate the development within an area of lower flood risk.

12 RECOMMENDATION
REFUSE for the following reasons:

1 | Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan identifies that Tydd St Giles is a ‘small
village’ where development will normally be limited in scale to residential
infilling or a small business opportunity. The location of the site is not within
the developed footprint of the village and as such it fails to satisfy this
requirement and by default Policy LP12 (a), noting the absence of adjoining

Page 73



development immediately to north of the application site. The proposal is
therefore, clearly contrary to Policy LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan.

Policy LP12 identifies that only infill developments will be considered
favourably within settlements that have been identified as ‘small villages’
such as Tydd St Giles. Real and actual character harm would arise through
the introduction of new development in this location which would serve to
extend existing linear features within an area which currently serves to mark
the gentle transition between the open countryside and the built form of the
village this being clearly contrary to Policy LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland
Local Plan.

Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy
Framework require applications within Flood Zone 3 locations - 9 - to satisfy
the sequential and exception test, with further guidance regarding the
application of the sequential test being given in Cambridgeshire Flood and
Water SPD and the Fenland District Council ‘Approach to the Sequential
Test for Housing'.

No Sequential Test has been submitted however noting that the site fails to
accord with the Settlement Hierarchy outlined in Policy LP3 of the Fenland
Local Plan and relates to the open countryside the Sequential Test is
required to be applied on a district-wide basis and in this respect the
proposal fails to comply with Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and the
NPPF.

Page 74



v a‘\“

\
'
'

Silver Springs

The Keepers

The Bungalow

N
N N A N
N N Q
N 3\ N N
<
N N W N
N N N N
N
N N N
N 3 N N
N A N
N D Q
N \ N D
N\ \ NN
N 2\ N
N ™ & A
3 N PN
N N A A
N 3 N
\ . N
AN ® X
N % \
N . N\ W \
\ . \

\ N o\ N

Smallholdings

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

]

F/YR24/0034/0
Scale = 1:1,250

Created on: 19/04/2024

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Page 75



Cambridgeshire County Council AA G e

L=

=7

8 N
=\ \
- T

1S~

Bridge House

Summer Lodge

U

Silver Springs

qreck

(9

The Keepers

Smallholdings

2.1m
Windy Willows

S

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE INFORMATION ON THIS MAP
IS INDICATIVE, AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED ON IN
DISPUTES OR FOR LEGAL PURPOSES.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100023205

Scale: 1:1250 Legend The information shown in this search result is a depiction of the highway extent that
Date: 19.03.2024 o has been investigated using the highway records available to the County Council. This
Ref: CCC597055376 - CH Public highway research has been interpreted and displayed against current Ordnance Survey (OS)

' (green) map data as accurately as possible. It is possible that the OS mapping for the area
Highway boundary plans are o searched does not show features that typically form part of the highway boundary,
determined using Ordnance Survey Public highway I:l such as (but not limited to) ditches, hedges, fences or embankments. Therefore,

(OS) mapping at a scale of 1:1250 or (blue) please note that owing to the tolerance of accuracy that must be applied to OS maps,
1:2500. Please refer to OS’s Statement Public highwa the highway boundary ‘on the ground’ may not be in exactly the same position as the
(s)ifteAZ?Jlrj\zcy when comparing with a d 9 y boundary features displayed by OS. If you require a site visit to determine the physical
y (red) highway extent please contact searches@cambridgeshire.gov.uk. This service is
provided on a cost-recoverable basis in accordance with our Schedule of Charges.

Page 76




]
[

A\
AN
Y/
4
DaE]
TN
N
AN
N
D)
I_y
=
=
| I
El
=
| —

== [T 74 [T === i [T LTI

N\
N
AN
Z
[ — |
=
=

[ ]
T

t
T
1
T
T

— , o
::ﬁ@f%% i = 7%@%34@@;@ | /&Ngg% i 2 %ﬁ%%@;ﬁ W’%ﬁf

®
LLL

Indicative Street Elevation
Scale: 1:100

Proposed driveway

Compacted gravel surround
to IDB specification

0 WD 0

o 000 0O 000 —
4 Bed Chalet | Garage
Bungalow 4 Bed Chalet }
Bungalow i
|
|
|

< g
oz 8
53 £ CHURCH
© ©
£3 LANE
g % Tarmac crossover to CCC g Existing highway
W o Highways specification o

SO ;. o

Type 1 hardcore to dyke
with minimum 225mm depth

225mm diameter pipe to
IDB specification

Access Cross Section
Scale: 1:50

0 0.5 1 1.5 2

General Notes

1. All dimensions are shown in 'mm' unless otherwise stated.

2. The contractor, sub-contractors and suppliers must verify all
dimensions on site prior to the commencement of any work.

3.This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant engineers
and specialist sub-contractors drawings and specifications.

4.Any discrepancies are to be brought to the designers attention.

[ — —

metres

o L |

s | (N Y N Do N OO

PRIVATE

Existing -
grassed
vehicular

SHARED DRIVE

Existing
access to
® be removed

access

Existing

S g

Existing grass verge

Existing vehicular

Proposed 1.8m high |
close boarded fence

Existing post and two rail fence 2
S el

v

Existing grass verge

| g

Indicative Site Plan 9o 2 ° 75

Scale: 1:250 metres

) ) abed

site access
Existing footpath providing
access to village
Existi - Existing
xisting grass verge Exisng - - vohietan
vehicular ———— < N T asdess———— I / R
access

Silver Springs

The Keepers

Proposed Dwelling
(F/YR23/0162/PNC04)

. The Bungalow

2.1m
\Windy Willows

]

SITE PLAN KEY

Proposed site access

Existing buildings

R Faint dashed lines

1 indicate fences to be

- removed and vegetation
~ to be cut back.

Existing hedges /
vegetation to be retained

Location Plan
Scale: 1:1250

0 10 20 30 40

5 —

metres

Proposed 2m landscaping
buffer

) , ) Allocated parking for proposed

1 1 1 dwellings (one within garage and
i i i two parking spaces)
| | |

| | |

Proposed 1.5m wide footpath to
extend pedestrian access to village

Revisions

A May Boundaries updated
2022

B June Access cross section added
2022

c Dec Additional location plan
2023

D Feb Access location updated and link foopath
2024 moved to east of Church Road

E Mar Extent of footpath clarified
2024

Status

FOR APPROVAL

B SVWAN

A R C

Proposed Residential Development
of 2 Dwellings at Church Lane, May

Site Plan, Location Plan and

Date Drawn by
GL

Tydd St Giles for 2022 Checked by
Mr D Moore GE

_ Drawing Title [0 "No. Sheet Size
Planning Drawing SE-1811 v
Street Elevation |PWe Ne- Revision
1000 E

VWA

DS

H I T E C T U R E

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited, Swann Edwards Architecture,
Black Barn, Fen Road, Guyhirn, Wisbech, Cambs. PE13 4AA
t 01945 450694 e info@swannedwards.co.uk w www.swannedwards.co.uk

Job Title

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited ©




General Notes

1. All dimensions are shown in 'mm' unless otherwise stated.

2.The contractor, sub-contractors and suppliers must verify all
dimensions on site prior to the commencement of any work.

3.This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant engineers
and specialist sub-contractors drawings and specifications.

4.Any discrepancies are to be brought to the designers attention.

&

Proposed
Dwelling

(F/YR23/0162/PNC04)

L

Wn\
Willows \

AN

1

I

The Kushti Tan The Keepers

Bungalow
' I l

Vehicular Visibility Splay P S ~|[Feb | Access tocation updeted and iink foopatr

Blue shading indicates 2.4 x 120m vehicular visibility splay

Revisions

A Jan Ref to indicative site layout
2024

. . . . 2024 moved to east of Church Road
(on indicative site layout) metres
Scale: 1:500 C Mar Extent of footpath clarified
2024
Status

FOR APPROVAL

B SVWANN
_

—DWARDS

A R CH I T ECTUR E

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited, Swann Edwards Architecture,
Black Barn, Fen Road, Guyhirn, Wisbech, Cambs. PE13 4AA
t 01945 450694 e info@swannedwards.co.uk w www.swannedwards.co.uk

. . Job Title Date Drawn by
Proposed Residential Development GL
of 2 Dwellings at Church Lane, Dec
Tydd St Giles for | 2023 Checked by
Mr D Moore GE
T Blann D%W”‘g Tite T Job No. Sheet Size
& ~ Planning Drawing | gp_ g1 N
@ Vehicular Visibility Splay
~ Dwg No. Revision
oo 1001 C

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited ©



Agenda Item 7

F/YR24/0108/F
Applicant: Lindsey Wilkie Agent : Mr G Boreham
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
59 Elwyn Road, March, Cambridgeshire, PE15 9BY
Erect a detached double garage to existing dwelling
Officer recommendation: Grant

Reason for Committee: Number of representations received contrary to Officer
recommendation

Government Planning Guarantee

Statutory Target Date For Determination: 19 March 2024
EOT in Place: Yes

EOT Expiry: 08 May 2024

Application Fee: £258

Risk Statement:

This application must be determined by 8" May 2024 otherwise it will be out of
time and therefore negatively affect the performance figures.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application is for the erection of a detached double garage to the front of the
existing garage.

1.2 It is acknowledged that the garage would be visible from the street scene,
however given the single-storey nature of the development, existing boundary
treatments and the presence of similar developments within the street scene, it is
not considered that the scheme would have adverse character impacts.

1.3 Whilst it is acknowledged that a number of objections have been received from
neighbouring properties, it is unlikely that the garage would detrimentally impact
upon neighbouring amenity by way of overlooking, overshadowing or appearing
overbearing.

1.4 No further policy issues were raised during the assessment of the scheme. As
such, the scheme can be considered to be compliant with Policy LP1, LP14, LP15
and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

1.5 The application is therefore recommended for approval.

Page 79



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

SITE DESCRIPTION

The site is situated within the settlement of March and lies to the east of Elwyn
Road. The site comprises of a generous plot with a detached residential dwelling.

The site is surrounded by residential dwellings of mixed height, scale and
architecture.

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 (low risk).
PROPOSAL

The application has been amended to reduce the scale, removing a store room
proposed at first-floor level.

The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a detached
double garage. The proposed garage would be situated adjacent to the south of
the application site, forward of the existing dwelling on site.

The proposed garage would measure 7.9 x 8.9 metres. The roof proposed would
be pitched with a ridge height of 4.3 metres and an eaves height of 2.6 metres.

The materials proposed would be a Flemish antique brick plinth with white render
and Grey concrete tiles.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
F/YR24/0108/F | Erect a detached double garage to existing dwelling | 59 Elwyn
Road March Cambridgeshire PE15 9BY (fenland.gov.uk)

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision

FIYR17/0714/F Erection of a 2-storey Granted
front extension and porch | 27/09/2017
and alterations to front
windows of existing
dwelling

CONSULTATIONS

The following comments were received with regard to the initial proposal on site,
which was for a detached double garage with store above:

March Town Council

Recommendation: Approval

Local Residents/Interested Parties

11 letters of objection were received to this application. 10 of these letters were
received from address points in March (6 from Elwyn Road, 1 from Elwyn Court, 1

from Westwood Avenue, 1 from Millfield Close and 1 from Grandford Drove). 1
letter was received from an address point within Wimblington.

Page 80


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

54

5.5

5.6

6.1

71

7.2

7.3

A further letter of objection was also received, however the address details were
incomplete and therefore it could not be counted.

The reasons for objection are as follows:

- Detrimental to the street view

- Loss of light

- Proximity to boundary

- Future change of use

- Previous garage on site has been converted
- Should be situated to the rear of the house
- Haven'’t received consultation

- Needs to be reduced in size and height

Following the submission of amended drawings detailing a single-storey garage,
the following comments were received:

March Town Council
Recommendation; Approval
Local Residents/Interested Parties

9 letters of objection were received to the revised application. 8 of these letters
were received from address points in March (2 from Elwyn Road, 2 from Upwell
Road, 1 from Elwyn Court, 2 from Millfield Close and 1 from Aspenwood Grove). 1
letter was received from an address point within Wimblington. The reasons for
objection are as follows:

- Detrimental to street view

- Loss of light

- Proximity to boundary

- Previous garage on site has been converted

- Should be situated to the rear of the house

- Reduction in height not a significant enough change

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021

Context
|dentity

Page 81



7.4

7.5

7.6

9.1

9.2

Built Form

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 48 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP22: Parking Provision

LP32: Flood and Water Management

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017

KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development

Design and Visual Amenity of the Area
Residential Amenity

Parking

Flood Risk

Other Matters

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

This application seeks permission for the erection of a detached garage to the
front of the existing dwelling. Policy LP16 supports the principle of such
development subject to the significance of, and the likely impact upon the
character of the surrounding area, the amenity of neighbouring properties and
users in its design and appearance, and the impact upon parking arrangements.
The principle of development is therefore considered acceptable, subject to policy
considerations set out below.

Design and Visual Amenity of the Area

Policy LP16 of the Local Plan is concerned with ensuring that the development is
acceptable in design terms and protects the character and appearance of an area.

Page 82



9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

The proposed garage would be situated to the front of the existing dwelling on site
and therefore highly visible from the street scene. The site is surrounded by
residential dwellings of mixed height, scale and architecture.

There are examples of detached garages within the street scene, such as at 36
Elwyn Road. No. 36 is bounded by a brick wall and there is numerous trees to the
front of the site, aiding in obscuring the view of the garage from the street scene.

The garage proposed under this application would be situated forward of the
existing dwelling on site, with a clearance of approximately 1 metre between the
rear elevation of the garage and the southern boundary of the site. The garage
would be set back from the highway by approximately 15.7 metres. Whilst it is
acknowledged that the building would be visible from the street scene, given that
the building would be single-storey, its unlikely that visual impacts would be
adverse. In addition to this, a 2 metre high hedge runs along the front boundary of
the site, with an 11m ash tree in the north-western corner of the site which will aid
in obscuring the view of the building from the street scene. Therefore, on balance,
it's not considered that the development would have an adverse impact upon the
character of the surrounding area and therefore is considered to be compliant with
Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan.

Residential Amenity

Policy LP16 of the Local Plan is also concerned with ensuring that the
development is acceptable in terms of protecting the amenity of neighbouring
properties.

There is a neighbouring property immediately south of the application site (No.
62). The northern side elevation of this property would be approximately 5.2
metres from the rear elevation of the proposed garage. The side elevation of No.
62 includes a number of ground floor windows. Having reviewed the site history for
this dwelling, the windows appear to serve a kitchen, WC and cloak room
(application reference F/'YR12/0794/F). The proposed garage would be visible
from all of these ground floor windows, however there is the provision of a high
close-boarded fence along the southern boundary of the site, which already
obscures the view of these windows. It is unlikely that the provision of a single-
storey extension would therefore introduce significant overbearing impacts upon
the neighbouring property.

It is acknowledged that objections have been received with regard to the loss of
light as a result of the development on site. Given that the direction of sun travel is
from east to west, it is unlikely that the garage would introduce any significant
overshadowing impacts. Overshadowing impacts would predominantly impact
upon the application site itself. As such, it is not considered that the scheme would
significantly impact upon neighbouring property by way of overshadowing.

No windows are proposed to serve the garage, therefore there are no overlooking
impacts to address.

As such, the scheme is considered to be compliant with Policy LP16 with regard to
residential amenity.

Parking

Page 83



9.11 Policy LP15 seeks to ensure that adequate parking provision is provided on site.
The garage will internally measure 7x 8 metres. Appendix A of the Fenland Local
Plan 2014 states that garages should internally measure 7 x 3 metres to be
designated as a parking space. The garage therefore is sufficient in size to
accommodate 2 parking spaces. Irrespective of this, there is sufficient space to
the front of the dwelling to accommodate parking of at least 3 vehicles.

9.12 As such, the scheme is considered to be compliant with Policy LP15.

Flood Risk

9.13 The proposal is located within flood zone 1 and not in an area known to be at risk
of flooding. Furthermore, given the modest scale of the development, any
significant flooding implications are unlikely.

Other Matters

9.14 It is acknowledged that a number of objections have been received with regard to

this application. These objections have been addressed in the assessment section
above.

10 CONCLUSIONS

10.1 The proposed garage will not adversely impact upon the character of the area, nor
will it adversely impact upon neighbouring properties by way of overlooking,
overshadowing or appearing overbearing. There would also be no adverse impact
on parking. No further policy issues were raised during the assessment of the
scheme. As such, the scheme can be considered to be compliant with Policy LP1,
LP14, LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

11 RECOMMENDATION

11.1 Grant, with the following conditions:

1 The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years
from the date of this permission.

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby approved shall be finished externally with a Flemish
antique brick plinth with white render and Grey concrete tiles.

Reason - To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and ensure
compliance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

3 | The development hereby permitted shall be used for the parking of vehicles
and ancillary storage only and shall not be used as habitable rooms and no
trade or business shall be carried out therefrom.

Reason - The determination of this application is on the basis of the parking
and ancillary storage use of the building; any habitable or commercial element
would require further consideration of residential amenity, highway safety,
parking provision and flood risk in accordance with LP2, LP14, LP15 and

Page 84



LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Approved Plans

H9480/02 REV B Proposed Site Plan and Street Scene
H9480/03 REV C Garage Floor Plans and Elevations
H9480/01 Location Plan and Existing Site Plan

Page 85



Created on: 07/02/2024

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 10023778

F/YR24/0108/F
Scale = 1:1,250

z

A

Fenland District Council

Page 86




18 abed

PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVING (NON SLIP) I

TARMAC

GRAVEL

% SLAB PAVING

WHEELIE BINS

SV HEDGING

VEGETATION

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
(1:200)

|

34 32L;

LEGEND: L - O
6

11m ASH

PROPOSED LOCATION OF
GARAGE

m

—

é 3
2
Z
gy

O o
35 St - G
Andrews

Court

2m HEDGE

550 | s
| A

OVERHEAD CABLES

A

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

METERS
L s N i S
0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
B SCHEME UPDATED MAR 2024
A DRAWING UPDATED FEB 2024
REVISIONS DATE
CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk
PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk
‘ Fenland District Council |
LABC” LABE” :

Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Lindsey Wilkie

PROJECT

59 Elwyn Road
March

Lo

PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200)

=
H \
ERIE i ==ia =

Cambridgeshire
PE1S 9BY

TITLE

Proposed Site Plan
& Street Scene

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE
G.Boreham

CHECKED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Jan 2024

— H9480,/02,

As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
SLAB PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
WHEELIE BINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
EXISTING DWELLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
HEDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Lindsey Wilkie

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
59 Elwyn Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
PE15 9BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
& Street Scene

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
G.Boreham

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Jan 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
H9480/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
296550

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
OVERHEAD CABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
11m ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
2m HEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
1:200

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
TARMAC DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
PROPOSED LOCATION OF GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
DRAWING UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
FEB 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
SCHEME UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
MAR 2024


8g abed

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

225

8000 ?

2

(6]

50 GARAGE

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
(1:200)

>

7000 {A\ PROPOSED SECTION A—A MATERIALS:

(1:50) WALLS : FLEMISH ANTIQUE
BRICK PLINTH
AND WHITE RENDER

ROOF : GREY CONCRETE

TILES
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

(1:50) JOINERY : ANTHRACITE UPVC

METERS
(R WO N R I A N — —
0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4
METERS
1:100
—1 1 1 P 1 |
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
METERS
R Chy W N A I i N — —
0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
_—=
/ C SCHEME AMENDED MAR 2024
B HEIGHT REDUCED FEB 2024
A CLIENTS COMMENTS JAN 2024
REVISIONS DATE
CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
PROPOSED RHS ELEVAT'ON 1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk
(1 : 1 OO) PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk
‘ ~ Fenland District Council | ,
LABC” LABE” :

Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

CLIENT

Lindsey Wilkie

), T T

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION 7 Cambridgeshire
(1:50) (1:50) PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION PETS 9BY

i

(1:100)
Proposed Garage

Arrangements

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE
G.Boreham

CHECKED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Jan 2024

— H9480 /03,

As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_100
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
Lindsey Wilkie

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
59 Elwyn Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
PE15 9BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Proposed Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Arrangements

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
G.Boreham

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Jan 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
H9480/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
8000

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
7000

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
2550

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
PROPOSED SECTION A-A (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
1:200

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
MATERIALS: WALLS : FLEMISH ANTIQUE        BRICK PLINTH        AND WHITE RENDER ROOF : GREY CONCRETE       TILES JOINERY : ANTHRACITE UPVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
CLIENTS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
JAN 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
HEIGHT REDUCED

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
FEB 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
22.5°

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
SCHEME AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
MAR 2024


Agenda Iltem 8

F/YR24/0173/PIP
Applicant: Mr J Waters Agent : Mr R Papworth
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
Land North East Of The Grange, London Road, Chatteris, Cambridgeshire
Permission in principle to erect up to 4 x dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations received contrary to Officer
recommendation

Government Planning Guarantee

Statutory Target Date For Determination: 27 March 2024
EOT in Place: Yes

EOT Expiry: 10 May 2024

Application Fee: £2515

Risk Statement:

This application must be determined by 10t May 2024 otherwise it will be out of
time and therefore negatively affect the performance figures.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for
up to 3 dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage
(or Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in
principle and assesses the principle issues namely:
(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed
development proposals are assessed. Technical details consent would need to
be applied for should this application be granted.

1.2 Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset there can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, matters raised via statutory
bodies may not be addressed at this time.

1.3 The site is situated on the southern side of London Road which is situated
outside of the built-up settlement of Chatteris.

1.4 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement hierarchy
within the district; Policy LP12 details a range of criteria against which

Page 89



development within the villages will be assessed and Policy LP16 seeks to
ensure that proposed development responds to and improves the character of
the local built environment. The application site proposes the construction of four
dwellings located outside of the built up settlement of Chatteris.

1.5 By virtue of its elsewhere location, the proposed development is considered to

be detrimental the character and appearance of the area and would create a
precedent for further development. Thus, the proposal would therefore fail to
comply with the requirements of Policy LP3, LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014).

1.6 Overall, the proposed development is considered to be unacceptable, and the

recommendation is one of refusal.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is situated on the southern side of London Road which is
situated outside of the built up settlement of Chatteris.

The site currently comprises agricultural land and is bounded by trees along the
northern boundary of the site.

Neighbouring properties are situated to the north and west of the application site.
The application site is situated within Flood Zone 1.

PROPOSAL

Planning in Principle (PIP) applications are an alternative way of obtaining
planning permission for housing led development and separates the consideration
of matters of principle for proposed development, from the technical detail.

As set down in the Town & Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order 2017
and Town & Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017, the
scope of PIPs (stage 1 of the process) is restricted to consideration of location,
development size and land use. All other matters are ‘reserved’ for consideration
by the stage 2 Technical Details application which may be made should PIP be
granted.

This application seeks planning permission in principle for up to 4 dwellings. An
indicative plan has been provided detailing an indicative access and layout.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
‘first stage’ (or Permission in Principle stage) establishes whether a site is suitable
in-principle and assesses the ‘principle’ issues namely:

1) Location;
2) Use,
3) Amount of development proposed

Should this application be successful, the applicant would have to submit a
Technical Details application covering all other detailed material planning
considerations. The approval of Permission in Principle alone does not constitute
the grant of planning permission.

Page 90




3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

The second (‘technical details consent’) stage is when the detailed development
proposals are assessed. Technical details consent regarding the proposed
properties would need to be applied for should this application be granted.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
F/YR24/0173/PIP | Permission in principle to erect up to 4 x dwellings | Land North
East Of The Grange London Road Chatteris Cambridgeshire (fenland.gov.uk)

SITE PLANNING HISTORY
None recent and relevant
CONSULTATIONS
Chatteris Town Council
Support

FDC Environmental Health

The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted information and
have ‘No Objections’ to the proposal, as it is unlikely to have a detrimental effect
on local air quality or be affected by ground contamination.

In the event that Permission in Principle (PIP) is granted and a further application
for the site is submitted in the future, this service may recommend a condition on
working time restrictions during the construction phase due to the close proximity
of existing noise sensitive receptors.

CCC Archaeology

I am writing with regards to the archaeological implications of the above
referenced planning application. The proposed development lies in an area of
archaeological potential. To the east is the moated manorial site at Wood House
(Cambridgeshire Historic Environment Record 01097) with significant earthworks
associated. Across the development area is evidence of the wider medieval
agricultural landscape with the earthwork remains of Medieval Ridge and Furrow
present across the site (CHER 01097). Across Cambridgeshire the attrition rate of
these features is high and we have a relatively low sample of ridge and furrow
surviving as earthworks. To the east of the proposed development an
archaeological investigation found a number of undated gullies (CHER ECB6148)
and an archaeological investigation to the south found similar features (CHER
ECB7202).

We are content that no works are required prior to determination of an application
and consequently we wish to raise no objections for this application to secure
Planning In Principle, however we would request to be consulted on any future
planning application for development within the redline area indicated, with the
expectation that a condition on development, if required, could be secured at
Technical Details stage.

Page 91


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

54

5.5

CCC Minerals and Waste

Thank you for consulting Cambridgeshire County Council, in its role as the
Minerals and Waste Planning Authority (MWPA), on the above application. Having
reviewed the available documentation, the MWPA wishes to make the following
comments:

The site lies within a Sand and Gravel Mineral Safequarding Area (MSA) which is
safeguarded under Policy 5 of the MWLP. This policy seeks to prevent mineral
resources of local and/or national importance being needlessly sterilised. Policy 5
sets out a number of exemptions (criteria (a) — (h)), for when Policy 5 is not
applicable, none of which relevant in this case. It then goes on to set out that that
development will only be permitted in certain circumstances (criteria (i) — (k)). The
application documentation does not appear to make any reference to the
safeguarded minerals, or Policy 5. Consequently criteria (i) — (k) have not been
demonstrated, leaving criterion (l), which states that:

“development will only be permitted where it has been demonstrated that there is
an overriding need for the development (where prior extraction is not feasible) **’.

It is noted that the proposed development site is small and is close to the edge of
the built form of Chatteris. The MWPA considers that, although the extent of the
resource within the site is unknown, the nature of the development, size of the site
and proximity of existing built development means that complete prior extraction is,
in this case, unlikely to be feasible.

Should the Local Planning Authority be of the view that there is an overriding need
for the development, the MWPA will be content that Policy 5 has been addressed,
subject to the following informative being included in any permission:

“The site lies within a Sand and Gravel Mineral Safequarding Area, which
indicates that there may be an underlying sand and gravel resource. The Minerals
and Waste Planning Authority considers that prior extraction is unlikely to be
feasible and that there is an overriding need for the development. Prior extraction
of the resource has, therefore, not been required in this instance. However, the
applicant is encouraged to make best use of any sand and gravel that may be
incidentally extracted as part of the development.”

Local Residents/Interested Parties

5 letters of objection have been received with regard to this application from
address points within Chatteris (4 from London Road, 1 from Glebe Close). The
reasons for objection are summarised as follows:

- Quality of life

- Water runoff and dampness

- Drainage

- Wildlife

- Health and wellbeing

- Proximity to neighbouring property
- Loss of view

- Loss of privacy

- Highways

- Archaeology

Page 92



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8 letters of support have been received with regard to this application from address
points within Chatteris (3 from London Road, 2 from Tithe Road, 2 from Wood
Street and 1 from West Street). The reasons for support are summarised as
follows:

- Ideal location for executive homes
- Enhance the area

- In-keeping with surroundings

- Flooding

- Not backland

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 - Meeting Housing Need

LP7 — Urban Extensions

LP10 — Chatteris

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 48 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

Page 93



9

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

LP28: Landscape

LP32: Flood and Water Management

KEY ISSUES

o Principle of Development

o Location

. Use

o Amount of development proposed
o Other Matters

ASSESSMENT

The application is made under the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017, which came into force on 1st
June 2018. This amends the Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle)
Order 2017 to allow local planning authorities to grant permission in principle on
receipt of a valid application for housing-led development. The National Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG) explains that the Order is an alternative way of obtaining
planning permission for housing-led development, which separates the
consideration of matters of principle for development, from the technical detail.
This consent route has two stages: the first stage (or permission in principle stage)
establishes whether a site is suitable in principle, and the second (technical details
consent) stage, is when the detailed development proposals are assessed.

There are certain limitations set out in the relevant Order. For the avoidance of
doubt the proposed development is not:

a) Major development.

b) Habitats development.

c) Householder development.

d) Schedule 1 development which is Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
development that requires an Environmental Statement.

The proposed development is not considered to be Schedule 2 development within
the meaning of the EIA Regulations, which would requires EIA if the project is likely
to give rise to significant environmental effects.

An applicant for planning permission can apply for permission in principle for a
range of dwellings by expressing a minimum and maximum number of dwellings as
part of the application. In this instance, permission in principle is sought for the
erection of up to 4no dwellings.

The PPG states: "The scope of permission in principle is limited to location, land
use and amount of development. Issues relevant to these 'in principle' matters
should be considered at the permission in principle stage. Other matters should be
considered at the technical details consent stage." The PPG also advises that
applicants may volunteer additional information to support decision making, in
particular, to give more certainty about how many dwellings the site is capable of
supporting, and whether mitigation of likely impacts is possible. As this is a
permission-in-principle application, no plans are required.

Page 94



9.6 The Council is therefore tasked with considering whether the location, land use and
amount of development are acceptable in accordance with the relevant policies in
the development plan, unless there are material considerations, such as those
within the NPPF and the PPG, which indicate otherwise.

9.7 The Council can inform the applicant what they expect to see at the technical
details consent stage, but it cannot impose planning conditions.

9.8 Noting the guidance in place regarding Permission in Principle submissions
assessment must be restricted to (a) location, (b) use and (c) amount and these
items are considered in turn below:

Location and Use

9.9 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan sets out the settlement hierarchy for
development within the district, grouping settlements into categories based on the
level of services available, their sustainability and their capacity to accept further
development.

9.10 Chatteris is classed as a Market Town, where the majority of the district’'s new
housing, employment growth, retail growth and wider service provision should take
place. Policy LP10 relates specifically to the Market Town of Chatteris.

9.11 As aforementioned, the application site is situated outside of the built up settlement
of Chatteris and is therefore considered an ‘Elsewhere’ location. Development not
falling into one of the defined village hierarchies will fall into the “elsewhere”
category and will be restricted to that which is demonstrably essential to the
effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, outdoor recreation,
transport or utility services or to minerals and waste development, which is not
applicable to this proposal.

9.12 Policy LP16 (d) seeks to ensure that development makes a positive contribution to
the local distinctiveness and character of the area, enhances its local setting,
reinforces local identity and does not adversely impact, either in design or scale
terms, on the street scene, settlement pattern or landscape character of the
surrounding area.

9.13 The proposal would result in the creation of new dwellings in a location that is
currently open in nature, outside of the built-up settlement of Chatteris. The
proposal would therefore fail to enhance the character of the area, causing
unacceptable harm to the open countryside.

9.14 As such, given the elsewhere location of the site, it is considered that the proposed
location of the development is contrary to the requirements of Policy LP3, LP12
and LP16 (d) of the Fenland Local Plan and therefore cannot be supported.

Amount of development proposed

9.15 The application seeks Permission in Principle for up to 4 dwellings on a site of
approximately 0.405 hectares. An indicative site plan has been submitted detailing
4 dwellings with private amenity space and parking. The dwellings could
comfortably be accommodated on-site. However, the detailed layout and design
would be for consideration at the Technical Details stage. In terms of consideration
of amount, the proposal is acceptable.

Page 95



Other Matters
Flood Risk

9.14 The site falls within Flood Zone 1 (low risk) and issues of surface water disposal
would be considered under Building Regulations, as such, there is likely to be no
issues to reconcile with regard to Policy LP14.

Objections

9.15 The letters of objection are acknowledged, however it is only the location, use and
amount of development that can be considered at this stage. Technical details
regarding design, highway safety, wildlife and archaeology would be assessed at
technical details stage.

Minerals & Waste

9.16 Comments from CCC Minerals and Waste team are noted, and that prior extraction
of existing sand and gravel resource at the site is not required in this instance
given the scale of development proposed. Notwithstanding, the above assessment
concludes that there is no overriding need for the development that would justify a
departure from policy in this case.

10 CONCLUSION

10.1 This application seeks to confirm whether ‘Permission in Principle’ is acceptable for
Land North East Of The Grange, London Road, Chatteris. The scope of permission
in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of development. The
location and use of the land for residential development would be contrary to Policy
LP3, LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan. It is therefore considered that in
terms of location and land use consideration, the Planning in Principle application
fails.

11 RECOMMENDATION

11.1 Refuse; for the following reasons:

1 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement
hierarchy within the district, directing development to the within the main
settlements in the first instance; Policy LP12 Part D details a range of
criteria against which development outside of settlements will be assessed
(having regard to LP3) and Policy LP16 seeks to ensure that proposed
development responds to and improves the character of the local built
environment. The application site proposes the construction of four
dwellings located outside of the built up settlement of Chatteris, therefore in
an ‘elsewhere’ location and does not meet the exception criteria under LP3.

By virtue of its ‘elsewhere’ location, the proposed development is
considered to be detrimental the character and appearance of the area and
would create an inappropriate precedent for further development in the
countryside. Thus, the proposal would therefore fail to comply with the
requirements of Policies LP3, LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

Page 96



Highfield
Housg

Created on: 01/03/2024 F/YR24/0173/PIP N Fenland

© Crown Copyright and database

CAMBRIDGESHIRE
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1:1,250 Fenland District Council

Page 97



Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

/////////////,
/ / /I/I "// / 4) 7

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

/ Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
o o .
%
//////,\ reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

4 specification. All work to be in accordance with
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where

appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building

W7 | WS %
4% % N 7
R % 2 %/
X i / Y\ 7 ) 5 ,'%
i) N : /é
e 4 ko D T %
y -,/ - :Wi /’/ /¢/ ‘ // < "//% Eoer%vlj]lssiotr;s t?]r;dEi:gi’:;ec:btai nnnnnnnn jon cert ificate and
W) / é//
7 7 / / // :, ,’%
v’\’“ b /}}/
% s"“f&’\ : /é

4.7

%7

Z

/ 7 o . E
v .
0 A J A
7 v// 1 ”/
7 4//' o '?7// /
7 4 /&/,‘ AW

v,

%
%,
Xz

Y.
"I

<

MMMMM

000000000



AutoCAD SHX Text_215
PLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
PLOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
FIRST 10m TO BE SPECIFIED BY CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS DEPARTMENT. ENSURE THIS IS SEALED AND DRAINED AS PER CCC HIGHWAYS SPECIFICATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Mr J Waters

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Land East of The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Chatteris

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Cambs

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
PE16 6SF

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Indicative Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
Aug 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
H9204/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
INDICATIVE SITE PLAN (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
2.4x160m VISIBILITY SPLAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
2.4x160m VISIBILITY SPLAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
EXISTING HEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
BIRD BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
EV CHARGING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
OWL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
BAT BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
BIN COLLECTION POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
FEB 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
A


Agenda Item 9

F/YR24/0179/PIP

Applicant: Mr Shaun Bowles Agent : Mr George Boreham
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

Land South Of Dixie Lodge, High Road, Tholomas Drove, Cambridgeshire

Permission in principle to erect up to 3 x dwellings and the formation of 3 x
accesses.

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations received contrary to Officer
recommendation.

Government Planning Guarantee

Statutory Target Date For Determination: 1 April 2024
EOT in Place: Yes

EOT Expiry: 10 May 2024

Application Fee: £1509

Risk Statement:

This application must be determined by 10 May 2024 otherwise it will be out of
time and therefore negatively affect the performance figures.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for
up to 3 dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage
(or Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in
principle and assesses the principle issues namely:
(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed
development proposals are assessed. Technical details consent would need to
be applied for should this application be granted.

1.2 Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset there can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, matters raised via statutory
bodies may not be addressed at this time.

1.3 The site lies to the south-east of the existing linear form of residential
development at Tholomas Drove. The site forms an existing wood-chip yard.

Page 99



1.4 Policy LP3 clearly indicates that Tholomas Drove is a ‘Other Village’ where

development will be considered on its merits and will normally be restricted to a
single dwelling infill site within an otherwise built-up frontage. Having regard to
the spatial criteria within he footnote to Local Plan policy LP12, the site is
considered to fall outside of the built-up frontage. The Fenland Local Plan 2014
under its glossary defines residential infilling as “Development of a site between
existing buildings”. The Planning Portal Glossary defines this as “The
development of a relatively small gap between existing buildings.” It is clear the
proposed development, of up to 3 dwellings, at the site in question is not deemed
as single dwelling infill as the site presents a large undeveloped gap of
approximately 100 metres between existing dwellings and is not situated within a
built-up frontage.

1.5 The site is rural in character with open fields to the rear and beyond. It is

contended that real and actual character harm would arise through the
consolidation of the built form and the extension of existing linear features within
an area which currently serves to mark the transition between the open
countryside and the main built form of the village this being clearly at odds with
Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan and contrary to the aims of Policy LP16 (d)
which focuses on the need for development to enhance its setting and respond to
the character of the area, including the local built environment.

1.6 Overall, the proposed development is considered to be unacceptable, and the

recommendation is one of refusal.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is situated on the western side of High Road, to the south-east
of the continuous, linear built-up area of Tholomas Drove.

The northern part of the site is currently informally being used for storage of
woodchips and the site is bound by post and rail fencing.

A dwelling is located to the north and another to the south of the application site.

The application site is situated within Flood Zone 1 and an Amber Great Crested
Newts (GCN) zone.

PROPOSAL

Planning in Principle (PIP) applications are an alternative way of obtaining
planning permission for housing led development and separates the consideration
of matters of principle for proposed development, from the technical detail.

As set down in the Town & Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order 2017
and Town & Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017, the
scope of PIPs (stage 1 of the process) is restricted to consideration of location,
development size and land use. All other matters are ‘reserved’ for consideration
by the stage 2 Technical Details application which may be made should PIP be
granted.

This application seeks planning permission in principle for up to 3 dwellings. An
indicative plan has been provided detailing an indicative site layout and associated
accesses.

Page 100




3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

5.1

5.2

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
‘first stage’ (or Permission in Principle stage) establishes whether a site is suitable
in-principle and assesses the ‘principle’ issues namely:

1) Location;
2) Use,
3) Amount of development proposed

Should this application be successful, the applicant would have to submit a
Technical Details application covering all other detailed material planning
considerations. The approval of Permission in Principle alone does not constitute
the grant of planning permission.

The second (‘technical details consent’) stage is when the detailed development
proposals are assessed. Technical details consent regarding the proposed
properties would need to be applied for should this application be granted.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
F/YR24/0179/PIP_| Permission in principle to erect up to 3 x dwellings and the
formation of 3 x accesses | Land South Of Dixie Lodge High Road Tholomas
Drove Cambridgeshire (fenland.gov.uk)

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
F/YRO07/0333/0 Erection of a dwelling Refuse

04/06/2007
CONSULTATIONS

Wisbech St Mary Parish Council

At the meeting of Wisbech St. Mary Parish Council on 11th March 2024, the
Council recommended Approval. Councillors considered that the application was
in Flood Zone 1 and had community support. A development in this location would
enhance the area and would be better for road safety. It was also noted that
Councillors have considered changing the speed limit of the road from 40mph -
30mph following representation from residents.

FDC Environmental Health

The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted information and
have ‘No Objections’ to the proposal, as it is unlikely to have a detrimental effect
on local air quality or be affected by ground contamination.

In the event that Permission in Principle (PIP) is granted and a further application
for the site is submitted in the future, this service may recommend a condition on
working time restrictions during the construction phase due to the close proximity
of existing noise sensitive receptors.

Page 101


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

5.3

5.4

6.1

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

North Level Internal Drainage Board

Please note that North Level District Internal Drainage Board have no objections in
principle to the above planning application.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

32 letters of support have been received with regard to this development (16 from
address points at Tholomas Drove; 6 from Wisbech St Mary; 5 from Guyhirn; 2
from Murrow; 2 from Bunkers Hill and 1 from Leverington). The reasons for
support are summarised as follows:

- Infill

- Character of the area

- Reduced speed limit

- Housing for local families
- Flood Zone 1

- Access

- Served by public transport

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in

Page 102



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

accordance with Paragraph 48 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1:  Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP18: Development in the Countryside

LP20: Accessibility and Transport

LP22: Parking Provision

LP32: Flood and Water Management

KEY ISSUES

. Principle of Development

o Location

o Use

o Amount of development proposed
o Other matters

ASSESSMENT

The application is made under the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017, which came into force on 1st
June 2018. This amends the Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle)
Order 2017 to allow local planning authorities to grant permission in principle on
receipt of a valid application for housing-led development. The National Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG) explains that the Order is an alternative way of obtaining
planning permission for housing-led development, which separates the
consideration of matters of principle for development, from the technical detail.
This consent route has two stages: the first stage (or permission in principle stage)
establishes whether a site is suitable in principle, and the second (technical details
consent) stage, is when the detailed development proposals are assessed.

There are certain limitations set out in the relevant Order. For the avoidance of
doubt the proposed development is not:

a) Major development.

b) Habitats development.

c) Householder development.

d) Schedule 1 development which is Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
development that requires an Environmental Statement.

The proposed development is not considered to be Schedule 2 development
within the meaning of the EIA Regulations, which would require EIA if the project
is likely to give rise to significant environmental effects.

An applicant can apply for permission in principle for a range of dwellings by
expressing a minimum and maximum number of dwellings as part of the
application. In this instance, permission in principle is sought for the erection of up
to 3no dwellings.

The PPG states: "The scope of permission in principle is limited to location, land

use and amount of development. Issues relevant to these 'in principle' matters
should be considered at the permission in principle stage. Other matters should be

Page 103



9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

considered at the technical details consent stage." The PPG also advises that
applicants may volunteer additional information to support decision making, in
particular, to give more certainty about how many dwellings the site is capable of
supporting, and whether mitigation of likely impacts is possible. As this is a
permission-in-principle application, no plans are required.

The Council is therefore tasked with considering whether the location, land use
and amount of development are acceptable in accordance with the relevant
policies in the development plan, unless there are material considerations, such as
those within the NPPF and the PPG, which indicate otherwise.

The Council can inform the applicant what they expect to see at the technical
details consent stage, but it cannot impose planning conditions.

Noting the guidance in place regarding Permission in Principle submissions
assessment must be restricted to (a) location, (b) use and (c) amount and these
items are considered in turn below:

Location

The foot notes of LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 define the developed
footprint of a settlement. Given the application site is separated from the main built
form of Tholomas Drove and by a distance of approximately 140 metres. As such,
it is not considered to be within the settlement for the purposes of LP3 and LP12
of the Local Plan.

Policy LP3, informed by LP12 therefore considers the site to be an 'elsewhere’
location where development is restricted to that which is demonstrably essential to
the effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, outdoor
recreation, transport and utility services. No justification has been included within
the submission to illustrate that the dwellings would be required for such
enterprises.

Thus the principle of the development of the site is not supported as the location of
the site is not within the developed footprint of Tholomas Drove and is therefore in
an elsewhere location and not required for the established uses set out within
Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan. The requirements relating to Policy LP3 and
LP12 have not been met.

Notwithstanding, the glossary in the Fenland Local Plan defines residential
infilling as “Development of a site between existing buildings”. The Planning
Portal Glossary defines this as “The development of a relatively small gap
between existing buildings.” It is clear the proposed development, of up to 3
dwellings, at the site in question is not deemed as single dwelling infill as the site
presents a large undeveloped gap (outside of the built settlement) of
approximately 100 metres between existing dwellings and is not situated within a
built-up frontage.

As such any residential development on this site would be contrary to the above

policy considerations and thus, in terms of location, the Planning in Principle
application fails.

Page 104



Use

9.14 Policy LP12 ((i) states that development should not result in the loss of high-
grade agricultural land or if so, comprehensive evidence is provided to justify the
loss.

9.15 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that decisions should recognise the intrinsic
character and beauty of the countryside...including the economic benefits of the
best and most versatile agricultural land. Grades 1, 2 and 3a agricultural land fall
within this category.

9.16 A large proportion of agricultural land in Fenland District is best and most
versatile land. There is insufficient information upon which to assess whether the
loss the land might mean loss of best and most versatile agricultural land.
However, the Council has rarely refused applications for this reason, given the
quantity of such land within the district, and it is not considered that this issue
could therefore be used as a reason for refusal in this instance.

9.17 Considering the land use in relation to surrounding land uses, the use of the land
for residential purposes, in principle, would not give rise to unacceptable impacts
on surrounding users by reason or noise or disturbance or vice versa.

Amount of Development proposed

9.18 The application seeks Permission in Principle for up to 3 dwellings on a site of
0.27ha. Whilst a site plan has been submitted, this is indicative. It is considered
that the dwellings could likely be satisfactorily accommodated on-site. However,
the detailed layout and design would be for consideration at the Technical Details
stage. In terms of consideration of amount however, the proposal is acceptable,
notwithstanding the critical, principle findings above.

10 CONCLUSIONS

10.1  The application seeks permission in principle for the residential development of
up to 3 dwellings at the site with matters of location, land use and amount of
development proposed.

10.2 Policy LP3 sets out that Tholomas Drove is an ‘Other Village’ where development
will be considered on its merits and will normally be restricted to a single dwelling
infill site within an otherwise built-up frontage. The site is considered to fall
outside of the developed footprint of Tholomas Drove having regard to the
guiding criteria set out under policy LP12. As such, the site is considered to be in
an elsewhere location under policy LP3 and the nature of the development does
not meet with the strict land use requirements of ‘elsewhere developments’.

10.3 Furthermore, the site is rural in character with open fields to the rear and beyond
and positively contributes to the rural character of the area. It is contended that
real and actual character harm would arise through the consolidation of the built
form and the extension of existing linear features within an area which currently
serves to mark the transition between the open countryside and the built form of
the village, this being clearly at odds with Local Plan policy LP12 and contrary to
the aims of Policy LP16 (d) which focuses on the need for development to
enhance its setting and respond to the character of the area and local built
environment.

Page 105



10.4 Overall, the principle of the proposed development is considered to be
unacceptable, and the recommendation is one of refusal.

11 RECOMMENDATION

11.1 Refuse Permission in Principle; for the following reasons:

1

Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan identifies that Tholomas Drove is a
‘other village’ where development will be considered on its merits and will
normally be restricted to a single dwelling infill site within an otherwise built-up
frontage. The location of the site is not within the developed footprint of the
village and as such it fails to satisfy this requirement. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 states that proposals

should not have an adverse impact on the on the character and

appearance of the surrounding countryside and farmland (part c)

and that proposals would not extend existing linear features of the
settlement (part e). Policy LP16 (part d) of the Fenland Local Plan 2014
requires proposals to make a positive contribution to the local

distinctiveness and character of the area and not to have an adverse impact
on the settlement pattern or the landscape character of the surrounding area.

The site is rural in character with open fields to the rear and beyond. It is
contended that real and actual character harm would arise through the
consolidation of the built form and the extension of existing linear features
within an area which currently serves to mark the transition between the open
countryside and the built form of the village. As such any residential
development on this site would be contrary to the development plan and thus,
in terms of location, the Permission in Principle application fails.

Page 106




Chequers Inn

lvydene

Dixie Lodge

Croated on: 01032024 FIYR24/0179/PIP Fenland
CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Crown Copyri datab
righ?s 2&?@3%@?53&5 ‘16006253e778 Scale = 1:1,250 Fenland District Council

Page 107



80T abed

LEGEND:

EXISTING DWELLINGS

PAVEMENT

N\

GRASS

2

PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVING (NON SLIP)

\

TARMAC
H

GRAVEL

% SLAB PAVING

| WHEELIE BINS

SNV HEDGING

' VEGETATION

INDICATIVE PROPOSED SITE PLAN
(1:250)

¥z

APl
vd . e

A
'/

A%

2No 15m SYCAMORES

VERTICAL FENCING
BOARDS NAILED
TO ARRIS RAILS

100x100 R.C CONCRETE
— POSTS SET 900mm INTO
GROUND WITH CONCRETE
[ TTTTTTT 7T SURROUND AT 2.0m
CENTRES
- / ARRIS RAILS SET

BEHIND BOARDING
1.8m

TIMBER GRAVEL
BOARDING

=
|
|
I
[

1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL
(1:50)
(INDICATIVE)

3m HAWTHORNE HEDGE

3.6m x 5m DRIVE TO o
CAMBRIDGESHIRE

) : COUNTY COUNCIL SPEC 1.2
.ZMm

N

\

1.8m

GATE DETAIL

(1:50)

(INDICATIVE)

VERTICAL FENCING
BOARDS NAILED
TO ARRIS RAILS

100x100 R.C CONCRETE
POSTS SET 900mm INTO
GROUND WITH CONCRETE

T~

0 . SEALED AND DRAINED
ONONONININ, ) )
S

N

0]
g

NN

P

//// AWAY FROM ROAD

N

=

22

v

SISIINE

S

]

'{‘ 2
G

L
S8s

W

BSSSIISNS
SIS

?’,\

2R
&S

=

>
D

</
I

LR

b
PR PPID

R

555

s
55

9%

PO

S

2
S

OIS

R

8%

L
<

N\
,0'\\
o

o

RGP

</

8

KR

lllltq‘ll
oS
IV

¥

X
S
&

®
9
2
200t
P ISSNNNYY
G
XL
‘:,\%Q
\
\

S}’o\
/4

%

R

S3.6m x 5m DRIVE TO
CAMBRIDGESHIRE
&

7 COUNTY COUNCIL SPEC

)

% g/'ix‘c
o
NN,

S8

) SEALED AND DRAINED

///%%/// | ) AWAY FROM ROAD

LRRRRRZRLRRZLLR

R

SSSS

SR

STHSSH SRS

\\\\\\

LRRL

?: \‘ \ R ;.‘
222NN
l\o R
2
D

SSSSISSSSS
R

IIINISSS
LARRRRRLRRL

555

%\\

AR

L4
S

\x\\\\\\\\t

2

SN

e

L

LR
AW

SIS

RN

3m HAWTHORNE HEDGE

&
\\‘\ i~

SISO
555

NSRS

XKL
R

SRS
&

%

LR

A\

PN

o

q

e
I

/"‘\
XL
PRILLILN:
SASSRN
SR
PP,
NS
KL
K
DR

<2

A

<X
)

SRS

23

AN

R I
CEGHLLLLLLL
&8

AT\
O

P99
RS
QLSS

SSISHASS

5

5
LR

N L
Y \_y"

A\
>
o A
PP A
o
SR tﬂ,&%’%ﬂ
'gzs's's'

S5

5.6m x 5m DRIVE TO

%\‘ ;~.;v‘"y g
N

%

75000 CAMBRIDGESHIRE
/é:gggg;‘, / COUNTY COUNCIL SPEC
NINININININ, // 2 SEALED AND DRAINED
oy
SN AWAY FROM ROAD

NGNS 1 )
Vaia e
NONONISONNNT 7/

KRSy A ,
X
SN,
/ 'Qgssgs;sis;sgsa',sssz\@ -
S SIS AN ININ NI,
RIS
O ARSI
R IONQINSATRS
5 KN

OVERHEAD CABLES

3No 15m SYCAMORES

(1:50)

(INDICATIVE)

H SURROUND AT 2.0m

CENTRES
/ ARRIS RAILS SET
BEHIND BOARDING
L

TIMBER GRAVEL
BOARDING

1.2m HIGH FENCE DETAIL

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

METERS
2 s B B s
0 5 10 15 20
B PLANNERS COMMENTS FEB 2024
A ADDRESS AMENDED FEB 2024
REVISIONS DATE

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

Fenland District Council
Building

LABC” LABC
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

1102 ® 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Mr Shaun Bowles

PROJECT

Land North of The Chase
High Road, Tholomas Drove

Cambridgeshire
PE13 4SL

TITLE

Proposed Site Plan

INDICATIVE

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE
G.Boreham

CHECKED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Jan 2024

= H9377,/03,

As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_302
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
SLAB PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
WHEELIE BINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
EXISTING DWELLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
HEDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Mr Shaun Bowles

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Land North of The Chase

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
High Road, Tholomas Drove

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
PE13 4SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
INDICATIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
G.Boreham

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Jan 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
H9377/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
INDICATIVE PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:250)

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
OVERHEAD CABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
3No 15m SYCAMORES

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
2No 15m SYCAMORES

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
2-STOREY

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
SINGLE STOREY

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
CAR PORT

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
SINGLE STOREY

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
2-STOREY

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
SINGLE STOREY

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
1.5m WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
3m HAWTHORNE HEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
3m HAWTHORNE HEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
PLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
3.6m x 5m DRIVE TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL SPEC SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
3.6m x 5m DRIVE TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL SPEC SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
3.6m x 5m DRIVE TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL SPEC SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
3.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
3.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
3.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50) (INDICATIVE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
GATE DETAIL (1:50) (INDICATIVE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
1.2m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50) (INDICATIVE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
ADDRESS AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
FEB 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
INDICATIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
FEB 2024


	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	MINUTES 20 MARCH 24
	MINUTES OF 3 APRIL 2024

	5 F/YR23/0209/RM<br/>Land South West Of 317, Wisbech Road, Westry<br/>Reserved Matters application relating to detailed matters of access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale pursuant to outline permission F/YR20/0905/O to erect 3 x dwellings (3 x 2-storey 3-bed)
	F YR23 0209 RM gt Signed
	FDC SLP
	Updated site plan
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED SITE PLAN


	Plot 1 floor plans and elevations
	NIGEL M 09.11.23 - C-PROPOSED PLANS PLOT 1
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED PLANS PLOT 1


	NIGEL M 09.11.23 - C-PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 1
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 1



	Plot 2 floor plans and elevations
	NIGEL M 09.11.23 - C-PROPOSED PLANS PLOT 2
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED PLANS PLOT 2


	NIGEL M 09.11.23 - C-PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 2
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 2



	Plot 3 floor plans and elevations
	NIGEL M 09.11.23 - C-PROPOSED PLANS PLOT 3
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED PLANS PLOT 3


	NIGEL M 09.11.23 - C-PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 3
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 3



	Updated drainage plan

	6 F/YR24/0034/O<br/>Land North of Windy Willows, Church Lane, Tydd St Giles<br/>Erect up to 2 x dwellings and the formation of an access (outline application with matters committed in respect of access)
	YR24-0034-O final committee report minus signature
	FDC Location Plan
	821012-Drawing-COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAY BOUNDARY
	821014-Drawing-LOCATION PLAN, INDICATIVE SITE PLAN AND STREET SCENE
	Sheets and Views
	SE-1811-1000 E


	821015-Drawing-VEHICULAR VISIBILITY SPLAY
	Sheets and Views
	SE-1811-1001 C



	7 F/YR24/0108/F<br/>59 Elwyn Road, March<br/>Erect a detached double garage to existing dwelling
	YR24-0108-F committee report GT Signed
	806148-FDC Location Plan-
	820067-Drawing-PROPOSED SITE PLAN AND STREET SCENE
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	820068-Drawing-GARAGE FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	8 F/YR24/0173/PIP<br/>Land North East Of The Grange, London Road, Chatteris,br/>Permission in principle to erect up to 4 x dwellings
	YR24-0173-PIP committee report gt Signed 1
	FDC location plan
	F_YR24_0173_PIP-INDICATIVE_SITE_PLAN-811787
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	9 F/YR24/0179/PIP<br/>Land South Of Dixie Lodge, High Road, Tholomas Drove<br/>Permission in principle to erect up to 3 x dwellings and the formation of 3 x accesses
	YR24-0179-PIP committee report gt SIGNED OFF
	813815-FDC Location Plan-
	812238-Drawing-PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model






